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SCHEDULE 14A

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a)
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(Amendment No.     )

Filed by the Registrant  x
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the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):

(4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:

(5) Total fee paid:
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COPPELL, TEXAS

April 28, 2006

Dear Shareholder:

This letter extends to you a personal invitation to join us at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting on Monday, June 12, 2006, at 9:00 a.m.,
Central Daylight Time, at the Grapevine Convention Center located at 1209 South Main Street, Grapevine, Texas.

At this year�s meeting, you will vote on the election of 3 Class I Directors and the ratification of the appointment of Grant Thornton LLP as our
independent registered public accounting firm.

We have enclosed with this letter an official notice of our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting and proxy statement, which contains further
information about the items to be voted on and information about the meeting itself including:

� a description of the matters to be considered and acted on at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting;

� our 2005 annual shareholders� packet; and

� a proxy-voting card and pre-addressed envelope that instructs you on how to cast your vote. (Please carefully review the enclosed
voting instructions since the voting instructions are different depending on whether your shares are held directly or through a
broker.)

REMEMBER regardless of the number of shares that you hold, your vote is very important to our business and to us. Whether or not you plan
to attend our Annual Shareholders� Meeting, we urge you to sign and return your proxy-voting card or use the telephone or Internet to cast your
vote prior to the meeting so that your shares will be represented and voted at our meeting.

We want to also take the time to say thank you for your ongoing support and we hope to see you at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting.

Sincerely,

Samuel L. Caster
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
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MANNATECH, INCORPORATED

NOTICE OF OUR 2006 ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS� MEETING

TO BE HELD ON JUNE 12, 2006

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MANNATECH, INCORPORATED,

The 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting of Mannatech, Incorporated will be held at the Grapevine Convention Center, located at 1209 South
Main Street, Grapevine, Texas, on Monday, June 12, 2006, at 9:00 a.m., Central Daylight Time, for the following purposes:

� Proposal 1�To elect Messrs. Gerald E. Gilbert, Marlin Ray Robbins, and Larry A. Jobe as Class I Directors.

� Proposal 2�To ratify the appointment of Grant Thornton LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the
year ending December 31, 2006.

� To act upon such other matters as may properly come before our annual meeting.
Our Board of Directors have set the close of business on May 4, 2006 as the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to receive
notice of and to vote at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting or any adjournment(s) thereof.

By order of our Board of Directors,

Samuel L. Caster
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Coppell, Texas

April 28, 2006

IMPORTANT

Whether or not you expect to attend our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting, we strongly urge you to cast your vote on the Internet, by
telephone, or by mailing in your proxy-voting card prior to our meeting on June 12, 2006, to help ensure the presence of a quorum for our
meeting and to save the expense and extra work of additional solicitation. If you vote by telephone or the Internet, you DO NOT need to mail
your proxy-voting card. Voting by proxy by any method prior to the meeting will not prevent you from attending our 2006 Annual Shareholders�
Meeting or revoking your prior vote and voting at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting.

We urge you to please read all of the instructions in your proxy information packet. The instructions, Internet addresses, telephone
numbers, and mailing addresses are DIFFERENT depending on whether you have direct or beneficial ownership of your shares. To cast
your vote using the enclosed proxy-voting card, simply complete the proxy-voting card, sign, date, and return the card in the pre-addressed
envelope contained in your proxy information packet. To vote your shares other than by mailing in your proxy-voting card, you must use the
control number printed in the box on your proxy-voting card contained in your packet. The control number on your proxy card is your personal
code to access the telephone and Internet voting systems.
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1. To vote using the Internet, log onto the website designated on your proxy-voting card and follow the instructions.

2. To vote using a touch-tone telephone, call the telephone number on your proxy-voting card and follow the instructions.
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MANNATECH, INCORPORATED

600 South Royal Lane, Suite 200

Coppell, Texas 75019

PROXY STATEMENT FOR OUR 2006 ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS� MEETIN G

TO BE HELD ON JUNE 12, 2006

General Information

Our Board of Directors is soliciting the enclosed proxy for use at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting to be held on June 12, 2006 at 9:00
a.m., Central Daylight Time, at the Grapevine Convention Center at 1209 South Main Street, Grapevine, Texas. This proxy statement along with
our 2006 annual shareholders� report and a proxy-voting card are being mailed or delivered on or about May 12, 2006 to shareholders of record
owning our common stock on the close of business on May 4, 2006. The list of frequently asked questions is attached to this proxy statement as
Appendix A. Unless otherwise stated, all references in this proxy statement to �Mannatech,� the �Company,� �us,� �our,� or �we� are to Mannatech,
Incorporated, a Texas corporation.

Shareholders Entitled to Vote

Shareholders who owned our common stock as of the close of business on May 4, 2006, the record date, are called �shareholders of record� and
are entitled to vote at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting. As of April 3, 2006, we had 26,840,899 outstanding shares of our common stock,
$0.0001 par value, which is our only class of outstanding voting securities. As of April 3, 2006, we had approximately 4,000 shareholders that
held their common stock directly and approximately 13,000 beneficial shareholders who held their stock through approximately 160 brokers
who represent approximately 70% of our total common stock outstanding. Each share of our common stock entitles a shareholder to one vote. A
complete list of direct shareholders entitled to vote at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting will be available for examination by shareholders
for purposes pertaining to our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting at our corporate headquarters in Coppell, Texas during normal business hours
from May 27, 2006 until June 8, 2006. The shareholder list will also be available for review prior to and during our 2006 Annual Shareholders�
Meeting to be held on June 12th, 2006. A shareholder who wants to examine the list prior to our Annual Shareholders� Meeting should arrange an
appointment by contacting our Investor Relations department at (972) 471-6512.

Voting by Proxy

Properly executed votes by proxy received prior to our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting or at our Annual Shareholders� Meeting on June 12,
2006 or at any adjournment(s) or postponement(s) will be counted by Computershare, our transfer agent. If a shareholder specifies how their
proxy-vote is to be cast on any business to come before the meeting, such proxy-vote will be voted in accordance with such specifications. If no
specification is made, the shareholder�s vote by proxy will be voted �FOR� on each of our 2 proposals as consistent with the recommendation by
our Board of Directors. A shareholder may revoke, at any time prior to our Annual Shareholders� Meeting, their executed vote by proxy by
submitting a revised vote by proxy bearing a later date. Attendance at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting without voting by ballot will not
revoke a shareholder�s previously submitted vote by proxy.

Direct Ownership

For the purpose of determining how to vote your shares at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting, you are deemed to have �direct ownership�
over your Mannatech shares if you hold your original stock certificates directly in your name. This is typically evidenced by your receipt of all
of our mailings directly from either us or from our transfer agent, Computershare.

2
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Beneficial Ownership

For the purposes of determining how to vote your shares at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting, you are deemed to have �beneficial
ownership� over your Mannatech shares if you 1) previously deposited your stock certificates with a broker; 2) purchased your shares directly
through a broker; or 3) sent your stock certificates to a broker to be deposited into your brokerage account. Beneficial ownership is typically
evidenced by a shareholder receiving all of our mailings from either their broker or through their broker�s solicitor, which is usually ADP Proxy
Services. As a beneficial owner, a shareholder owns their shares, but our transfer agent does not have access to any list of individual
shareholders� names from the various brokers. The only information our transfer agent has concerning shareholders who own stock through a
broker is the broker�s name, the aggregate total number of shares held by each broker on behalf of their clients, and the aggregate number of
votes cast for any of our proposals.

WE CAUTION OUR SHAREHOLDERS THAT each brokerage firm has a unique set of voting instructions which may differ from the
instructions provided by our transfer agent. As a result, a shareholder should always read all the information provided in each of the proxy
information packet(s) received and follow the specific voting instructions enclosed in each packet with respect to applicable telephone numbers,
Internet addresses, mailing addresses, and attending or voting at our Annual Shareholders� Meeting.

If a shareholder receives more than one proxy information packet, such shareholder�s shares are registered in more than one account. Again,
remember that each proxy information packet may have different voting instructions, account or control numbers, mailing addresses, Internet
addresses, and telephone numbers. As a result, each shareholder should be cautioned to use only the set of voting instructions, account and
control numbers, addresses, and telephone numbers provided in each of their proxy information packet to ensure their vote for all of their shares
are properly included in the tabulation of votes for our meeting.

Beneficial shareholders are also instructed to read their proxy-voting card instructions given to them by their brokers or their brokers�
solicitors prior to our meeting in order to obtain instructions on how to attend and vote at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting. If a
beneficial shareholder does not follow their specific brokers� instructions, our transfer agent is not allowed to count such beneficial
shareholder�s vote by ballot at our Annual Shareholders� Meeting.

Tabulating the Votes

Representatives from our transfer agent, Computershare, are responsible for tabulating all of the votes for our 2006 Annual Shareholders�
Meeting. The presence, in person or by proxy-vote, of the holders of at least a majority of shares of our common stock outstanding as of May 4,
2006, our record date, is necessary to have a quorum for our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting. Abstentions and broker �non-votes,� if any, will
be counted as present for purposes of determining a quorum for our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting. A broker �non-vote� occurs when brokers
do not receive a properly executed proxy and, therefore, have not been given discretionary power to vote their shares on behalf of the beneficial
holders thereof. If a proxy-voting card is received by the broker or their solicitor and is signed by the shareholder but submitted without
providing specific voting instructions, the shareholder�s vote will automatically be counted as a vote �FOR� each of the proposals.

For Proposal 1 � the 3 nominees receiving the highest number of �FOR� votes from the shares present in-person or represented by proxy-votes at
our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting will be elected as our 3 Class I Directors. The shares represented by your enclosed proxy-voting card
will be voted �FOR� all of the nominees unless you specify differently. To specify differently, the shareholder must check the �WITHHOLD� box. If
the shareholder checks the �WITHHOLD� box, the shareholder�s vote will be considered a vote against the named nominee. Because Proposal 1 is
a routine matter for which specific instructions from beneficial owners will not be required, no �broker non-votes� will arise in the context of
Proposal 1.

3
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A shareholder cannot write-in the names of additional nominees when voting by proxy. However, at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting,
shareholders of record will be allowed to write-in additional names of nominee(s) on the ballot. To write-in a nominee on the ballot, the
shareholder will need to check the �WITHHOLD� box for each of the nominees they wish to vote against in the space provided. The shareholder is
allowed to write-in only as many nominees as the shareholder has voted against. For example, if there are a total of 3 nominees listed on the
ballot and the shareholder wishes to withhold their vote for 2 of the 3 nominees, the shareholder should list the names of the two nominees for
whom the vote is withheld and write-in up to 2 additional names for nominees to our Board of Directors.

For Proposal 2 � the ratification of the appointment of our independent registered public accounting firm. The ratification of the appointment of
our independent registered public accounting firm requires a �FOR� vote from a majority of shares present or represented by proxy votes entitled
to vote at our 2006 Annual Shareholder�s Meeting. �ABSTENTIONS� will be counted as a vote �against� the appointment of our independent
registered public accounting firm. Because Proposal 2 is a routine matter for which specific instructions from beneficial owners will not be
required, no �broker non-votes� will arise in the context of Proposal 2.

(OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE �FOR� PROPOSAL 1 AND PROPOSAL 2.)

Solicitation of Proxy-Votes

We may solicit proxy-votes through the mail, in person, and by telecommunications. We will bear all expenses in preparing, printing, and
mailing the proxy materials to our shareholders.

Admission and Voting at Our Annual Shareholders� Meeting

Voting at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting is limited to shareholders of record having evidence of ownership as of the record date, May 4,
2006. If your shares are not held in your name, we may require you to show evidence of your ownership at our meeting. Evidence typically
includes your proxy-voting card or your brokerage statement showing proof of stock ownership as of the close of business on May 4, 2006, such
as your May 2006 brokerage statement or a printout of shares held at the close of May 4, 2006. At our meeting, shareholders will be given a
ballot upon verification of stock ownership.

We will tape the meeting in its entirety and therefore we will not allow any other cameras or recording equipment in the meeting room. As a
courtesy and as time permits, we will provide a brief question and answer period for our shareholders of record.

Direct shareholders will be given ballots upon verification of stock ownership. Remember that beneficial shareholders must obtain a power of
attorney form or legal proxy from their brokers prior to the meeting in order for their votes by ballot to be counted since their brokers may have
already reported their shares as �broker non-votes�. Prior to our June 12, 2006 meeting, beneficial shareholders are strongly urged to read their
proxy-voting card instructions on how to vote at our Annual Shareholders� Meeting. They should also contact their broker by the Friday
prior to our Annual Shareholders� Meeting, to ensure they obtain the proper paperwork in order to vote at our meeting. If the beneficial
shareholder does not follow their broker�s instructions, our transfer agent will not count such shareholder�s vote by ballot at our Annual
Shareholders� Meeting. The instructions are usually located on the back of each proxy-voting card.

Shareholder Procedures for Nominating Board Members or Introducing Proposals

a) For our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting

For our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting, the deadline for recommending a nominee for nomination to our Board of Directors and for
introducing proposals to be included in this proxy information package expired on December 31, 2005. A shareholder of record is prohibited
from writing in nominees for our Board of Directors on their proxy-voting card. However, a shareholder of record may write-in nominees for our
Board of Directors on their ballot at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting by following the instructions outlined above on page 3, under the
heading �Tabulating the Votes.� We reserve the right to reject, rule out-of-order, or take other appropriate action with respect to any proposal that
does not comply with these and other applicable requirements.
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Subject and pursuant to Rule 14a-4(c) (1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, we have not been given notice of any
shareholder proposals intended to be presented at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting without inclusion in our proxy statement. Because we
did not receive notice of any shareholder proposals intended to be presented at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting by March 15, 2006, your
properly executed proxy card will confer discretionary authority on the holder of your proxy to vote your shares, in the manner the holder so
chooses, on any such shareholder proposals presented at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting. Our Board of Directors reserves the right to
reject, rule out-of-order, or take other appropriate action with respect to any proposal that does not comply with these and other applicable
requirements. We also did not receive any nominees for Directors from shareholders for our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting.

b) For our 2007 Annual Shareholders� Meeting

Under our Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws, dated August 8, 2001, the Nominating and Governance Committee of our Board of Directors
recommends all candidates for nomination to our Board of Directors. If a shareholder would like our Nominating and Governance Committee to
consider specific candidates for nomination to our Board of Directors, a shareholder should deliver written notice to our Chief Financial Officer
at our United States corporate headquarters, located at 600 S. Royal Lane, Suite 200, Coppell, Texas 75019, or fax (972) 471-5848. Written
notice of such proposed candidates for Director should be delivered no later than December 31, 2006 to allow our Board of Directors time to
consider such persons for nomination at our 2007 Annual Shareholders� Meeting. The written notice should include the candidates� full name,
age, biographical background, and qualifications. Our Chief Financial Officer is required to forward all written notices received to our
Nominating and Governance Committee. Our Nominating and Governance Committee consists of three independent Directors who review each
proposed candidate and submits a recommended list of proposed candidates to our Board of Directors. Our Board of Directors then approves a
list of proposed candidates, which are the only nominees that are listed on our ballot, the proxy-voting card, and our proxy statement on
Schedule 14A. We expect to file our 2007 proxy statement with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission on or before April 30,
2007.

Proposals by shareholders that comply with all applicable provisions of Rule 14a-8 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and are intended
to be presented at our 2007 Annual Shareholders� Meeting must be delivered in writing to our Chief Financial Officer at our United States
corporate offices, on or before December 29, 2006, in order to be eligible for inclusion in our 2007 proxy statement and proxy-voting card.

Subject to and pursuant to Rule 14a-4(c) (1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, if a shareholder proposal is intended to be presented at
our 2007 Annual Shareholders� Meeting without inclusion in our 2007 proxy statement, and notice of such proposal is not submitted in writing to
our Chief Financial Officer by March 28, 2007, then with regard to any such shareholder proposals, a properly executed proxy card for our 2007
Annual Shareholders� Meeting will confer discretionary authority on the holder of a shareholder�s proxy to vote such shareholder�s shares in the
manner the proxy holder so chooses. However, our Board of Directors reserves the right to reject, rule out-of-order, or take other appropriate
action with respect to any proposal that does not comply with these and other applicable requirements.

A copy of our Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws, dated August 8, 2001, is published on our corporate website or may be obtained upon
written request to our Chief Legal Officer, Ms. Bettina Simon, at our United States headquarters located at 600 S. Royal Lane, Suite 200,
Coppell, Texas 75019. In addition, our Bylaws were furnished as Exhibit 99.1 of our Form 8-K filed with the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 22, 2001.

5
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PROPOSAL 1�ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Our Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws provide for a classified Board of Directors, divided into 3 staggered classes � I, II, and III. The terms
of office for each of these classes are scheduled to expire on the dates of our Annual Shareholders� Meeting in 2006, 2007, and 2008,
respectively. At our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting, all of our Class I Directors are up for election.

Nominees. The 3 Class I Director nominees to be elected at our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting are Messrs. Gerald E. Gilbert, Marlin Ray
Robbins, and Larry A. Jobe. Once elected, each of our Class I Directors� terms will expire on the earlier of the date of our 2009 Annual
Shareholders� Meeting or the date of such Director�s disqualification, resignation, death, or removal.

(OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE �FOR� EACH OF THESE NOMINEES. A �FOR� VOTE ON A PROXY OR
BALLOT WILL BE SO VOTED UNLESS A CONTRARY VOTE IS INDICATED BY THE SHAREHOLDER. DIRECTORS WILL BE
ELECTED BY A PLURALITY OF THE VOTES CAST BY THE HOLDERS OF OUR COMMON STOCK REPRESENTED IN PERSON
OR BY PROXY AT OUR MEETING.)

PROPOSAL 2 � RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF OUR INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING
FIRM

Shareholder ratification of the selection of our independent registered public accounting firm is not required by our Articles of Incorporation or
Bylaws, as amended, or other applicable legal requirements. However, our Board of Directors, as a matter of good corporate governance, has
always sought shareholder ratification of the appointment of our independent registered public accounting firm. For the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2006, our Board is seeking shareholder ratification of the appointment of Grant Thornton LLP as our independent registered
public accounting firm.

Our Audit Committee appoints our independent registered public accounting firm on an annual basis. The decision is based on a number of
factors including the scope of the audit, the independence of the auditors, the estimated audit fees, and any non-auditing services that are
performed by the independent registered public accounting firm.

Representatives from Grant Thornton LLP will attend our 2006 Annual Shareholders� Meeting and will have the opportunity to make statements,
if they so desire. They will also be available to respond to any appropriate questions from our shareholders.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

All services provided by our independent registered public accounting firm must be preapproved by our Audit Committee. The non-audit
services, specified in Section 10-A(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, may not be provided by our independent registered public
accounting firm.

Each year, the approval of the estimated annual audit, audit-related services, and routine tax services takes place at an Audit Committee meeting.
In addition, during the course of the year, requests for unforeseen or additional allowable services to be provided by our independent registered
public accounting firm must be preapproved by our Audit Committee, except for those qualifying for the �de minimis exception.� The de
minimis exception provides that the pre-approval requirements for certain non-audit services may be waived if:

� the aggregate amount of such non-audit services provided constitutes not more than 5% of the total fees paid to our independent
registered public accounting firm in the calendar year that such non-audit services are provided;

� such services were recognized as non-audit services at the time they were provided; and

� such services are promptly brought to the attention of our Audit Committee.

6
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Our Audit Committee may delegate to its Chairman the authority to grant preapprovals. In such event, the decisions of the Chairman of the
Audit Committee regarding preapprovals will then be presented to our full Audit Committee at the next scheduled meeting.

Our independent registered public accounting firm provides a revised estimate for the year, by project, for all planned and approved services to
our Chief Financial Officer prior to each regularly scheduled Audit Committee meeting. The revised estimate is then reviewed at our Audit
Committee meeting.

Fees Paid to Our Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP served as our independent registered public accounting firm during our fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, and
also performed a quarterly review with respect to our first quarter ended March 31, 2005. On April 27, 2005, our Audit Committee approved the
dismissal of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, which was effective on May 13, 2005. On May 13, 2005, our Audit Committee appointed Grant
Thornton LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm.

The report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP related to our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 did not
contain any adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor was it qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope, or accounting principle.
During the year ended December 31, 2004 and through May 13, 2005, we had no disagreements with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP on any
matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statements disclosure or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not resolved
to the satisfaction of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, would have caused it to make reference thereto in its report on our consolidated financial
statements.

During the year ended December 31, 2004 and through April 27, 2005, there were no reportable events (as defined in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of
Regulation S-K under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended).

For the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2005, we were billed the following fees by our former independent registered public accounting
firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, for the fiscal year ended December 31, as follows:

Type of Service 2004 2005
(in thousands)

Audit Fees, including the audit of our consolidated financial statements and annual report on Form 10-K, assessment of our
internal control over financial reporting in compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, review of our
quarterly financial statements and quarterly reports filed on Form 10-Q, and international statutory audits. $ 1,342 $ 251
Audit-Related Fees, including professional services rendered in connection with Sarbanes-Oxley 404 readiness assistance. 63 �  
Tax Fees, including fees for tax services, tax advice, transfer pricing, state, and international tax consultation. 94 �  
All Other Fees, related to all other services including expatriation issues and miscellaneous consulting and advisory services. 95 253

Total Fees $ 1,594 $ 494

The �de minimis exception� described above was not used for any fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in 2004 and 2005. All fees were
pre-approved by our Audit Committee. As of April 28, 2005, we were advised by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP that neither the firm, nor any
member of its firm, had any direct or indirect financial interest in any capacity in our Company. The members of our Audit Committee believe
the payment of all fees set forth above did not prohibit PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP from maintaining their independence.
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We did not incur any fees with Grant Thornton LLP during 2004. For the year ended December 31, 2005, the following fees were billed to us by
our current independent registered public accounting firm, Grant Thornton LLP, for the fiscal year ended December 31, as follows:

Type of Service 2005
(in thousands)

Audit Fees, including the audit of our consolidated financial statements and annual report on Form 10-K, assessment of
our internal controls over financial reporting in compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, review
of our quarterly financial statements and quarterly reports filed on Form 10-Q, and international statutory audits. $ 332
Audit-Related Fees, including professional services rendered in connection with Sarbanes-Oxley 404 readiness
assistance. 337
Tax Fees, including fees for tax services, tax advice, transfer pricing, state, and international tax consultation. �  
All Other Fees, related to all other services including expatriation issues, and miscellaneous consulting and advisory
services. 2

Total Fees $ 671

The �de minimis exception� was not used for any fees paid to Grant Thornton LLP in 2005. All fees were pre-approved by our Audit
Committee. We were advised by Grant Thornton LLP that neither the firm, nor any member of its firm, had any direct or indirect financial
interest in any capacity in our Company. The members of our Audit Committee believe the payment of all fees set forth above does not prohibit
Grant Thornton LLP from maintaining their independence.

(OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE �FOR� THE RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF GRANT
THORNTON LLP AS OUR INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER
31, 2006. A VOTE �FOR� THE RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF GRANT THORNTON LLP BY PROXY OR BALLOT WILL
BE SO VOTED UNLESS A CONTRARY VOTE IS INDICATED BY THE SHAREHOLDER. THE AFFIRMATIVE VOTE OF THE
MAJORITY OF SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR COMMON STOCK REPRESENTED IN-PERSON OR BY PROXY IS REQUIRED TO
RATIFY THE APPOINTMENT OF OUR INDEPENDENT AUDITORS.)

SUMMARY OF ALL DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table sets forth certain information regarding our Executive Officers and Directors, including their ages as of April 1, 2006:

Name Age Position
Samuel L. Caster 55 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Terry L. Persinger 61 President, Chief Operating Officer, and Director
Stephen D. Fenstermacher 53 Senior Vice President of Accounting and Chief Financial Officer
John W. Price 62 President of International Operations
Bettina S. Simon 56 Senior Vice President, Chief Legal Officer, and Corporate Secretary
Cynthia L. Tysinger 48 Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer
Steven W. Lemme 50 Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing
Robert A. Sinnott M.N.S., Ph.D. 41 Vice President of Research & Product Development and Chief Science Officer
Dr. Stephen Boyd 65 Senior Medical Director
J. Stanley Fredrick 67 Lead Director
John S. Axford, DSc, MD, FRCP 52 Independent Director
Gerald E. Gilbert 72 Independent Director
Larry A. Jobe 66 Independent Director
Alan D. Kennedy 75 Independent Director
Marlin Ray Robbins 60 Director
Patricia A. Wier 68 Independent Director
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The following biographical information about our Directors and Executive Officers listed above is in alphabetical order:

John Stewart Axford, DSc, MD, FRCP has served as a Class III Independent Director since 2002. His current term as Director expires in 2008.
Since 1999, Dr. Axford has served as the President of the Royal Society of Medicine, Section of Clinical Immunology and Allergy and has
performed certain clinical studies and research for us. Dr. Axford has been a member of the Faculty at St. George�s Hospital Medical School,
University of London since 1990, and is serving as Senior Lecturer in Rheumatology, as well as a Consultant and Reader in Rheumatology and
Clinical Immunology since 1998, and in October 2005 he was elected as Chair of Clinical Rheumatology. Dr. Axford also serves on the editorial
Boards of three medical journals and on numerous medical and health related committees. He has lectured extensively throughout the United
States, the United Kingdom, Europe, Australia, and Asia and has authored and co-authored over 50 published peer-reviewed scientific papers,
over 100 published abstracts and letters and two best-selling medical textbooks. Dr. Axford is actively involved with research in Rheumatology
and served as Chairman of the Royal Society of Medicine Conference, Glycobiology and Medicine, held in London, in 2000. Dr. Axford
received a Bachelor of Medicine degree and Bachelor of Surgery degree from University College in London, England. In 1989, he was chosen
as a Fulbright Scholar and performed research in various areas of immunology at Tuft�s University in Boston, Massachusetts. In 1990,
Dr. Axford completed his research thesis in arthritic diseases and in 1991was awarded his M.D. with a Specialist Accreditation in Rheumatology
and Immunology. Currently, Dr. Axford is the principal investigator for 2 three-year clinical trials funded by us at St. George�s Hospital.

Stephen Boyd MD, Ph.D. joined Mannatech in 1997 and currently serves as our Senior Medical Director with responsibility for certain medical
research programs, liaison with health professionals and product safety monitoring. Dr. Boyd completed his BS and Ph.D. degrees in Chemistry
at the University of Glasgow, Scotland. Following completion of a post-Doctoral Research Fellowship in thermodynamics at the State
University of New York, New York. Dr. Boyd spent four years as a research chemist and head of analytical services at Dunlop Research Centre
in Canada. In 1974, Dr. Boyd graduated with an MD degree from the University of Toronto, Canada, followed by training in family medicine.
He was recruited in 1978 as Medical Director for Ortho Pharmaceuticals, Canada. Dr. Boyd has spent fifteen years in medical practice as a
family physician, both in Canada and the United States. Since 1992, he has been involved in the research and development of naturally occurring
compounds as therapeutics and nutritional supplements with particular emphasis on carbohydrates and glyconutrients. Dr. Boyd is currently a
member of the American Academy of Family Physicians, the Texas Academy of Family Physicians, the American Medical Association and the
American Academy of Wound Management. As a result of his research in wound healing and wound management, he received Board
Certification by the American Academy of Wound Management in 1998. In April 2001, at the general meeting of the society in London,
England, Dr. Boyd was elected a Fellow of The Royal Society of Medicine.

Samuel L. Caster co-founded Mannatech and as of April 1, 2006, directly owned 20.4% of our common stock. He served as our President and
as a Director on our Board of Directors from November 1993 until his resignation on March 31, 2000. From June 1, 2000 through March 4,
2002, Mr. Caster provided various consulting services to us related to our associates� needs and developed our global associate career and
compensation plan. In August 2000, Mr. Caster was reappointed to serve as a Class II Director on our Board of Directors. From June 4, 2001 to
March 4, 2002, he served as Co-Chairman of our Board of Directors and since March 5, 2002, has served as our Chairman of the Board.
Mr. Caster�s current term as Director expires in 2007. On April 15, 2003, Mr. Caster was elected as our Chief Executive Officer. He has over 25
years of experience with various network-marketing and direct selling companies. In 1999, Mr. Caster co-founded MannaRelief, a non-profit
international ministry formed to help supply food supplements to at-risk children by working with other ministries, non-profit organizations, and
missionaries throughout the world. Mr. Caster is the brother-in-law of Mr. Donald Herndon, who serves as our Vice President of Field Services.
Mr. Herndon is the brother-in-law of Mr. Terry Persinger, who serves as our President and Chief Operating Officer and is also a Board member.

Stephen D. Fenstermacher joined Mannatech in November 1998 to serve as our Vice President of Accounting and Controller. In October 1999,
Mr. Fenstermacher was named Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Prior to joining Mannatech, Mr. Fenstermacher was a
consultant for Kibel, Green, Issa, Inc., a crisis management firm specializing in turnaround strategy and consulting. From April 1995 to October
1997, he served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for The Johnny Rockets Group, Inc., a corporate and franchise
restaurant chain. From 1991 to 1995, Mr. Fenstermacher served as Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer for On the Border Cafes,
Inc. He was instrumental in working on its acquisition by Brinker International, Inc. (NYSE symbol EAT). Mr. Fenstermacher received a B.A.
degree in Government with a minor in Life Sciences from the University of Notre Dame in Notre Dame, Indiana, and received an M.B.A. degree
in Finance and Accounting from the University of Pittsburgh, in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

9

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 15



Table of Contents

J. Stanley Fredrick has served as a Class II Director on our Board of Directors since September 2001 and as of April 1, 2005, owned 11.7% of
our common stock. In November 2003, Mr. Fredrick was elected to serve as the Lead Director for our Board of Directors. His current term as
Director expires in 2007. Mr. Fredrick currently is the owner of Fredrick Consulting Services, which provides consulting services to the direct
selling industry. In 2003, Mr. Fredrick was a founding board member of Professional Bank in Dallas, Texas, which is a boutique bank that
provides certain financial resources to its customers. Mr. Fredrick also serves on the Professional Bank Audit Committee and Compensation
Committee. He co-founded Cameo Couture, Inc., which operated as Colesce Couture, a distributor of intimate apparel, and Colony House, Inc.,
a private label cookware company, both of which operated through direct selling channels. Mr. Fredrick also co-founded Irving National Bank
Shares, a commercial bank holding company and served as a consultant to the bank from 1994 until it was sold in 2000. Mr. Fredrick has been
actively involved for over 30 years in the Direct Selling Association, a national trade association of leading firms that manufacture and distribute
goods and services directly to consumers. He has served on the Direct Selling Association�s Board and various committees of their Board. From
1987 to 1988, Mr. Fredrick served as Chairman of the Direct Selling Association and from 1988 to 1990, served as Chairman of the Direct
Selling Education Foundation. He has been inducted into the Direct Selling Association�s highest honor, the �Hall of Fame,� and into the Direct
Selling Education Foundation �Circle of Honor.� Mr. Fredrick received a B.A. degree in English from Central State University in Edmond,
Oklahoma.

Gerald E. Gilbert has served as a Class I Independent Director since June 2003. Mr. Gilbert�s current term as Director expires in 2006. From
1968 until his retirement in December 2002, Mr. Gilbert practiced law with the international law firm of Hogan and Hartson L.L.P. His legal and
business expertise includes international trade, national trade associations, and various areas of consumer products. From 1968 to 1999,
Mr. Gilbert served as General Counsel to the Direct Selling Association, a national trade association of leading firms that manufacture and
distribute goods and services directly to consumers. Mr. Gilbert was the recipient of the �Hall of Fame Award,� which is the Direct Selling
Association�s highest honor. He also served as General Counsel to the World Federation of Direct Selling Associations and the Tropical Forest
Foundation. Mr. Gilbert served in the U.S. Naval Reserve from 1956 to 1992 and was promoted to Rear Admiral (Two Stars), the top ranking
officer in the Naval Reserve JAG Corps. During his distinguished military service, Mr. Gilbert received numerous awards, including the �Legion
of Merit�. He is also a Past National President of the Federal Bar Association. He received a B.A. from Denison University in Granville, Ohio
and a Juris Doctor from the University of Virginia School of Law in Charlottesville, Virginia. Mr. Gilbert is a member of the State Bars of
Virginia and the District of Columbia and is admitted to practice before the United States Supreme Court.

Larry A. Jobe was elected by our Board of Directors on January 4, 2006 to serve as a Class I Independent Director to replace Donald A.
Buchholz who resigned on January 4, 2006. Mr. Jobe serves as Chairman of Legal Network, Ltd., a firm he founded in 1993 that provides
staffing and litigation support to law firms and corporate legal departments. He also currently serves as President and founder of P 1 Resources,
LLC, which has provided engineering and light industrial staffing services to the construction industry since 1994. From 1991 to 1994, Mr. Jobe
was Chairman and founder of Mitchell Jobe & Company, a provider of professional staffing services for government and industry. From 1973 to
1991, he served in various capacities, including member of the Executive Committee and Chairman of the Strategic Planning Committee, with
the accounting firm Grant Thornton LLP. In 1969, he was appointed by United States President Richard Nixon to serve as the Assistant
Secretary of Commerce for Administration at the United States Commerce Department. Mr. Jobe currently serves as the Chairman of
Independent Bank of Texas, and Chairman of the Audit Committee for U.S. Home Systems, Inc. (NASDAQ symbol USHS). In addition,
Mr. Jobe serves on the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of SWS Group, Inc., a Dallas-based New York Stock Exchange member. He is
a Certified Public Accountant who received a B.B.A. degree from the University of North Texas in Denton, Texas. Mr. Jobe is also Chairman of
the Board of Dallas Seminary Foundation and a Trustee of Grace Academy, the Eisenhower Institute, and the University of North Texas
Foundation.
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Alan D. Kennedy has served as a Class III Independent Director since June 2002. His current term as Director expires in 2008. Mr. Kennedy has
over 30 years experience with various direct selling companies. From 1998 until his retirement in December 2001, he served as President
Worldwide for Tupperware Corporation, (NYSE symbol TUP), a publicly-traded company that distributes and sells various products in over 100
countries, primarily through direct-selling channels. Since retiring, Mr. Kennedy continues to serve as a consultant to Tupperware. From 1989 to
1996, he served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Nature�s Sunshine Products, Inc., (NASDAQ symbol NATR), a publicly-traded,
network marketing company that manufactures and markets nutritional and personal care products worldwide. From 1986 to 1989, Mr. Kennedy
provided various consulting services to several direct selling companies. From 1982 to 1986, he served as Vice President of Sales Development
for Avon Products, Inc., (NYSE symbol AVP), a publicly-traded, multinational manufacturer and distributor of cosmetics, toiletries, jewelry,
chemicals and clothing. He received a B.A. degree, with honors, in Economics from Colgate University in Hamilton, New York. His
professional affiliations include serving as Chairman of the Direct Selling Association from 1995 to 1996 and serving as Chairman of the Direct
Selling Educational Foundation from 1996 to 1997. In 2004, Mr. Kennedy was inducted into the Direct Selling Association�s highest honor, the
�Hall of Fame.� He serves on the Board of the Direct Selling Educational Foundation and also serves on the Board of Regents for Mercersburg
Academy, a private secondary school in Mercersburg, Pennsylvania.

Steven W. Lemme joined Mannatech in May 2003 to serve as Vice President of Sales and in November 2003 was promoted to Senior Vice
President of Sales and Marketing. Mr. Lemme has also worked as one of our independent associates since 1996. From 1990 to 1996, he served
as President for the H Window Company, a division of the Norwegian Company Spilka, which manufacturers windows and patio doors. From
1981until 1990, he served as Assistant to the President for Molex Incorporated (European Operations), (NASDAQ symbol MOLX), a
publicly-traded company and one of the world�s leading international manufacturer of electrical components for the electronics industry. While at
Molex, Mr. Lemme served in various positions in manufacturing, accounting and finance for Molex�s domestic and european operations. He
received a B.A. degree in Biology and Chemistry from Lawrence University in Appleton, Wisconsin, and recieved an M.B.A. from Keller
Graduate School of Management, in Chicago, Illinois. He also attended the Advanced Management Training Program with Harvard University
and has experience in international sales, manufacturing, distribution, and finance.

Terry L. Persinger joined Mannatech in November 1999 to serve as our Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, and a Class III
Director. Mr. Persinger�s current term as Director expires in 2008. Mr. Persinger has served as our President since May 2000. From 1968 until his
retirement in August 1999, he was employed by Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company (NYSE symbol GT), a publicly-traded company and
international manufacturer of tires and rubber products. From January 1995 to August 1999, Mr. Persinger served as Goodyear�s Vice President
and General Manager of Engineered Products. He received a B.S. in Chemical Engineering from the University of Cincinnati, in Cincinnati,
Ohio, is a graduate of the PMD management program at Harvard University, and completed management training at Northwestern Kellogg
School of Business, in Evanston, Illinois. Mr. Persinger is the brother-in-law of Mr. Donald W. Herndon, our Vice President of Field Services.
Mr. Herndon is the brother-in-law of Mr. Samuel L. Caster, our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer.

John W. Price joined Mannatech in September 2005 to serve as our President of International Operations. From 2003 to 2005, Mr. Price was
President of Price Associates, a business consulting firm serving a broad range of clients including Herbalife International Inc. (NYSE symbol
HLF), a global network-marketing company that sells weight management products, nutritional supplements, and personal care products. From
1997 to 2003, Mr. Price served as Herbalife�s Senior Vice President of Worldwide Administration, and served as its interim Chief Information
Officer and a key executive to its President. From 1978 to 1995, Mr. Price served as Vice President of Human Resources for Eli Lilly &
Company (NYSE symbol ELY), a pharmaceutical manufacturer. Mr. Price received a B.A. in Psychology and Naval Science from the University
of Washington in Seattle, Washington, and received his M.B.A. in Marketing from the California Coast University in Santa Ana, California. He
is a retired U.S. Navy Commander and an Eagle Scout who continues to serve on the Eagle Scout Board of Review. Mr. Price served from 2001
to 2005 as a Board Member of the Direct Selling Education Foundation.
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Marlin Ray Robbins co-founded Mannatech and is a high-level independent associate. As of April 1, 2006, Mr. Robbins owned 7.6% of our
common stock. Mr. Robbins has served as a Class I Director on our Board of Directors since June 2001. His current term as Director expires in
2006. From 1992 to 1995, Mr. Robbins served on the Board of Republic Bank/NCNB. Mr. Robbins also served as a member of the Grand
Prairie Independent School District Board from 1991 to 1994 and also served as their President from 1993 to 1994. Mr. Robbins has over 25
years experience with various network-marketing and direct selling companies. He holds multiple positions in our global associates� incentive
network-marketing system and is considered an expert regarding issues and critical needs related to building the success of our independent
associates. Mr. Robbins has published a book related to his experience as an associate entitled You Can Too. He also helped to develop our
global associate career and compensation plan. Mr. Robbins received a B.S. degree in Biology and Chemistry from Southwest Texas State
University in San Marcos, Texas.

Bettina S. Simon joined Mannatech in October 2001 to serve as General Counsel and Senior Vice President. She was appointed as our
Corporate Secretary in November 2001. In November 2005, Ms. Simon was appointed as our Chief Legal Officer. From 1998 to 2000,
Ms. Simon served as Vice President, General Counsel, and Corporate Secretary for Home Interiors and Gifts, Inc., a direct seller and
manufacturer of home decorative accessory products. From 1995 to 1998, Ms. Simon was a partner with the law firm, Simon and Simon. From
1983 to 1995, Ms. Simon served as Assistant General Counsel and Assistant Secretary for Zale Corporation (NYSE symbol ZLC), a
publicly-traded company and North America�s largest specialty retail jewelry chain. Ms. Simon received a B.F.A. degree, with honors in
Journalism from Southern Methodist University in Dallas, Texas and a Juris Doctor from Southern Methodist University School of Law. She is a
member of the State Bar of Texas, the American and Dallas Bar Associations, the American Corporate Secretary�s Society, and the Texas
General Counsel Forum. Ms. Simon also serves on the Direct Selling Association�s Government Relations Committee.

Robert A. Sinnott, M.N.S., Ph.D. was hired as our new Chief Science Officer and Vice President of Research & Development. Dr. Sinnott
succeeded Dr. McAnalley as Mannatech�s Chief Science Officer. Dr. Robert Sinnott brings over twelve years of experience in biotechnology to
Mannatech and was a founder of Larrea BioSciences Corporation (OTC BB: LRRA DB). From 1997 to 2003, Dr. Sinnott was a founding team
member and Chairman of Biotechnology and Agribusiness for the Arizona Agribusiness and Equine Sciences Center at South Mountain
Community College. From 1993 to 1996, Dr. Sinnott founded and served as Research Director of Gaiaventures, Ltd., a scientific consulting
firm. Dr. Sinnott earned his Bachelor of Science, Master of Natural Science and Ph.D. degree from Arizona State University located in Tempe,
Arizona. During graduate school, Dr. Sinnott�s primary focus was plant medicinal chemistry and plant biotechnology, and his 1995 dissertation
research focused on the aloe vera plant.

Cynthia L. Tysinger joined Mannatech in October 2000 to serve as our Vice President and Chief Information Officer. In June 2003,
Ms. Tysinger was promoted to Senior Vice President. Ms. Tysinger also worked as an independent associate from March 1996 through
September 2000. From May 1997 to October 2000, Ms. Tysinger served as the Director of Engineering Services for Technology Concepts and
Design, Inc., a design, development, database management and engineering company. While employed by Technology Concepts and Design,
Inc., she was a consultant to Mannatech and one of the lead system designers that developed our database website, www.GlycoScience.org. From
July 1992 to May 1997, Ms. Tysinger served as the Program Control Manager for GTE Information Systems, a division of GTE Corp that was
acquired by Verizon Corporation (NYSE symbol VZ), a publicly traded, global telecommunication company. Ms. Tysinger attended Northern
Virginia Community College, in Fairfax, Virginia. She is a member of the Direct Selling Association�s Technology Council and a member of the
CIO Oval Program, Forrester Research Group. Ms. Tysinger has over 20 years of experience in the information systems and Internet
technologies fields including working in various management positions for SAIC, Hughes Aircraft, and for the United States Department of
Defense.

Patricia A. Wier has served as a Class II Independent Director and Chairman of our Audit Committee since October 2003. Her current term as
Director expires in 2007. Mrs. Wier owns Patricia Wier, Inc., which provides consulting services to various companies. Mrs. Wier served as
President of Encyclopedia Britannica North American division from 1986 until her retirement in 1994. From 1991 until she retired in 2005,
Mrs. Wier served on the Board of NICOR Inc., (NYSE symbol GAS), a publicly traded gas utility company, and served as Chairman of NICOR�s
Audit Committee and as a member of NICOR�s Compensation Committee. Mrs. Weir received a B.A. in English Literature from the University
of Missouri in Kansas City, Missouri and an M.B.A. in General Management from the University of Chicago in Chicago, Illinois. She is a life
member of the Council of the Graduate School of Business at the University of Chicago and is a member of the Council of Regents for Lewis
University. Mrs. Wier was a member of the Direct Selling Association from 1977 until 1994 and was inducted into the Direct Selling
Association�s highest honor the �Hall of Fame�.
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Classes of Our Board of Directors

Nine Board members serve on our Board of Directors, which is divided into three classes serving staggered three-year terms and expiring on the
day of our Annual Shareholders� Meeting. Five of our Directors are independent. The members of each of the classes and the expiration dates of
their terms as of April 1, 2006 are as follows:

Class
Term
Expiration Directors

Class I 2006 Gerald E. Gilbert*, Marlin Ray Robbins, and Larry A. Jobe*(1)

Class II 2007 Samuel L. Caster

- 11 -
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THE CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION

The Company faces competition in hiring and retaining qualified employees, especially for employees who are key to the
Company�s ability to build and enhance client relationships.

The market for quality professionals and other personnel in the Company�s business is highly competitive. Competition is
particularly strong for financial consultants who build and sustain the Company�s client relationships. The Company�s ability to
continue to compete effectively will depend upon its ability to attract new employees and retain existing employees while
managing compensation costs.

The Company�s stock price has fluctuated historically, and may continue to fluctuate.

The Company�s stock price can be volatile. Among the factors that may affect the volatility of the Company�s stock price are the
following:

� speculation in the investment community or the press about, or actual changes in, the Company�s competitive position,
organizational structure, executive team, operations, financial condition, financial reporting and results, effectiveness of
cost reduction initiatives, or strategic transactions;

� the announcement of new products, services, acquisitions, or dispositions by the Company or its competitors;

� increases or decreases in revenue or earnings, changes in earnings estimates by the investment community, and
variations between estimated financial results and actual financial results.

Changes in the stock market generally or as it concerns the Company�s industry, as well as geopolitical, economic, and business
factors unrelated to the Company, may also affect the Company�s stock price.

Future sales of CSC�s equity securities may adversely affect the market price of CSC�s common stock and result in
dilution.

CSC�s certificate of incorporation authorizes CSC�s Board of Directors to, among other things, issue additional shares of common
or preferred stock or securities convertible or exchangeable into equity securities, without stockholder approval. CSC may issue
additional equity or convertible securities to raise additional capital or for other purposes. The issuance of any additional equity
or convertible securities could be substantially dilutive to holders of CSC�s common stock and may adversely affect the market
price of CSC�s common stock.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Securities and Exchange Commission Staff Comments

None.
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THE CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION

Item 2. Properties

A summary of the Company�s significant locations at December 31, 2011, is presented in the following table. Locations are
leased or owned as noted below. The square footage amounts are presented net of space that has been subleased to third parties.

Square Footage
(amounts in thousands)     Leased        Owned    
Location
Corporate office space:

San Francisco, CA (1) 776 �

Service centers:

Phoenix, AZ (2) 47 709

Denver, CO 383 �

Indianapolis, IN � 274

Austin, TX 220 �

Orlando, FL 148 �

Richfield, OH � 117

(1) Includes the Company�s headquarters.

(2) Includes two data centers.

Substantially all of the Company�s branch offices are located in leased premises. The corporate headquarters, data centers,
offices, and service centers support both of the Company�s segments.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

For a discussion of legal proceedings, see �Item 8 � Financial Statements and Supplementary Data � Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements � 15. Commitments and Contingencies.�

PART II

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
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Not applicable.

Item 5. Market for Registrant�s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

CSC�s common stock is listed on The New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol SCHW. The number of common
stockholders of record as of January 31, 2012, was 7,983. The closing market price per share on that date was $11.65.

The quarterly high and low sales prices for CSC�s common stock and the other information required to be furnished pursuant to
this item are included in �Item 8 � Financial Statements and Supplementary Data � Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements � 28.
Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) and 20. Employee Incentive, Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Plans.�
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THE CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION

The following graph shows a five-year comparison of cumulative total returns for CSC�s common stock, the Dow Jones U.S.
Investment Services Index, and the Standard & Poor�s 500 Index, each of which assumes an initial investment of $100 and
reinvestment of dividends.

December 31, 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
The Charles Schwab Corporation $     100 $     140 $     90 $     106 $     98 $     65
Dow Jones U.S. Investment Services Index $     100 $     90 $     30 $     47 $     49 $ 32
Standard & Poor�s 500 Index $     100 $     105 $     66 $     84 $     97 $ 99

- 14 -

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 24



Table of Contents

THE CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table summarizes purchases made by or on behalf of CSC of its common stock for each calendar month in the
fourth quarter of 2011:

Month

Total Number
of Shares
Purchased

   (in thousands)    

         Average        

       Price Paid       
     per
Share     

Total Number of
Shares Purchased

as Part of 
Publicly

Announced
Program (1)

     (in thousands)    

Approximate
Dollar Value of
Shares that May

Yet be 
Purchased

under the Program 
(in millions)

October:
Share Repurchase Program (1) � $ � � $     596
Employee transactions (2) 17 $     11.36 N/A N/A
November:
Share Repurchase Program (1) � $ � � $     596
Employee transactions (2) 505 $     12.04 N/A N/A
December:
Share Repurchase Program (1) � $ � � $     596
Employee transactions (2) 6 $     11.80 N/A N/A

Total:
Share Repurchase Program (1) � $ � � $     596
Employee transactions (2) 528 $     12.01 N/A N/A

N/A Not applicable.

(1) There were no share repurchases under the Share Repurchase Program during the fourth quarter. Repurchases under this
program would occur under two authorizations by CSC�s Board of Directors, each covering up to $500 million of common
stock that were publicly announced by the Company on April 25, 2007, and March 13, 2008. The remaining authorizations
do not have an expiration date.

(2) Includes restricted shares withheld (under the terms of grants under employee stock incentive plans) to offset tax
withholding obligations that occur upon vesting and release of restricted shares. The Company may receive shares to pay
the exercise price and/or to satisfy tax withholding obligations by employees who exercise stock options (granted under
employee stock incentive plans), which are commonly referred to as stock swap exercises.
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THE CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Selected Financial and Operating Data

(In Millions, Except Per Share Amounts, Ratios, or as Noted)

Growth Rates
Compounded Annual

4-Year
(1)

2007-2011
1-Year

2010-2011 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Results of Operations
Net revenues (2%) 10% $     4,691 $     4,248 $     4,193 $     5,150 $     4,994
Expenses excluding interest 1% (5%) $ 3,299 $ 3,469 $ 2,917 $ 3,122 $ 3,141
Income from continuing operations (6%) 90% $ 864 $ 454 $ 787 $ 1,230 $ 1,120
Net income (2) (23%) 90% $ 864 $ 454 $ 787 $ 1,212 $ 2,407
Income from continuing operations
per share � basic (7%) 84% $ .70 $ .38 $ .68 $ 1.07 $ .93
Income from continuing operations
per share � diluted (7%) 84% $ .70 $ .38 $ .68 $ 1.06 $ .92
Basic earnings per share (2, 3) (23%) 84% $ .70 $ .38 $ .68 $ 1.06 $ 1.98
Diluted earnings per share (2, 3) (23%) 84% $ .70 $ .38 $ .68 $ 1.05 $ 1.96
Dividends declared per common
share 5% � $ .24 $ .24 $ .24 $ .22 $ .20
Special dividend declared per
common share N/M � $ � $ � $ � $ � $ 1.00
Weighted-average common shares
outstanding � diluted � 3% 1,229 1,194 1,160 1,157 1,222
Asset management and
administration fees as a percentage
of net revenues 41% 43% 45% 46% 47% 
Net interest revenue as a percentage
of net revenues 37% 36% 30% 33% 33% 
Trading revenue as a percentage of
net revenues (4) 20% 20% 24% 21% 17% 
Effective income tax rate 37.9% 41.7% 38.3% 39.3% 39.6% 
Capital expenditures � purchases of
equipment, office facilities, and
property, net 3% 50% $ 190 $ 127 $ 139 $ 194 $ 168
Capital expenditures, net, as a
percentage of net revenues 4% 3% 3% 4% 3% 

Performance Measures
Net revenue growth (decline) 10% 1% (19%) 3% 16% 
Pre-tax profit margin 29.7% 18.3% 30.4% 39.4% 37.1% 
Return on stockholders� equity 12% 8% 17% 31% 55% 

Financial Condition (at year end)
Total assets 27% 17% $ 108,553 $ 92,568 $ 75,431 $ 51,675 $ 42,286
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Long-term debt 22% � $ 2,001 $ 2,006 $ 1,512 $ 883 $ 899
Stockholders� equity 20% 24% $ 7,714 $ 6,226 $ 5,073 $ 4,061 $ 3,732
Assets to stockholders� equity ratio 14 15 15 13 11
Long-term debt to total financial
capital (long-term debt plus
stockholders� equity) 21% 24% 23% 18% 19% 

Employee Information
Full-time equivalent employees (at
year end, in thousands) 1% 10% 14.1 12.8 12.4 13.4 13.3
Net revenues per average full-time
equivalent employee (in thousands) (2%) 4% $ 350 $ 337 $ 338 $ 383 $ 387

Note: Information is presented on a continuing operations basis unless otherwise noted.

(1) The compounded 4-year growth rate is computed using the following formula: Compound annual growth rate = (Ending
Value / Beginning Value) .25 - 1

(2) Net income in 2007 includes a gain of $1.2 billion, after tax, on the sale of U.S. Trust, which was presented as
discontinued operations.

(3) Both basic and diluted earnings per share in 2008 and 2007 include discontinued operations.

(4) Trading revenue includes commission and principal transaction revenues.

N/MNot meaningful.

- 16 -

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 27



Table of Contents

THE CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION

Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Ratios, or as Noted)

Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

OVERVIEW

Management of the Company focuses on several key financial and client activity metrics in evaluating the Company�s financial
position and operating performance. Results for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 are shown in the following
table:

Year Ended December 31,

Growth 
Rate
1-Year

2010-2011 2011 2010 2009
Client Activity Metrics:
Net new client assets (1) (in billions) N/M $ 145.9 $ 26.6 $ 87.3
Client assets (in billions, at year end) 7% $     1,677.7 $     1,574.5 $     1,422.6
Clients� daily average trades(2) (in thousands) 13% 451.1 399.7 414.8

Company Financial Metrics:
Net revenues 10% $ 4,691 $ 4,248 $ 4,193
Expenses excluding interest (5%) 3,299 3,469 2,917

Income before taxes on income 79% 1,392 779 1,276
Taxes on income 62% (528) (325) (489) 

Net income 90% $ 864 $ 454 $ 787

Earnings per share � diluted 84% $ .70 $ .38 $ .68
Net revenue growth (decline) from prior year 10% 1% (19%) 
Pre-tax profit margin 29.7% 18.3% 30.4% 
Return on stockholders� equity 12% 8% 17% 
Net revenue per average full-time equivalent employee (in
thousands) 4% $ 350 $ 337 $ 338

(1) Includes inflows of $56.1 billion and $7.5 billion in 2011 from a mutual fund clearing services client and the acquisition of
optionsXpress, respectively. Includes net outflows of $51.5 billion in 2010 related to the planned deconversion of a mutual
fund clearing services client.

(2) Beginning in 2010, amounts include all commission-free trades, including the Company�s Mutual Fund OneSource® funds
and ETFs, and other proprietary products. Prior period amounts have been recast to reflect this change.
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N/MNot meaningful.

� Net new client assets is defined as the total inflows of client cash and securities to the firm less client
outflows. Management believes that this metric depicts how well the Company�s products and services appeal
to new and existing clients in a given operating environment.

� Client assets is the market value of all client assets custodied at the Company. Management considers client assets to be
indicative of the Company�s appeal in the marketplace. Additionally, fluctuations in certain components of client assets
(e.g., Mutual Fund OneSource funds) directly impact asset management and administration fees.

� Clients� daily average trades is an indicator of client engagement with securities markets and the most prominent driver
of trading revenue.

� Management believes that earnings per share, net revenue growth, pre-tax profit margin, and return on
stockholders� equity provide broad indicators of the Company�s overall financial health, operating efficiency,
and ability to generate acceptable returns within the context of a given operating environment.

� Net revenue per average full-time equivalent employee is considered by management to be the Company�s broadest
measure of productivity.

The Company�s major sources of net revenues are asset management and administration fees, net interest revenue, and trading
revenue. The Company generates asset management and administration fees through its proprietary and third-party

- 17 -

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 29



Table of Contents

THE CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION

Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Ratios, or as Noted)

mutual fund offerings, as well as fee-based advisory solutions. Net interest revenue is the difference between interest earned on
interest-earning assets and interest paid on funding sources. Asset management and administration fees and net interest revenue
are impacted by securities valuations, interest rates, the amount and mix of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing funding
sources, the Company�s ability to attract new clients, and client activity levels. The Company generates trading revenue through
commissions earned for executing trades for clients and principal transaction revenue from trading activity in fixed income
securities. Trading revenue is impacted by trading volumes, the volatility of prices in the equity and fixed income markets, and
commission rates.

2011 Compared to 2010

Economic and market conditions were challenging throughout 2011, marked by volatility in the equity markets, lower market
valuations, and further declines in interest rates. The Standard and Poor�s 500 Index, Nasdaq Composite Index, and Dow Jones
Industrial Average decreased on average 6%, 5%, and 4%, respectively, between the first and second halves of the year. The
federal funds target rate remained unchanged during the year at a range of zero to 0.25% and the three-month Treasury Bill and
10-year Treasury yields declined by 11 and 141 basis points to 0.01% and 1.88%, respectively.

The Company�s key client activity metrics in 2011 were stable in the midst of a weakened economic and market environment.
Net new client assets totaled $145.9 billion in 2011. Core net new client assets, which exclude significant one-time flows, totaled
$82.3 billion in 2011 up from $78.1 billion in 2010. Total client assets ended the year at $1.68 trillion, up 7% from 2010. In
addition, clients� daily average trades were 451,100, up 13% from 2010.

Net revenues increased by 10% in 2011 from 2010 due to increases in all of the Company�s major sources of net revenues. Asset
management and administration fees increased primarily due to an increase in revenue from the Company�s advice solutions and
continued asset inflows, partially offset by money market mutual fund fee waivers, which increased to $568 million in 2011 from
$433 million in 2010. Net interest revenue increased primarily due to higher average balances of interest-earning assets during
the year, partially offset by the effect of lower interest rate spreads resulting from higher amortization of premiums relating to
residential mortgage-backed securities caused by higher mortgage prepayments in 2011. Trading revenue increased primarily
due to higher daily average revenue trades and the addition of optionsXpress, which was acquired in September 2011.

While total expenses excluding interest were lower by 5% in 2011 compared to 2010, the Company experienced increases in
compensation and benefits, professional services, occupancy and equipment, and advertising and market development expenses
in aggregate of $266 million in 2011 compared to 2010. Significant charges in 2010 included class action litigation and
regulatory reserves relating to the Schwab YieldPlus Fund®, losses recognized for Schwab money market mutual funds, and a
charge relating to the termination of the Company�s Invest First® and WorldPoints(a) Visa(b) credit card program for a total of
$482 million.
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As a result of the Company�s ongoing investment in clients and sustained expense discipline, the Company achieved a pre-tax
profit margin of 29.7% and return on stockholders� equity of 12% in 2011.

2010 Compared to 2009

The equity markets improved during 2010 and remained well above their prior year lows. The Nasdaq Composite Index, the
Standard & Poor�s 500 Index, and the Dow Jones Industrial Average increased 17%, 13%, and 11%, respectively. The low
interest rate environment continued throughout the year as the federal funds target rate remained unchanged during the year at a
range of zero to 0.25%.

The Company�s sustained investment in expanding and improving product and service capabilities for its clients was reflected in
the strength of its key client activity metrics in 2010 � net new client assets totaled $78.1 billion, excluding

(a) WorldPoints is a registered trademark of FIA Card Services, N.A.
(b) Visa is a registered trademark of Visa International Service Association.
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outflows related to a single mutual fund clearing client who completed a planned transfer to an internal platform during the year,
and total client assets ended 2010 at $1.57 trillion, up 11% from 2009. Client trading activity slowed during the year as clients�
daily average trades decreased 4% from 2009 to 399,700.

Net revenues were relatively flat in 2010 from 2009. The Company, however, experienced a change in the mix of its revenue
sources as the increase in net interest revenue was offset by decreases in trading revenue, asset management and administration
fees, and other revenue. Net interest revenue increased due to higher average balances of interest-earning assets, partially offset
by a decrease in the average yield earned. Trading revenue decreased due to lower average revenue per revenue trade resulting
from improved online trade pricing for clients, which was implemented in January 2010, and slightly lower daily average
revenue trades in 2010. While the low interest rate environment caused over $200 million of additional money market mutual
fund fee waivers from the prior year, the decrease in asset management and administration fees was limited to 3% due to higher
average asset valuations and continued asset inflows. Other revenue was lower in comparison to 2009 primarily due to a gain of
$31 million on the repurchase of a portion of the Company�s long-term debt in 2009.

Expenses excluding interest were higher by 19% in 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due to the recognition of certain significant
charges in 2010. The Company recognized class action litigation and regulatory reserves of $320 million relating to the Schwab
YieldPlus Fund. Additionally, the Company decided to cover the net remaining losses recognized by Schwab money market
mutual funds as a result of their investments in a single structured investment vehicle that defaulted in 2008 and recorded a
charge of $132 million in 2010. Also, as a result of challenging credit card industry economics, the Company ended its
sponsorship in its Invest First® and WorldPoints(a) Visa(b ) credit cards and recorded a charge of $30 million. The Company�s
ongoing expense discipline helped limit the growth in all other expense categories in the aggregate to 3% over the prior year.

Business Acquisitions

On September 1, 2011, the Company completed its acquisition of all of the outstanding common shares of optionsXpress, an
online brokerage firm primarily focused on equity option securities and futures, for total consideration of $714 million. Under
the terms of the merger agreement, optionsXpress® stockholders received 1.02 shares of the Company�s common stock for each
share of optionsXpress stock. As a result, the Company issued 59 million shares of the Company�s common stock valued at
$710 million, based on the closing price of the Company�s common stock on September 1, 2011. The Company also assumed
optionsXpress� stock-based compensation awards valued at $4 million.

On November 9, 2010, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of Windward for $106 million in common stock and
$44 million in cash. Windward was an investment advisory firm that managed diversified investment portfolios comprised
primarily of ETFs.
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For more information on the acquisitions of optionsXpress and Windward, see �Item 8 � Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data � Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements � 3. Business Acquisitions.�

Subsequent Event

On January 26, 2012, the Company issued and sold 400,000 shares of fixed-to-floating rate non-cumulative perpetual preferred
stock, Series A, $0.01 par value, with a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share (Series A Preferred Stock). The Series A
Preferred Stock has a fixed dividend rate of 7% until 2022 and a floating rate thereafter. Net proceeds received from the sale
were $394 million and are being used for general corporate purposes, including, without limitation, to support the Company�s
balance sheet growth and the potential migration of certain client cash balances to deposit accounts at Schwab Bank.

(a) WorldPoints is a registered trademark of FIA Card Services, N.A.
(b) Visa is a registered trademark of Visa International Service Association.
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CURRENT MARKET AND REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT

The economic and market environment was challenging throughout 2011. Further declines in interest rates continue to constrain
growth in the Company�s net revenues.

While the federal funds target rate was unchanged at a range of zero to 0.25% in 2011, the Federal Reserve took action during
the middle of the year to lower longer term interest rates. Further declines in interest rates in 2011 have accelerated the
prepayment activity in the Company�s portfolios of residential mortgage-backed securities, which resulted in higher premium
amortization. To the extent rates remain at these low levels, the Company�s net interest revenue will continue to be constrained,
even as growth in average balances helps to increase such revenue. The low interest rate environment also affects asset
management and administration fees. The overall yields on certain Schwab-sponsored money market mutual funds have
remained at levels at or below the management fees on those funds. The Company continues to waive a portion of its
management fees, which it began in the first quarter of 2009, so that the funds can continue providing a positive return to clients.
These and other money market mutual funds may not be able to replace maturing securities with securities of equal or higher
yields. As a result, the yields on such funds may remain around or decline from their current levels, and therefore below the
management fees on those funds. To the extent this occurs, the Company may continue to waive fees and such waivers could
increase from the fourth quarter 2011 level, which would negatively affect asset management and administration fees.

The Company recorded net impairment charges of $31 million and $36 million related to certain non-agency residential
mortgage-backed securities in 2011 and 2010, respectively, due to credit deterioration of the securities� underlying loans. Further
deterioration in the performance of the underlying loans in the Company�s residential mortgage-backed securities portfolio could
result in the recognition of additional impairment charges.

The Company is pursuing lawsuits in state court in San Francisco for rescission and damages against issuers, underwriters, and
dealers of 51 individual non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities on which the Company has experienced realized and
unrealized losses. The lawsuits allege that offering documents for the securities contained material untrue and misleading
statements about the securities and the underwriting standards and credit quality of the underlying loans. On January 27, 2012,
the court denied defendants� motions to dismiss the claims with respect to all but 4 of the 51 securities, and allowed the cases to
proceed to discovery.

The �Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act� was signed into law in July 2010. Among other things, the
legislation authorizes various assessments and fees and requires the establishment of minimum leverage and risk-based capital
requirements for insured depository institutions. The legislation also eliminated the Office of Thrift Supervision effective
July 21, 2011 and, as a result, the Federal Reserve became CSC�s primary regulator and the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency became the primary regulator of Schwab Bank. CSC is continuing to review the impact the legislation, studies and
related rule-making will have on the Company�s business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 34



- 20 -

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 35



Table of Contents

THE CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION

Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Ratios, or as Noted)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion presents an analysis of the Company�s results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010, and 2009.

Net Revenues

The Company�s major sources of net revenues are asset management and administration fees, net interest revenue, and trading
revenue, which all increased in 2011 as compared to 2010. Asset management and administration fees and trading revenue
decreased, while net interest revenue increased in 2010 as compared to 2009.

$4,691 $4,691 $4,691 $4,691 $4,691 $4,691 $4,691
Year Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009

Growth Rate
2010-2011 Amount

% of
Total Net
Revenues Amount

% of
Total Net
Revenues Amount

% of
Total Net
Revenues

Asset management and
administration fees
Schwab money market
funds before fee waivers � $        865 $        865 $ 1,011
Fee waivers 31% (568) (433) (224) 

Schwab money market
funds after fee waivers (31%) 297 6% 432           10% 787 18% 
Equity and bond funds 4% 118 3% 114 3% 108 3% 
Mutual Fund
OneSource® 12% 680 14% 608 14% 446 11% 

Total mutual funds 5% 1,095           23% 1,154 27% 1,341 32% 
Advice solutions 36% 522 11% 384 9% 278 7% 
Other 10% 311 7% 284 7% 256 6% 

Asset management and
administration fees 6% 1,928 41% 1,822 43% 1,875 45% 

Net interest revenue
Interest revenue 10% 1,900 41% 1,723 41% 1,428 34% 
Interest expense (12%) (175) (4%) (199) (5%) (183) (4%) 
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Net interest revenue 13% 1,725 37% 1,524 36% 1,245 30% 

Trading revenue
Commissions 12% 866 19% 770 18% 884 21% 
Principal transactions 2% 61 1% 60 2% 112 3% 

Trading revenue 12% 927 20% 830 20% 996 24% 

Other 19% 160 3% 135 3% 175 3% 
Provision for loan losses (33%) (18) � (27) (1%) (38) (1%) 
Net impairment losses on
securities (14%) (31) (1%) (36) (1%) (60) (1%) 

Total net revenues 10% $ 4,691 100% $ 4,248 100% $ 4,193 100% 

Asset Management and Administration Fees

Asset management and administration fees include mutual fund service fees and fees for other asset-based financial services
provided to individual and institutional clients. The Company earns mutual fund service fees for shareholder services,
administration, investment management, and transfer agent services (through July 2009) provided to its proprietary funds, and
recordkeeping and shareholder services provided to third-party funds. These fees are based upon the daily balances of client
assets invested in these funds. The Company also earns asset management fees for advice solutions, which include advisory and
managed account services that are based on the daily balances of client assets subject to the specific fee for service. The fair
values of client assets included in proprietary and third-party mutual funds are based on quoted market prices and other
observable market data. Other asset management and administration fees include various asset based fees, such as trust fees,
401k record keeping fees, and mutual fund clearing and other service fees. Asset management and administration fees may vary
with changes in the balances of client assets due to market fluctuations and client activity. For discussion of the impact of current
market conditions on asset management and administration fees, see �Current Market and Regulatory Environment.�

Asset management and administration fees increased by $106 million, or 6%, in 2011 from 2010 primarily due to an increase in
advice solutions fees, partially offset by a decrease in mutual fund service fees. Asset management and administration fees
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decreased by $53 million, or 3%, in 2010 from 2009 primarily due to the decrease in mutual fund service fees, partially offset by
an increase in advice solutions fees.

Given the low interest rate environment in 2011, 2010, and 2009, the overall yields on certain Schwab-sponsored money market
mutual funds have remained at levels at or below the management fees on those funds. As a result, the Company waived a
portion of its fees in order to provide a positive return to clients. Mutual fund service fees decreased by $59 million, or 5%, in
2011 from 2010 and by $187 million, or 14%, in 2010 from 2009 primarily due to the increase in money market mutual fund fee
waivers, offset by higher average balances of client assets invested in the Company�s Mutual Fund OneSource funds as a result of
continued asset inflows.

Advice solutions fees increased by $138 million, or 36%, in 2011 from 2010 and by $106 million, or 38%, in 2010 from 2009
primarily due to higher average balances of client assets enrolled in retail advisory and managed account programs, including
Schwab Private Client and Schwab Managed Portfolios�. The increase in 2011 was also attributed to the integration of
Windhaven, which was acquired in November 2010. Additionally, the increases in advice solutions fees were due to temporary
fees rebates of $63 million and $68 million, which reduced advice solutions fees in 2010 and 2009, respectively, under a rebate
program that ended in 2010.

Net Interest Revenue

Net interest revenue is the difference between interest earned on interest-earning assets and interest paid on funding sources. Net
interest revenue is affected by changes in the volume and mix of these assets and liabilities, as well as by fluctuations in interest
rates and portfolio management strategies. The Company�s investment strategy is structured to produce an increase in net interest
revenue when interest rates rise and, conversely, a decrease in net interest revenue when interest rates fall (i.e., interest-earning
assets generally reprice more quickly than interest-bearing liabilities). When interest rates fall, the Company may attempt to
mitigate some of this negative impact by extending the maturities of assets in investment portfolios to lock in asset yields, and by
lowering rates paid to clients on interest-bearing liabilities. Since the Company establishes the rates paid on certain brokerage
client cash balances and deposits from banking clients, as well as the rates charged on receivables from brokerage clients, and
also controls the composition of its investment securities, it has some ability to manage its net interest spread. The current low
interest rate environment limits the extent to which the Company can reduce interest expense paid on funding sources. However,
the spread is influenced by external factors such as the interest rate environment and competition. For discussion of the impact of
current market conditions on net interest revenue, see �Current Market and Regulatory Environment.�

In clearing its clients� trades, Schwab and optionsXpress, Inc. hold cash balances payable to clients. In most cases, Schwab and
optionsXpress, Inc. pay their clients interest on cash balances awaiting investment, and in turn invest these funds and earn
interest revenue. Receivables from brokerage clients consist primarily of margin loans to brokerage clients. Margin loans are
loans made to clients on a secured basis to purchase securities. Pursuant to applicable regulations, client cash balances that are
not used for margin lending are generally segregated into investment accounts that are maintained for the exclusive benefit of
clients, which are recorded in cash and investments segregated on the Company�s consolidated balance sheet. When investing
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segregated client cash balances, Schwab and optionsXpress, Inc. must adhere to applicable regulations that restrict investments
to securities guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government, participation certificates, mortgage-backed securities
guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association, certificates of deposit issued by U.S. banks and thrifts, and resale
agreements collateralized by qualified securities. Additionally, Schwab and optionsXpress, Inc. have established policies for the
minimum credit quality and maximum maturity of these investments.

Schwab Bank maintains investment portfolios for liquidity as well as to invest funds from deposits in excess of loans to banking
clients and liquidity limits. Schwab Bank�s securities available for sale include residential mortgage-backed securities, certificates
of deposit, corporate debt securities, U.S. agency notes, and asset-backed and other securities. Schwab Bank�s securities held to
maturity include residential mortgage-backed and other securities. Schwab Bank lends funds to banking clients primarily in the
form of mortgage loans and HELOCs. These loans are largely funded by interest-bearing deposits from banking clients.
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The Company�s interest-earning assets are financed primarily by brokerage client cash balances and deposits from banking
clients. Noninterest-bearing funding sources include noninterest-bearing brokerage client cash balances and proceeds from
stock-lending activities, as well as stockholders�equity.

The following table presents net interest revenue information corresponding to interest-earning assets and funding sources on the
consolidated balance sheet:

Year Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009

Average
Balance

Interest
Revenue/
Expense

Average
Yield/
Rate

Average
Balance

Interest
Revenue/
Expense

Average

Yield/
Rate

Average
Balance

Interest
Revenue/
Expense

Average
Yield/
Rate

Interest-earning assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,554 $ 13 0.23% $ 7,269 $ 19 0.26% $ 7,848 $ 33 0.42% 
Cash and investments
segregated 25,831 39 0.15% 19,543 57 0.29% 16,291 80 0.49% 
Broker-related receivables (1) 310 � 0.05% 317 � 0.08% 363 1 0.28% 
Receivables from brokerage
clients 10,637 467 4.39% 8,981 437 4.87% 6,749 351 5.20% 
Other securities owned (1) � � � 74 � 0.45% 126 1 0.79% 
Securities available for sale (2) 27,486 456 1.66% 24,209 486 2.01% 18,558 521 2.81% 
Securities held to maturity 16,050 492 3.07% 10,440 361 3.46% 1,915 74 3.86% 
Loans to banking clients 9,472 310 3.27% 7,987 275 3.44% 6,671 241 3.61% 
Loans held for sale 65 3 4.62% 80 4 5.00% 110 5 4.55% 

Total interest-earning assets 95,405 1,780 1.87% 78,900 1,639 2.08% 58,631 1,307 2.23% 

Other interest revenue 120 84 121

Total interest-earning assets $ 95,405 $ 1,900 1.99% $ 78,900 $ 1,723 2.18% $ 58,631 $ 1,428 2.44% 

Funding sources:
Deposits from banking clients $ 52,701 $ 62 0.12% $ 44,858 $ 105 0.23% $ 31,249 $ 107 0.34% 
Payables to brokerage clients 29,992 3 0.01% 22,715 2 0.01% 18,002 3 0.02% 
Long-term debt 2,004 108 5.39% 1,648 92 5.58% 1,231 71 5.77% 

Total interest-bearing liabilities 84,697 173 0.20% 69,221 199 0.29% 50,482 181 0.36% 

Noninterest-bearing funding
sources 10,708 9,679 8,149
Other interest expense 2 � 2

Total funding sources $ 95,405 $ 175 0.18% $ 78,900 $ 199 0.25% $ 58,631 $ 183 0.32% 

Net interest revenue $ 1,725 1.81% $ 1,524 1.93% $ 1,245 2.12% 
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(1) Interest revenue was less than $500,000 in the period or periods presented.

(2) Amounts have been calculated based on amortized cost.

Net interest revenue increased in 2011 from 2010 primarily due to higher average balances of interest-earning assets, partially
offset by the effect of lower interest rate spreads resulting from higher amortization of premiums relating to residential
mortgage-backed securities. The growth in average balances of deposits from banking clients and payables to brokerage clients
funded the increases in the balances of receivables from brokerage clients, securities available for sale, and securities held to
maturity. Further declines in interest rates in 2011 accelerated the prepayment activity in the Company�s portfolio of residential
mortgage-backed securities, which resulted in higher premium amortization.

Net interest revenue increased in 2010 from 2009 due to higher average balances of interest-earning assets. This resulted from
significant growth in the average balance of deposits from banking clients, which in turn funded increases in the average
balances of securities held to maturity, securities available for sale, and loans to banking clients. These interest-earning assets are
invested at rates above the cost of supporting funding sources. The increase in net interest revenue was partially offset by the
decline in the yields of almost all interest-earning assets compared to 2009.

Trading Revenue

Trading revenue includes commission and principal transaction revenues. Commission revenue is affected by the number of
revenue trades executed and the average revenue earned per revenue trade. Principal transaction revenue is primarily comprised
of revenue from client fixed income securities trading activity. Factors that influence principal transaction revenue include the
volume of client trades and market price volatility.

Trading revenue increased by $97 million, or 12%, in 2011 from 2010 primarily due to higher daily average revenue trades and
the addition of optionsXpress. Trading revenue decreased by $166 million, or 17%, in 2010 from 2009 due to lower
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average revenue per revenue trade resulting from improved online trade pricing for clients and lower daily average revenue
trades.

As shown in the following table, daily average revenue trades increased by 12% in 2011. The increase was primarily due to a
higher volume of option, equity, and mutual fund trades. Average revenue per revenue trade remained relatively flat in 2011.
Daily average revenue trades decreased 5% in 2010 from 2009 primarily due to a lower volume of equity and principal
transaction trades, partially offset by a higher volume of option trades. Average revenue per revenue trade decreased 11% in
2010 from 2009 primarily due to lower online equity trade commissions, which were implemented in January 2010.

Year Ended December 31,
Growth Rate
2010-2011 2011 2010 2009

Daily average revenue trades (1) (in thousands) 12% 303.8 270.7 285.8
Number of trading days � 251.5 251.5 251.0
Average revenue per revenue trade (1%) $       12.15 $       12.28 $       13.86

(1) Includes all client trades that generate trading revenue (i.e., commission revenue or revenue from fixed income securities
trading).

Other Revenue

Other revenue includes software fee revenue relating to the Company�s portfolio management services, exchange processing fee
revenue, gains on sales of mortgage loans, and other service fee revenues. Other revenue increased by $25 million, or 19%, in
2011 compared to 2010 primarily due to increases in software and exchange processing fee revenues, as well as the addition of
education services revenue from the acquisition of optionsXpress. Other revenue was lower by $40 million, or 23%, in 2010
compared to 2009 primarily due to a gain of $31 million on the repurchase of a portion of the Company�s long-term debt in 2009.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses decreased by $9 million, or 33%, in 2011 from 2010, due to a decrease in overall expected loss
rates resulting primarily from a decrease in first mortgage loan delinquencies. The provision for loan losses decreased by
$11 million, or 29%, in 2010 from 2009, primarily due to stabilization in the levels of loan delinquencies and nonaccrual loans in
2010 compared to 2009. Charge-offs were $19 million, $20 million, and $13 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. For
further discussion on the Company�s credit risk and the allowance for loan losses, see �Risk Management � Credit Risk� and �Item 8 �
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data � Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements � 7. Loans to Banking Clients and
Related Allowance for Loan Losses.�
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Net Impairment Losses on Securities

Net impairment losses on securities were $31 million, $36 million, and $60 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. These
charges relate to certain non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities in the Company�s available for sale portfolio as a
result of credit deterioration of the securities� underlying loans. For further discussion, see �Item 8 � Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data � Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements � 6. Securities Available for Sale and Securities Held to
Maturity.�

- 24 -

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 43



Table of Contents

THE CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION

Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Ratios, or as Noted)

Expenses Excluding Interest

As shown in the table below, expenses excluding interest were lower in 2011 compared to 2010 primarily due to certain
significant charges in 2010, including class action litigation and regulatory reserves relating to the Schwab YieldPlus Fund and
losses recognized for Schwab money market mutual funds. The decrease in expenses excluding interest caused by these charges
in 2010 was offset by increases in compensation and benefits, professional services, occupancy and equipment, and advertising
and market development expenses in 2011. Expenses excluding interest were higher in 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due to
the charges previously discussed.

Year Ended December 31,
Growth Rate
2010-2011 2011 2010 2009

Compensation and benefits 10% $ 1,732 $ 1,573 $ 1,544
Professional services 13% 387 341 275
Occupancy and equipment 11% 301 272 318
Advertising and market development 16% 228 196 191
Communications 6% 220 207 206
Depreciation and amortization 6% 155 146 159
Class action litigation and regulatory reserve N/M 7 320 �
Money market mutual fund charges N/M � 132 �
Other (5%) 269 282 224

Total expenses excluding interest (5%) $       3,299 $       3,469 $       2,917

Expenses as a percentage of total net revenues:
Total expenses excluding interest 70% 82% 70% 
Advertising and market development 5% 5% 5% 

N/M Not meaningful.

Compensation and Benefits

Compensation and benefits expense includes salaries and wages, incentive compensation, and related employee benefits and
taxes. Incentive compensation includes variable compensation, discretionary bonus costs, and stock-based compensation.
Variable compensation includes payments to certain individuals based on their sales performance. Discretionary bonus costs are
based on the Company�s overall performance as measured by earnings per share, and therefore will fluctuate with this measure. In
2009, discretionary bonus costs were based on the achievement of specified performance objectives, including revenue growth
and pre-tax profit margin. Stock-based compensation primarily includes employee and board of director stock options, restricted
stock awards, and restricted stock units.
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Compensation and benefits expense increased by $159 million, or 10%, in 2011 from 2010 primarily due to increases in salaries
and wages and incentive compensation. Compensation and benefits expense increased by $29 million, or 2%, in 2010 from 2009
primarily due to an increase in incentive compensation. The following table shows a comparison of certain compensation and
benefits components and employee data:

Year Ended December 31,
Growth Rate
2010-2011 2011 2010 2009

Salaries and wages 9% $ 1,012 $ 931 $ 930
Incentive compensation 15% 444 386 355
Employee benefits and other 8% 276 256 259

Total compensation and benefits expense 10% $       1,732 $       1,573 $       1,544

Compensation and benefits expense as a percentage of total
net revenues:
Salaries and wages 22% 22% 22% 
Incentive compensation 9% 9% 8% 
Employee benefits and other 6% 6% 7% 

Total compensation and benefits expense 37% 37% 37% 

Full-time equivalent employees (in thousands) (1)

At year end 10% 14.1 12.8 12.4
Average 6% 13.4 12.6 12.4

(1) Includes full-time, part-time and temporary employees, and persons employed on a contract basis, and excludes employees
of outsourced service providers.

Salaries and wages increased in 2011 from 2010 primarily due to increases in full-time employees and persons employed on a
contract basis. The increase in full-time employees was partially due to the addition of full-time employees from the
optionsXpress acquisition in September 2011. Incentive compensation increased in 2011 from 2010 primarily due to an increase
in discretionary bonus costs and higher variable compensation. Discretionary bonus costs increased based on the Company�s
overall performance in 2011, as well as an increase in full time employees. Variable compensation was higher primarily due to
the integration of Windhaven, which was acquired in November 2010. Employee benefits and other expense increased in 2011
from 2010 primarily due to increases in payroll taxes and the Company�s 401(k) plan contribution expense as a result of increases
in incentive compensation and full-time employees.

Salaries and wages were relatively flat in 2010 from 2009 primarily due to increases in persons employed on a contract basis and
full-time employees, offset by severance expense of $58 million in 2009 relating to the Company�s cost reduction measures.
Incentive compensation increased in 2010 from 2009 primarily due to higher variable compensation resulting from product sales
performance in the Company�s branch offices and higher stock-based compensation relating to the amortization of its stock
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options and restricted stock units.

Expenses Excluding Compensation and Benefits

Professional services expense increased in 2011 from 2010 primarily due to an increase in fees relating to the Company�s
technology investments and client facing infrastructure, and approximately $10 million in costs relating to the integration of
optionsXpress. Professional services expense increased in 2010 from 2009 primarily due to increases in fees relating to
technology services and enhancements, and investment advisor fees relating to the Company�s managed account service
programs.

Occupancy and equipment expense increased in 2011 from 2010 primarily due to an increase in the Company�s investments in
data processing equipment. Occupancy and equipment expense decreased in 2010 from 2009 primarily due to facilities charges
of $43 million in 2009 relating to the Company�s cost reduction measures.

Advertising and market development expense increased in 2011 from 2010 primarily due to higher spending on customer and
branch promotions and electronic media.
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Communications expense increased in 2011 from 2010 primarily due to higher telephone service expense and third-party news
and information expense.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased in 2011 from 2010 primarily due to higher amortization of intangible assets
resulting from the acquisitions of optionsXpress and Windhaven. Depreciation and amortization expense decreased in 2010 from
2009 primarily due to certain assets becoming fully depreciated.

In 2011 and 2010, the Company recorded class action litigation and regulatory reserves relating to the Schwab YieldPlus Fund.
For further discussion of the Schwab YieldPlus Fund litigation and regulatory matters, see �Item 8 � Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data � Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements � 15. Commitments and Contingencies.�

In 2010, the Company decided to cover the net remaining losses of $132 million recognized by Schwab money market mutual
funds as a result of their investments in a single structured investment vehicle that defaulted in 2008.

Other expense was lower in 2011 compared to 2010 primarily due to a charge of $30 million in 2010, relating to the Company�s
Invest First and WorldPoints Visa credit cards, as the Company ended its sponsorship due to challenging credit card industry
economics. Other expense was higher in 2010 as compared to 2009 primarily due to this charge and an increase in employee
travel expenses.

Taxes on Income

The Company�s effective income tax rate on income before taxes was 37.9% in 2011, 41.7% in 2010, and 38.3% in 2009. The
decrease in 2011 from 2010 was due to a lower effective state income tax rate in 2011 and the impact of non-deductible penalties
relating to the Schwab YieldPlus Fund regulatory settlements recorded in 2010. The increase in 2010 from 2009 was primarily
due to the impact of non-deductible penalties in 2010.

Segment Information

The Company provides financial services to individuals and institutional clients through two segments � Investor Services and
Institutional Services. The Investor Services segment provides retail brokerage and banking services to individual investors. The
Institutional Services segment provides custodial, trading, and support services to independent investment advisors. The
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Institutional Services segment also provides retirement plan services, specialty brokerage services, and mutual fund clearing
services, and supports the availability of Schwab proprietary mutual funds and collective trust funds on third-party platforms.
Banking revenues and expenses are allocated to the Company�s two segments based on which segment services the client. The
Company evaluates the performance of its segments on a pre-tax basis, excluding items such as impairment charges on
non-financial assets, discontinued operations, extraordinary items, and significant restructuring and other charges. Segment
assets and liabilities are not disclosed because the balances are not used for evaluating segment performance and deciding how to
allocate resources to segments.
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Financial information for the Company�s reportable segments is presented in the following tables:

Investor Services Institutional Services

Year Ended December 31,
Growth Rate
2010-2011 2011 2010 2009

Growth Rate
2010-2011 2011 2010 2009

Net Revenues
Asset management andadministration
fees 8% $ 1,053 $ 976 $ 968 3% $ 875 $ 846 $ 907
Net interest revenue 13% 1,468 1,297 1,058 13% 257 227 187
Trading revenue 12% 625 557 679 11% 302 273 317
Other 21% 85 70 93 15% 75 65 82
Provision for loan losses (35%) (15) (23) (34) (25%) (3) (4) (4) 
Net impairment losses on securities (16%) (27) (32) (54) � (4) (4) (6) 

Total net revenues 12% 3,189 2,845 2,710 7% 1,502 1,403 1,483

Expenses Excluding Interest 9% 2,261 2,065 1,906 8% 1,039 960 929

Income before taxes on income 19% $ 928 $ 780 $ 804 5% $ 463 $ 443 $ 554

Unallocated Total

Year Ended December 31,
Growth Rate
2010-2011 2011 2010 2009

Growth Rate
2010-2011 2011 2010 2009

Net Revenues
Asset management andadministration
fees � $ � $ � $ � 6% $ 1,928 $ 1,822 $ 1,875
Net interest revenue � � � � 13% 1,725 1,524 1,245
Trading revenue � � � � 12% 927 830 996
Other � � � � 19% 160 135 175
Provision for loan losses � � � � (33 %) (18) (27) (38) 
Net impairment losseson securities � � � � (14%) (31) (36) (60) 

Total net revenues � � � � 10% 4,691 4,248 4,193

Expenses Excluding Interest N/M (1) 444 82 (5%) 3,299 3,469 2,917

Income before taxes on income N/M $ 1 $ (444) $ (82) 79% $     1,392 $ 779 $     1,276

Taxes on income 62% (528) (325) (489) 

Net Income 90% $ 864 $ 454 $ 787
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N/M Not meaningful.

Investor Services

Net revenues increased by $344 million, or 12%, in 2011 from 2010 primarily due to increases in net interest revenue, asset
management and administration fees, and trading revenue. Net interest revenue increased primarily due to higher average
balances of interest-earning assets during the year, partially offset by the effect of higher premium amortization relating to
residential mortgage-backed securities caused by higher mortgage prepayments in 2011. Asset management and administration
fees increased primarily due to an increase in revenue from the Company�s advice solutions and continued asset inflows, offset by
money market mutual fund fee waivers. Trading revenue increased primarily due to higher daily average revenue trades and the
addition of optionsXpress, which was acquired in September 2011. Expenses excluding interest increased by $196 million, or
9%, in 2011 from 2010 primarily due to increases in compensation and benefits, professional services, and advertising and
market development expenses, which included the integration of optionsXpress.
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Net revenues increased by $135 million, or 5%, in 2010 from 2009 primarily due to an increase in net interest revenue and lower
net impairment losses on securities, partially offset by decreases in trading revenue and other revenue. Net interest revenue
increased due to higher average balances of interest-earning assets, partially offset by a decrease in the average yield earned.
Trading revenue decreased due to lower average revenue per revenue trade resulting from improved online trade pricing for
clients, which was implemented in January 2010, and slightly lower daily average revenue trades in 2010. Other revenue was
lower in comparison to 2009 due to a gain on the repurchase of a portion of the Company�s long-term debt in 2009. While the low
interest rate environment caused additional money market mutual fund fee waivers from 2009, asset management and
administration fees were relatively flat due to higher average asset valuations and continued asset inflows. Expenses excluding
interest increased by $159 million, or 8%, in 2010 from 2009 primarily due to increases in compensation and benefits,
professional services, and other expenses. Other expense includes a charge relating to the Company�s termination of its
sponsorship in its Invest First and WorldPoints Visa credit cards in 2010 as a result of challenging credit card economics.

Institutional Services

Net revenues increased by $99 million, or 7%, in 2011 from 2010 primarily due to increases in net interest revenue, asset
management and administration fees, and trading revenue. Net interest revenue increased primarily due to higher average
balances of interest-earning assets during the year, partially offset by the effect of higher premium amortization relating to
residential mortgage-backed securities caused by higher mortgage prepayments in 2011. Asset management and administration
fees increased primarily due to an increase in mutual fund service fees relating to the Company�s Mutual Fund OneSource funds
as a result of continued asset inflows, offset by money market mutual fund fee waivers. Trading revenue increased primarily due
to higher daily average revenue trades. Expenses excluding interest increased by $79 million, or 8%, in 2011 from 2010
primarily due to increases in compensation and benefits and professional services expenses.

Net revenues decreased by $80 million, or 5%, in 2010 from 2009 due to decreases in asset management and administration fees,
trading revenue, and other revenue, offset by an increase in net interest revenue. Asset management and administration fees
decreased primarily due to money market mutual fund fee waivers, partially offset by the effect of higher average asset
valuations and continued asset inflows. Additionally, in August 2010 management transferred client assets associated with the
Schwab Advisor Network to the Investor Services segment and started recording the related asset management and
administration fee revenue to that segment. Trading revenue decreased due to lower average revenue per revenue trade resulting
from improved online trade pricing for clients, which was implemented in January 2010, and slightly lower daily average
revenue trades in 2010. Other revenue was lower in comparison to 2009 due to a gain on the repurchase of a portion of the
Company�s long-term debt in 2009. Net interest revenue increased due to higher average balances of interest-earning assets,
partially offset by a decrease in the average yield earned. Expenses excluding interest increased by $31 million, or 3%, in 2010
from 2009 primarily due to an increase in compensation and benefits expense.

Unallocated
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Expenses excluding interest in 2010 include class action litigation and regulatory reserves relating to the Schwab YieldPlus Fund
and a charge relating to the Company�s decision to cover the net remaining losses recognized by Schwab money market mutual
funds as a result of their investments in a single structured investment vehicle that defaulted in 2008. Expenses excluding interest
in 2009 include facilities and severance charges relating to the Company�s cost reduction measures.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

CSC conducts substantially all of its business through its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Company�s capital structure is designed
to provide each subsidiary with capital and liquidity to meet its operational needs and regulatory requirements.

CSC is a savings and loan holding company and Schwab Bank, CSC�s depository institution, is a federal savings bank. Prior to
July 21, 2011, CSC and Schwab Bank were both subject to supervision and regulation by the OTS. The Dodd-Frank Act
eliminated the OTS effective July 21, 2011, and as a result, the Federal Reserve became CSC�s primary regulator and the Office
of the Comptroller of the Currency became the primary regulator of Schwab Bank.
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Liquidity

CSC

While CSC is not currently subject to specific statutory capital requirements, CSC is required to serve as a source of strength for
Schwab Bank and must have the ability to provide financial assistance if Schwab Bank experiences financial distress. To manage
capital adequacy, the Company currently utilizes a target Tier 1 Leverage Ratio, as defined by the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System, of at least 6%. At December 31, 2011, the Company�s Tier 1 Leverage Ratio was 6.3%.

CSC�s liquidity needs are generally met through cash generated by its subsidiaries, as well as cash provided by external financing.
CSC has a universal automatic shelf registration statement (Shelf Registration Statement) on file with the SEC which enables
CSC to issue debt, equity and other securities. CSC maintains excess liquidity in the form of overnight cash deposits and
short-term investments to cover daily funding needs and to support growth in the Company�s business. Generally, CSC does not
hold liquidity at its subsidiaries in excess of amounts deemed sufficient to support the subsidiaries� operations, including any
regulatory capital requirements. Schwab, Schwab Bank, and optionsXpress, Inc. are subject to regulatory requirements that may
restrict them from certain transactions with CSC, as further discussed below. Management believes that funds generated by the
operations of CSC�s subsidiaries will continue to be the primary funding source in meeting CSC�s liquidity needs, providing
adequate liquidity to meet Schwab Bank�s capital guidelines, and maintaining Schwab and optionsXpress, Inc.�s net capital.

In January 2012, the Company completed an equity offering of 400,000 shares of its preferred stock under the Shelf Registration
Statement. For further discussion of the equity offering, see �Subsequent Event�.

CSC has liquidity needs that arise from the funding of cash dividends, acquisitions, and investments, as well as its Senior Notes,
Senior Medium-Term Notes, Series A (Medium-Term Notes), and Junior Subordinated Notes. The following are details of CSC�s
long-term debt:

December 31, 2011
Par

Outstanding Maturity Interest Rate Moody�s
Standard
& Poor�s Fitch

Senior Notes $     1,450 2014 � 2020 4.45% to 4.950% fixed A2 A A
Medium Term Notes $ 250 2017 6.375% fixed A2 A A
Junior Subordinated Notes (1) $ 202 2067 7.50% fixed until 2017, Baa1 BBB+ BBB+

floating thereafter
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(1) The Junior Subordinated Notes themselves are not rated, however, the trust preferred securities related to these Junior
Subordinated Notes are rated.

CSC has authorization from its Board of Directors to issue unsecured commercial paper notes (Commercial Paper Notes) not to
exceed $1.5 billion. Management has set a current limit for the commercial paper program of $800 million. The maturities of the
Commercial Paper Notes may vary, but are not to exceed 270 days from the date of issue. The commercial paper is not
redeemable prior to maturity and cannot be voluntarily prepaid. The proceeds of the commercial paper program are to be used
for general corporate purposes. There were no borrowings of Commercial Paper Notes outstanding at December 31, 2011. CSC�s
ratings for these short-term borrowings are P1 by Moody�s, A1 by Standard & Poor�s, and F1 by Fitch.

CSC maintains an $800 million committed, unsecured credit facility with a group of 11 banks, which is scheduled to expire in
June 2012. This facility replaced a similar facility that expired in June 2011 and was unused in 2011. The funds under this
facility are available for general corporate purposes, including repayment of the Commercial Paper Notes discussed above. The
financial covenants under this facility require Schwab to maintain a minimum net capital ratio, as defined, Schwab Bank to be
well capitalized, as defined, and CSC to maintain a minimum level of stockholders� equity. At December 31, 2011, the minimum
level of stockholders� equity required under this facility was $5.0 billion (CSC�s stockholders� equity at December 31, 2011 was
$7.7 billion). Management believes that these restrictions will not have a material effect on CSC�s ability to meet foreseeable
dividend or funding requirements.
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CSC also has direct access to $750 million of the $875 million uncommitted, unsecured bank credit lines discussed below, that
are primarily utilized by Schwab to manage short-term liquidity. These lines were not used by CSC during 2011.

In addition, Schwab provides CSC with a $1.0 billion credit facility maturing in December 2014. This facility replaced a similar
facility that expired in December 2011. There were no funds drawn under this facility at December 31, 2011.

Schwab

Schwab is subject to regulatory requirements that are intended to ensure the general financial soundness and liquidity of
broker-dealers. These regulations prohibit Schwab from repaying subordinated borrowings from CSC, paying cash dividends, or
making unsecured advances or loans to its parent company or employees if such payment would result in a net capital amount of
less than 5% of aggregate debit balances or less than 120% of its minimum dollar requirement of $250,000. At December 31,
2011, Schwab�s net capital was $1.2 billion (10% of aggregate debit balances), which was $948 million in excess of its minimum
required net capital and $588 million in excess of 5% of aggregate debit balances.

Most of Schwab�s assets are readily convertible to cash, consisting primarily of short-term (i.e., less than 150 days)
investment-grade, interest-earning investments (the majority of which are segregated for the exclusive benefit of clients pursuant
to regulatory requirements), receivables from brokerage clients, and receivables from brokers, dealers, and clearing
organizations. Client margin loans are demand loan obligations secured by readily marketable securities. Receivables from and
payables to brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations primarily represent current open transactions, which usually settle, or can
be closed out, within a few business days.

Liquidity needs relating to client trading and margin borrowing activities are met primarily through cash balances in brokerage
client accounts, which were $33.5 billion and $29.9 billion at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Management believes
that brokerage client cash balances and operating earnings will continue to be the primary sources of liquidity for Schwab.

Schwab has a finance lease obligation related to an office building and land under a 20-year lease. The remaining finance lease
obligation of $100 million at December 31, 2011, is being reduced by a portion of the lease payments over the remaining lease
term of 13 years.

To manage short-term liquidity, Schwab maintains uncommitted, unsecured bank credit lines with a group of six banks totaling
$875 million at December 31, 2011. The need for short-term borrowings arises primarily from timing differences between cash
flow requirements, scheduled liquidation of interest-earnings investments, and movements of cash to meet regulatory brokerage
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client cash segregation requirements. Schwab borrowed an average of $41 million per day for nine days in 2011 under these
lines. There were no borrowings outstanding under these lines at December 31, 2011.

To partially satisfy the margin requirement of client option transactions with the Options Clearing Corporation (OCC), Schwab
has unsecured standby letter of credit agreements (LOCs) with eight banks in favor of the OCC aggregating $350 million at
December 31, 2011. In connection with its securities lending activities, Schwab is required to provide collateral to certain
brokerage clients. Schwab satisfies the collateral requirements by arranging LOCs, in favor of these brokerage clients, which are
issued by multiple banks. At December 31, 2011, the aggregate face amount of these LOCs totaled $78 million. There were no
funds drawn under any of these LOCs during 2011.

To manage Schwab�s regulatory capital requirement, CSC provides Schwab with a $1.4 billion subordinated revolving credit
facility, which is scheduled to expire in March 2012. The amount outstanding under this facility at December 31, 2011, was
$245 million. Borrowings under this subordinated lending arrangement qualify as regulatory capital for Schwab.

In addition, CSC provides Schwab with a $2.5 billion credit facility, which is scheduled to expire in December 2014. This
facility replaced a similar facility that expired in December 2011. Borrowings under this facility do not qualify as regulatory
capital for Schwab. There were no funds drawn under this facility at December 31, 2011.
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Schwab Bank

Schwab Bank is required to maintain capital levels as specified in federal banking laws and regulations. Failure to meet the
minimum levels could result in certain mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary actions by the regulators that, if
undertaken, could have a direct material effect on Schwab Bank. Based on its regulatory capital ratios at December 31, 2011,
Schwab Bank is considered well capitalized. Schwab Bank�s regulatory capital and ratios at December 31, 2011, are as follows:

Actual
Minimum Capital
Requirement

Minimum to be
Well Capitalized

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital $     4,984         23.4% $        850           4.0% $     1,276 6.0% 
Total Risk-Based Capital $     5,036 23.7% $     1,701 8.0% $     2,126         10.0% 
Tier 1 Core Capital $     4,984 7.5% $     2,642 4.0% $     3,302 5.0% 
Tangible Equity $     4,984 7.5% $     1,321 2.0% N/A

N/A Not applicable.

Management has established a target Tier 1 Core Capital Ratio for Schwab Bank of at least 7.5%. Schwab Bank�s current
liquidity needs are generally met through deposits from banking clients and equity capital.

The excess cash held in certain Schwab brokerage client accounts is swept into deposit accounts at Schwab Bank. At
December 31, 2011, these balances totaled $40.6 billion.

Schwab Bank has access to traditional funding sources such as deposits, federal funds purchased, and repurchase agreements.
Additionally, Schwab Bank has access to short-term funding through the Federal Reserve Bank (FRB) discount window.
Amounts available under the FRB discount window are dependent on the fair value of certain of Schwab Bank�s securities
available for sale and securities held to maturity that are pledged as collateral. Schwab Bank maintains policies and procedures
necessary to access this funding and tests discount window borrowing procedures annually. At December 31, 2011, $1.2 billion
was available under this arrangement. There were no funds drawn under this arrangement during 2011.

Schwab Bank maintains a credit facility with the Federal Home Loan Bank System. Amounts available under this facility are
dependent on the amount of Schwab Bank�s residential real estate mortgages and HELOCs that are pledged as collateral. At
December 31, 2011, $5.2 billion was available under this facility. There were no funds drawn under this facility during 2011.
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CSC provides Schwab Bank with a $100 million short-term credit facility, which is scheduled to expire in December 2014. This
facility replaced a similar facility that expired in December 2011. Borrowings under this facility do not qualify as regulatory
capital for Schwab Bank. There were no funds drawn under these facilities during 2011.

optionsXpress

optionsXpress, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of optionsXpress, is a registered broker-dealer and is subject to regulatory
requirements that are intended to ensure the general financial soundness and liquidity of broker-dealers. These regulations
prohibit optionsXpress, Inc. from paying cash dividends or making unsecured advances or loans to its parent company or
employees if such payment would result in a net capital amount of less than 5% of aggregate debit balances or less than 120% of
its minimum dollar requirement of $250,000. At December 31, 2011, optionsXpress Inc.�s net capital was $78 million (29% of
aggregate debit balances), which was $73 million in excess of its minimum required net capital and $65 million in excess of 5%
of aggregate debit balances.

optionsXpress, Inc. is also subject to Commodity Futures Trading Commission Regulation 1.17 (Reg. 1.17) under the
Commodity Exchange Act, which also requires the maintenance of minimum net capital. optionsXpress, Inc. as a futures
commission merchant, is required to maintain minimum net capital equal to the greater of its net capital requirement under
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Reg. 1.17 ($1 million), or the sum of 8% of the total risk margin requirements for all positions carried in customer accounts and
8% of the total risk margin requirements for all positions carried in non-customer accounts (as defined in Reg. 1.17).

Liquidity needs relating to client trading and margin borrowing activities are met primarily through cash balances in brokerage
client accounts, which were $1.2 billion at December 31, 2011. Management believes that brokerage client cash balances and
operating earnings will continue to be the primary sources of liquidity for optionsXpress, Inc.

CSC provides optionsXpress, Inc. with a $100 million credit facility, which is scheduled to expire in December 2014.
Borrowings under this facility do not qualify as regulatory capital for optionsXpress, Inc. There were no funds drawn under this
facility since the acquisition date.

optionsXpress has a term loan with CSC, of which $118 million was outstanding at December 31, 2011, and matures in
December 2014.

Capital Resources

The Company monitors both the relative composition and absolute level of its capital structure. Management is focused on
limiting the Company�s use of capital and currently targets a long-term debt to total financial capital ratio not to exceed 30%. The
Company�s total financial capital (long-term debt plus stockholders� equity) at December 31, 2011, was $9.7 billion, up
$1.5 billion, or 18%, from December 31, 2010. At December 31, 2011, the Company had long-term debt of $2.0 billion, or 21%
of total financial capital, that bears interest at a weighted-average rate of 5.24%. At December 31, 2010, the Company had
long-term debt of $2.0 billion, or 24% of total financial capital. The Company repaid $116 million of long-term debt in 2011,
which included the pay off of long-term debt acquired from optionsXpress of $110 million subsequent to the acquisition date. In
2010, the Company issued $700 million of additional Senior Notes that mature in 2020 and have a fixed interest rate of 4.45%.
The Company repaid $205 million of long-term debt in 2010, which included the maturity of $200 million of Medium-Term
Notes.

The Company�s cash position (reported as cash and cash equivalents on its consolidated balance sheet) and cash flows are
affected by changes in brokerage client cash balances and the associated amounts required to be segregated under regulatory
guidelines. Timing differences between cash and investments actually segregated on a given date and the amount required to be
segregated for that date may arise in the ordinary course of business and are addressed by the Company in accordance with
applicable regulations. Other factors which affect the Company�s cash position and cash flows include investment activity in
securities, levels of capital expenditures, acquisition and divestiture activity, banking client deposit activity, brokerage and
banking client loan activity, financing activity in long-term debt, payments of dividends, and repurchases and issuances of CSC�s
preferred and common stock. The combination of these factors can cause significant fluctuations in the cash position during
specific time periods.

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 60



Capital Expenditures

The Company�s capital expenditures were $190 million (4% of net revenues) and $127 million (3% of net revenues) in 2011 and
2010, respectively. Capital expenditures in 2011 and 2010 were primarily for software and equipment relating to the Company�s
information technology systems, capitalized costs for developing internal-use software, and leasehold improvements. Capitalized
costs for developing internal-use software were $57 million and $21 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Management currently anticipates that 2012 capital expenditures will be approximately 30% lower than 2011 spending primarily
due to decreased spending on software and equipment relating to the Company�s information technology systems, capitalized
costs for developing internal-use software, and leasehold improvements. As has been the case in recent years, the Company may
adjust its capital expenditures periodically as business conditions change. Management believes that funds generated by its
operations will continue to be the primary funding source of its capital expenditures.
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Equity Offering

On January 26, 2010, the Company sold 29,670,300 shares of its common stock, $.01 par value, at a public offering price of
$19.00 per share. Net proceeds received from the offering were $543 million and were used to support the Company�s balance
sheet growth, including expansion of its deposit base and migration of certain client balances from money market funds into
deposit accounts at Schwab Bank.

Dividends

CSC paid common stock cash dividends of $295 million ($0.24 per share) and $288 million ($0.24 per share) in 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Since the initial dividend in 1989, CSC has paid 91 consecutive quarterly dividends and has increased the quarterly
dividend rate 19 times, including a 20% increase in the third quarter of 2008. Since 1989, dividends have increased by a 24%
compounded annual growth rate, excluding the special cash dividend of $1.00 per common share in 2007. While the payment
and amount of dividends are at the discretion of the Board of Directors, subject to certain regulatory and other restrictions, the
Company currently targets its cash dividend at approximately 20% to 30% of net income.

Under the terms of the Series A Preferred Stock issued in January 2012, the Company�s ability to pay dividends on, make
distributions with respect to, or to repurchase, redeem or acquire its common stock is subject to restrictions in the event that the
Company does not declare and either pay or set aside a sum sufficient for payment of dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock
for the immediately preceding dividend period.

Share Repurchases

There were no repurchases of CSC�s common stock in 2011 or 2010. As of December 31, 2011, CSC had remaining authority
from the Board of Directors to repurchase up to $596 million of its common stock, which does not have an expiration date.

Business Acquisitions

On September 1, 2011, the Company completed its acquisition of all of the outstanding common shares of optionsXpress, an
online brokerage firm primarily focused on equity option securities and futures, for total consideration of $714 million. Under
the terms of the merger agreement, optionsXpress stockholders received 1.02 shares of the Company�s common stock for each
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share of optionsXpress stock. As a result, the Company issued 59 million shares of the Company�s common stock valued at
$710 million, based on the closing price of the Company�s common stock on September 1, 2011. The Company also assumed
optionsXpress� stock-based compensation awards valued at $4 million.

On November 9, 2010, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of Windward for $106 million in common stock and
$44 million in cash.

For more information on the acquisitions of optionsXpress and Windward, see �Item 8 � Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data � Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements � 3. Business Acquisitions�.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company enters into various off-balance sheet arrangements in the ordinary course of business, primarily to meet the needs
of its clients. These arrangements include firm commitments to extend credit. Additionally, the Company enters into guarantees
and other similar arrangements as part of transactions in the ordinary course of business. For information on each of these
arrangements, see �Item 8 � Financial Statements and Supplementary Data � Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements � 15.
Commitments and Contingencies.�
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Contractual Obligations

The Company�s principal contractual obligations as of December 31, 2011, are shown in the following table. Management
believes that funds generated by its continuing operations, as well as cash provided by external financing, will continue to be the
primary funding sources in meeting these obligations. Excluded from this table are liabilities recorded on the consolidated
balance sheet that are generally short-term in nature (e.g., payables to brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations) or without
contractual payment terms (e.g., deposits from banking clients, payables to brokerage clients, and deferred compensation).

Less than
1 Year

1-3
    Years    

3-5
    Years    

More than
5 Years Total

Credit-related financial instruments (1) $ 757 $ 725 $ 1,130 $ 3,186 $ 5,798
Long-term debt (2) 99 930 125 1,309 2,463
Leases (3) 96 150 110 201 557
Purchase obligations (4) 118 81 33 1 233

Total $     1,070 $     1,886 $     1,398 $     4,697 $     9,051

(1) Represents Schwab Bank�s firm commitments to extend credit to banking clients.

(2) Includes estimated future interest payments through 2020 for Senior Notes and through 2017 for Medium-Term Notes and
Junior Subordinated Notes. The Junior Subordinated Notes have a fixed interest rate of 7.50% until 2017 and a floating rate
from 2018 to 2067. Based on the current interest rate of 7.50% and no repayments of principal, the estimated future interest
payments on the Junior Subordinated Notes in 2018 to 2067 would be $15 million per year. Amounts exclude maturities
under a finance lease obligation and unamortized discounts and premiums.

(3) Represents minimum rental commitments, net of sublease commitments, and includes facilities under the Company�s past
restructuring initiatives and rental commitments under a finance lease obligation.

(4) Consists of purchase obligations for services such as advertising and marketing, telecommunications, professional services,
and hardware- and software-related agreements. Includes purchase obligations that can be canceled by the Company
without penalty.

RISK MANAGEMENT
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Overview

The Company�s business activities expose it to a variety of risks, including technology, operations, credit, market, liquidity, legal,
and reputational risk. Identification and management of these risks are essential to the success and financial soundness of the
Company.

Senior management takes an active role in the Company�s risk management process and has developed policies and procedures
under which specific business and control units are responsible for identifying, measuring, and controlling various risks.
Oversight of risk management has been delegated to the Global Risk Committee, which is comprised of senior managers of
major business and control functions. The Global Risk Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the Company�s
risk exposures and leading the continued development of the Company�s risk management policies and practices.

Functional risk sub-committees focusing on specific areas of risk report into the Global Risk Committee. These sub-committees
include the:

� Corporate Asset-Liability Management and Pricing Committee, which focuses on the Company�s liquidity,
capital resources, interest rate risk, and investments;

� Credit and Market Risk Oversight Committee, which focuses on credit exposures resulting from client borrowing
activity (e.g., margin lending activities and loans to banking clients), investing activities of certain of the Company�s
proprietary funds, corporate credit and investment activity, and market risk resulting from the Company taking
positions in certain securities to facilitate client trading activity;
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� Information Security and Privacy Steering Committee, which oversees information security and privacy policies,
procedures and controls;

� Investment Management and ERISA Risk Committee, which oversees activities in which the Company and its
principals operate in an investment advisory capacity or as an ERISA fiduciary;

� Investment Products Review Board, which provides senior level oversight of investment products and services made
available to clients; and

� Operational Risk Management Committee, which focuses on risks relating to potential inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems, and from external events and relationships (e.g., vendors and business partners).

The Global Risk Committee reports regularly to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (Audit Committee), which
reviews major risk exposures and the steps management has taken to monitor and control such exposures.

The Company�s Disclosure Committee is responsible for monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of the Company�s
(a) disclosure controls and procedures and (b) internal control over financial reporting as of the end of each fiscal quarter. The
Disclosure Committee reports on this evaluation to the CEO and CFO prior to their certification required by Sections 302 and
906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002.

The Company�s compliance, finance, internal audit, legal, and corporate risk management departments assist management and the
various risk committees in evaluating, testing, and monitoring the Company�s risk management.

Risk is inherent in the Company�s business. Consequently, despite the Company�s efforts to identify areas of risk and implement
risk management policies and procedures, there can be no assurance that the Company will not suffer unexpected losses due to
operating or other risks. The following discussion highlights the Company�s policies and procedures for identification,
assessment, and management of the principal areas of risk in its operations.

Technology and Operating Risk

Technology and operating risk is the potential for loss due to deficiencies in control processes or technology systems that
constrain the Company�s ability to gather, process, and communicate information and process client transactions efficiently and
securely, without interruptions. The Company�s operations are highly dependent on the integrity of its technology systems and
the Company�s success depends, in part, on its ability to make timely enhancements and additions to its technology in
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anticipation of evolving client needs. To the extent the Company experiences system interruptions, errors or downtime (which
could result from a variety of causes, including changes in client use patterns, technological failure, changes to its systems,
linkages with third-party systems, and power failures), the Company�s business and operations could be significantly negatively
impacted. To minimize business interruptions, Schwab has two data centers intended, in part, to further improve the recovery of
business processing in the event of an emergency. The Company is committed to an ongoing process of upgrading, enhancing,
and testing its technology systems. This effort is focused on meeting client needs, meeting market and regulatory changes, and
deploying standardized technology platforms.

Technology and operating risk also includes the risk of human error, employee misconduct, external fraud, computer viruses,
distributed denial of service attacks, terrorist attacks, and natural disaster. Employee misconduct could include fraud and
misappropriation of client or Company assets, improper use or disclosure of confidential client or Company information, and
unauthorized activities, such as transactions exceeding acceptable risks or authorized limits. External fraud includes
misappropriation of client or Company assets by third parties, including through unauthorized access to Company systems and
data and client accounts. The frequency and sophistication of such fraud attempts continue to increase.

The Company has specific policies and procedures to identify and manage operational risk, and uses periodic risk
self-assessments and internal audit reviews to evaluate the effectiveness of these internal controls. The Company maintains
backup and recovery functions, including facilities for backup and communications, and conducts periodic testing of disaster
recovery plans. The Company also maintains policies and procedures and technology to protect against fraud and unauthorized
access to systems and data.
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Despite the Company�s risk management efforts, it is not always possible to deter or prevent technological or operational failure,
or fraud or other misconduct, and the precautions taken by the Company may not be effective in all cases. The Company may be
subject to litigation, losses, and regulatory actions in such cases, and may be required to expend significant additional resources
to remediate vulnerabilities or other exposures.

The Company also faces technology and operating risk when it employs the services of various external vendors, including
domestic and international outsourcing of certain technology, processing, servicing, and support functions. The Company
manages its exposure to external vendor risk through contractual provisions, control standards, and ongoing monitoring of
vendor performance. The Company maintains policies and procedures regarding the standard of care expected with Company
data, whether the data is internal company information, employee information, or non-public client information. The Company
clearly defines for employees, contractors, and vendors the Company�s expected standards of care for confidential data. Regular
training is provided by the Company in regard to data security.

The Company is actively engaged in the research and development of new technologies, services, and products. The Company
endeavors to protect its research and development efforts, and its brands, through the use of copyrights, patents, trade secrets,
and contracts.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential for loss due to a borrower, counterparty, or issuer failing to perform its contractual obligations. The
Company�s direct exposure to credit risk mainly results from margin lending activities, securities lending activities, mortgage
lending activities, its role as a counterparty in financial contracts and investing activities. To manage the risks of such losses, the
Company has established policies and procedures which include: establishing and reviewing credit limits, monitoring of credit
limits and quality of counterparties, and adjusting margin requirements for certain securities. Most of the Company�s credit
extensions are supported by collateral arrangements. Collateral arrangements relating to margin loans, securities lending
agreements, and resale agreements include provisions that require additional collateral in the event that market fluctuations result
in declines in the value of collateral received.

The Company�s credit risk exposure related to loans to banking clients is actively managed through individual and portfolio
reviews performed by management. Management regularly reviews asset quality including concentrations, delinquencies,
nonaccrual loans, charge-offs, and recoveries. All are factors in the determination of an appropriate allowance for loan losses,
which is reviewed quarterly by senior management. The Company�s mortgage loan portfolios primarily include first lien
residential real estate mortgage loans (First Mortgage) of $5.6 billion and HELOCs of $3.5 billion at December 31, 2011.

The Company�s First Mortgage portfolio underwriting requirements are generally consistent with the underwriting requirements
in the secondary market for loan portfolios. The Company�s guidelines include maximum loan-to-value (LTV) ratios, cash out
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limits, and minimum Fair Issac & Company (FICO) credit scores. The specific guidelines are dependent on the individual
characteristics of a loan (for example, whether the property is a primary or secondary residence, whether the loan is for
investment property, whether the loan is for an initial purchase of a home or refinance of an existing home, and whether the loan
is conforming or jumbo). These credit underwriting standards have limited the exposure to the types of loans that experienced
high foreclosures and loss rates elsewhere in the industry in recent years. There have been no significant changes to the LTV
ratio or FICO credit score guidelines related to the Company�s First Mortgage or HELOC portfolios during 2011. At
December 31, 2011, the weighted-average originated LTV ratios were 60% and 59% for the First Mortgage and HELOC
portfolios, respectively. The computation of the origination LTV ratio for a HELOC includes any first lien mortgage outstanding
on the same property at the time of origination. At December 31, 2011, 22% of HELOCs ($755 million of the HELOC portfolio)
were in a first lien position. The weighted-average originated FICO credit scores were 766 and 768 for the First Mortgage and
HELOC portfolios, respectively.

The Company does not offer loans that allow for negative amortization and does not originate or purchase subprime loans
(generally defined as extensions of credit to borrowers with a FICO credit score of less than 620 at origination), unless the
borrower has compensating credit factors. At December 31, 2011, approximately 1% of both the First Mortgage and HELOC
portfolios consisted of loans to borrowers with FICO credit scores of less than 620.
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The following table presents certain of the Company�s loan quality metrics as a percentage of total outstanding loans:

December 31, 2011 2010
Loan delinquencies (1) 0.81% 0.96% 
Nonaccrual loans 0.53% 0.58% 
Allowance for loan losses 0.55% 0.60% 

(1) Loan delinquencies are defined as loans that are 30 days or more past due.

The Company has exposure to credit risk associated with its securities available for sale and securities held to maturity
portfolios, whose fair values totaled $34.0 billion and $15.5 billion at December 31, 2011, respectively. These portfolios include
U.S. agency and non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities, certificates of deposit, corporate debt securities, U.S.
agency notes, and asset-backed and other securities. U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed securities do not have explicit
credit ratings, however, management considers these to be of the highest credit quality and rating given the guarantee of
principal and interest by the U.S. government-sponsored enterprises. Included in non-agency residential mortgage-backed
securities are securities collateralized by loans that are considered to be �Prime� (defined by the Company as loans to borrowers
with a FICO credit score of 620 or higher at origination), and �Alt-A� (defined by the Company as Prime loans with reduced
documentation at origination).

Residential mortgage-backed securities, particularly Alt-A securities experienced continued credit deterioration in 2011,
including increased payment delinquency rates and losses on foreclosures of underlying mortgages. For a discussion of the
impact of current market conditions on residential mortgage-backed securities, see �Current Market and Regulatory Environment.�
At December 31, 2011, non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities consisted of 3%, based on amortized cost, of total
residential mortgage-backed securities. These securities were originated between 2003 and 2007. At December 31, 2011, all of
the corporate debt securities and non-mortgage asset-backed securities were rated investment grade (defined as a rating
equivalent to a Moody�s rating of �Baa� or higher, or a Standard & Poor�s rating of �BBB-� or higher).

Schwab performs clearing services for all securities transactions in its client accounts. Schwab has exposure to credit risk due to
its obligation to settle transactions with clearing corporations, mutual funds, and other financial institutions even if Schwab�s
client or a counterparty fails to meet its obligations to Schwab.

The Company sponsors a number of proprietary money market mutual funds and other proprietary funds. Although the Company
has no obligation to do so, the Company may decide for competitive reasons to provide credit, liquidity or other support to its
funds in the event of significant declines in valuation of fund holdings or significant redemption activity that exceeds available
liquidity. Such support could cause the Company to take significant charges and could reduce the Company�s liquidity. If the
Company chose not to provide credit, liquidity or other support in such a situation, the Company could suffer reputational
damage and its business could be adversely affected.
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Concentration Risk

The Company has exposure to concentration risk when holding large positions in financial instruments collateralized by assets
with similar economic characteristics or in securities of a single issuer or industry.

The fair value of the Company�s investments in residential mortgage-backed securities totaled $37.0 billion at December 31,
2011. Of these, $36.1 billion were U.S. agency securities and $907 million were non-agency securities. The U.S. agency
securities are included in securities available for sale and securities held to maturity and the non-agency securities are included in
securities available for sale. Included in non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities are securities collateralized by Alt-A
loans. At December 31, 2011, the amortized cost and fair value of Alt-A mortgage-backed securities were $390 million and
$279 million, respectively.
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The Company�s investments in corporate debt securities and commercial paper totaled $5.6 billion at December 31, 2011, with
the majority issued by institutions in the financial services industry. These securities are included in securities available for sale,
securities held to maturity, cash and investments segregated and on deposit for regulatory purposes, cash and cash equivalents,
and other securities owned in the Company�s consolidated balance sheets. At December 31, 2011, the Company held
$867 million of corporate debt securities issued by financial institutions and guaranteed under the FDIC Temporary Liquidity
Guarantee Program.

The Company�s loans to banking clients include $5.6 billion of adjustable rate first lien residential real estate mortgage loans at
December 31, 2011. The Company�s adjustable rate mortgages have initial fixed interest rates for three to ten years and interest
rates that adjust annually thereafter. Approximately 60% of these mortgages consisted of loans with interest-only payment terms.
The interest rates on approximately 65% of these interest-only loans are not scheduled to reset for three or more years. The
Company�s mortgage loans do not include interest terms described as temporary introductory rates below current market rates. At
December 31, 2011, 44% of the residential real estate mortgages and 50% of the HELOC balances were secured by properties
which are located in California.

The Company also has exposure to concentration risk from its margin and securities lending activities collateralized by securities
of a single issuer or industry.

The Company has indirect exposure to U.S. Government and agency securities held as collateral to secure its resale agreements.
The Company�s primary credit exposure on these resale transactions is with its counterparty. The Company would have exposure
to the U.S. Government and agency securities only in the event of the counterparty�s default on the resale agreements. The fair
value of U.S. Government and agency securities held as collateral for resale agreements totaled $18.3 billion at December 31,
2011.

European Holdings

The Company has exposure to non-sovereign financial institutions in Europe. The following table shows the amortized cost and
fair values of cash equivalents, cash segregated and on deposit for regulatory purposes, securities available for sale, and
securities held to maturity by each country in Europe in which the issuer or counterparty is domiciled. The Company has no
direct exposure to sovereign governments in Europe. The Company does not have unfunded commitments to counterparties in
Europe, nor does it have exposure as a result of credit default protection purchased or sold separately as of December 31, 2011.

The determination of the domicile of exposure varies by the type of investment. For time deposits and certificates of deposit, the
exposure is grouped in the country in which the financial institution is chartered under the regulatory framework of the European
country. For asset-backed commercial paper, the exposure is grouped by the country of the sponsoring bank that provides the
credit and liquidity support for such instruments. For corporate debt securities, the exposure is grouped by the country in which
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the issuer is domiciled. In situations in which the Company invests in a corporate debt security of a U.S. subsidiary of a
European parent company, such holdings will be attributable to the European country only if significant reliance is placed on the
European parent company for credit support underlying the security. For substantially all of the holdings listed below, the issuers
or counterparties were financial institutions. All of the Company�s resale agreements, which are included in investments
segregated and on deposit for regulatory purposes, are collateralized by U.S. government securities. Additionally, the Company�s
securities lending activities are collateralized by cash. Therefore, the Company�s resale agreements and securities lending
activities are not included in the table below even if the counterparty is a European institution.
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Fair Value as of December 31, 2011

Denmark France Germany Netherlands Sweden Switzerland
United
Kingdom Total

Cash equivalents:
Time deposits $ � $ 850 $ 389 $ � $ � $ � $ 200 $ 1,439
Commercial paper � 350 20 � � � 200 570

Cash segregated and on deposit
for regulatory purposes:
Trust deposits � � 400 � � � � 400

Securities available for sale:
Certificates of deposit � 300 150 300 499 550 700 2,499
Corporate debt securities 214 74 � 187 97 � 550 1,122

Securities held to maturity:
Corporate debt securities � � � � 117 100 � 217

Total fair value $ 214 $ 1,574 $ 959 $ 487 $ 713 $ 650 $ 1,650 $ 6,247

Total amortized cost $ 212 $ 1,575 $ 959 $ 492 $ 716 $ 650 $ 1,650 $ 6,254

Maturities:
Overnight $ � $ 1,200 $ 789 $ � $ � $ � $ 200 $ 2,189
1 day � < 6 months � 174 20 200 200 150 700 1,444
6 months � < 1 year � 100 � � 117 274 650 1,141
1 year � 2 years 214 100 150 187 299 126 100 1,176
> 2 years � � � 100 97 100 � 297

Total fair value $ 214 $ 1,574 $ 959 $ 487 $ 713 $ 650 $ 1,650 $ 6,247

In addition to the direct holdings of European companies listed above, the Company also has indirect exposure to Europe
through its investments in Schwab sponsored money market funds (collectively, the Funds) resulting from clearing activities. At
December 31, 2011, the Company had $332 million in investments in these Funds. Certain of the Funds� positions include
certificates of deposits, time deposits, commercial paper and corporate debt securities issued by counterparties in Europe.

Management mitigates exposure to European holdings by employing a separate team of credit analysts that evaluate each issuer,
counterparty, and country. Management monitors its exposure to European issuers by 1) performing risk assessments of the
foreign countries, which include evaluating the size of the country and economy, currency trends, political landscape and the
countries� regulatory environment and developments, 2) performing ad hoc stress tests that evaluate the impact of sovereign
governments� debt write-downs on the issuers and counterparties to our investments, 3) reviewing publicly available stress tests
that are published by various regulators in the European market, 4) establishing credit and maturity limits by issuer, and 5)
monitoring aggregate exposures by country.
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Market Risk

Market risk is the potential for changes in revenue or the value of financial instruments held by the Company as a result of
fluctuations in interest rates, equity prices or market conditions. For discussion of the Company�s market risk, see �Item 7A �
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.�

Fiduciary Risk

Fiduciary risk is the potential for financial or reputational loss through breach of fiduciary duties to a client. Fiduciary activities
include, but are not limited to, individual and institutional trust, investment management, custody, and cash and securities
processing. The Company attempts to manage this risk by establishing procedures to ensure that obligations to clients are
discharged faithfully and in compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements. Business units have the
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primary responsibility for adherence to the procedures applicable to their business. Guidance and control are provided through
the creation, approval, and ongoing review of applicable policies by business units and various risk committees.

Legal and Regulatory Risk

The Company faces significant legal and compliance risk in its business, and the volume of litigation and regulatory proceedings
against financial services firms and the amount of damages claimed have been increasing. Among other things, these risks relate
to the suitability of client investments, conflicts of interest, disclosure obligations and performance expectations for Company
products and services, supervision of employees, and the adequacy of the Company�s controls. Claims against the Company may
increase due to a variety of factors, such as if clients suffer losses during a period of deteriorating equity market conditions, as
the Company increases the level of advice it provides to clients, and as the Company enhances the services it provides to IAs. In
addition, the Company and its affiliates are subject to extensive regulation by federal, state and foreign regulatory authorities,
and SROs, and such regulation is becoming increasingly extensive and complex.

The Company attempts to manage legal and compliance risk through policies and procedures reasonably designed to avoid
litigation claims and prevent or detect violations of applicable legal and regulatory requirements. These procedures address
issues such as business conduct and ethics, sales and trading practices, marketing and communications, extension of credit, client
funds and securities, books and records, anti-money laundering, client privacy, employment policies, and contracts management.
Despite the Company�s efforts to maintain an effective compliance program and internal controls, legal breaches and rule
violations could result in reputational harm, significant losses and disciplinary sanctions, including limitations on the Company�s
business activities.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company uses fair value measurements to record certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, and to determine fair
value disclosures. Assets are measured at fair value using quoted prices or market-based information and accordingly are
classified as Level 1 or Level 2 measurements in accordance with the fair value hierarchy described in fair value measurement
accounting guidance. Liabilities recorded at fair value were not material at December 31, 2011 or 2010. See �Item 8 � Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data � Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements � 17. Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities� for
more information on the Company�s assets and liabilities recorded at fair value.

When available, the Company uses quoted prices in active markets to measure the fair value of assets and liabilities. When
quoted prices do not exist, the Company uses prices obtained from independent third-party pricing services to measure the fair
value of investment assets. The Company validates prices received from the pricing services using various methods, including
comparison to prices received from additional pricing services, comparison to quoted market prices, where available, comparison
to internal valuation models, and review of other relevant market data. The Company does not adjust the prices received from
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independent third-party pricing services unless such prices are inconsistent with the definition of fair value and result in a
material difference in the recorded amounts. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company did not adjust prices received from
independent third-party pricing services.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the U.S. While the majority of the Company�s revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are not based on estimates,
there are certain accounting principles that require management to make estimates regarding matters that are uncertain and
susceptible to change where such change may result in a material adverse impact on the Company�s financial position and
reported financial results. These critical accounting estimates are described below. Management regularly reviews the estimates
and assumptions used in the preparation of the Company�s financial statements for reasonableness and adequacy.
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(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Ratios, or as Noted)

Other-than-Temporary Impairment of Securities Available for Sale and Securities Held to Maturity: Management evaluates
whether securities available for sale and securities held to maturity are other-than-temporarily impaired (OTTI) on a quarterly
basis. Debt securities with unrealized losses are considered OTTI if the Company intends to sell the security or if it is more likely
than not that the Company will be required to sell such security prior to any anticipated recovery. If management determines that
a security is OTTI under these circumstances, the impairment recognized in earnings is measured as the entire difference
between the amortized cost and the then-current fair value.

A security is also OTTI if management does not expect to recover the amortized cost of the security. In this circumstance,
management utilizes cash flow models to estimate the expected future cash flow from the securities and to estimate the credit
loss. The impairment recognized in earnings is measured by the difference between the present value of expected cash flows and
the amortized cost of the security. Expected cash flows are discounted using the security�s effective interest rate.

The evaluation of whether the Company expects to recover the amortized cost of a security is inherently judgmental. The
evaluation includes the assessment of several bond performance indicators including: the portion of the underlying loans that are
delinquent (30 days, 60 days, 90+ days), in bankruptcy, in foreclosure or converted to real estate owned; the actual amount of
loss incurred on the underlying loans in which the property has been foreclosed and sold; the amount of credit support provided
by the structure of the security available to absorb credit losses on the underlying loans; the current price and magnitude of the
unrealized loss; and whether the Company has received all scheduled principal and interest payments. Management uses cash
flow models to further assess the likelihood of other-than-temporary impairment for the Company�s non-agency residential
mortgage-backed securities. To develop the cash flow models, the Company uses forecasted loss severity, prepayment speeds
(i.e. the rate at which the principal on underlying loans are paid down), and default rates over the securities� expected remaining
maturities.

Valuation of Goodwill: The Company tests goodwill for impairment at least annually, or whenever indications of impairment
exist. An impairment exists when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, resulting in an impairment
charge for this excess.

The Company has elected April 1st as its annual goodwill impairment testing date. In testing for a potential impairment of
goodwill on April 1, 2011, management estimated the fair value of each of the Company�s reporting units (generally defined as
the Company�s businesses for which financial information is available and reviewed regularly by management) and compared
this value to the carrying value of the reporting unit. The estimated fair value of each reporting unit substantially exceeded its
carrying value, and therefore management concluded that no amount of goodwill was impaired. The estimated fair value of the
reporting units was established using a discounted cash flow model that includes significant assumptions about the future
operating results and cash flows of each reporting unit. Adverse changes in the Company�s planned business operations such as
unanticipated competition, a loss of key personnel, the sale of a reporting unit or a significant portion of a reporting unit, or other
unforeseen developments could result in an impairment of the Company�s recorded goodwill.
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Allowance for Loan Losses: The adequacy of the allowance is reviewed quarterly by management, taking into consideration
current economic conditions, the existing loan portfolio composition, past loss experience, and risks inherent in the portfolio.

The process to establish an allowance for loan losses utilizes loan-level statistical models that estimate prepayments, defaults,
and probable losses for the loan segments based on predicted behavior of individual loans within the segments. The methodology
considers the effects of borrower behavior and a variety of factors including, but not limited to, interest rates, housing price
movements as measured by a housing price index, economic conditions, estimated defaults and foreclosures measured by
historical and expected delinquencies, changes in prepayment speeds, loan-to-value ratios, past loss experience, estimates of
future loss severities, borrower credit risk measured by FICO scores, and the adequacy of collateral. The methodology also
evaluates concentrations in the loan segments including loan products, year of origination, geographical distribution of collateral,
and the portion of borrowers who have other client relationships with the Company.

The more significant variables considered include a measure of delinquency roll rates, loss severity, housing prices, and interest
rates. Delinquency roll rates (i.e., the rates at which loans transition through delinquency stages and ultimately result
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(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Ratios, or as Noted)

in a loss) are estimated from the Company�s historical loss experience adjusted for current trends and market information. Loss
severity estimates are based on the Company�s historical loss experience and market trends. Housing price trends are derived
from historical home price indices and econometric forecasts of future home values. Factors affecting the home price index
include: housing inventory, unemployment, interest rates, and inflation expectations. Interest rate projections are based on the
current term structure of interest rates and historical volatilities to project various possible future interest rate paths. This
quarterly analysis results in a loss factor that is applied to the outstanding balances to determine the allowance for loan loss for
each loan segment.

Legal Reserve: Reserves for legal and regulatory claims and proceedings reflect an estimate of probable losses for each matter,
after considering, among other factors, the progress of the case, prior experience and the experience of others in similar cases,
available defenses, insurance coverage and indemnification, and the opinions and views of legal counsel. In many cases,
including most class action lawsuits, it is not possible to determine whether a loss will be incurred, or to estimate the range of
that loss, until the matter is close to resolution, in which case no accrual is made until that time. Reserves are adjusted as more
information becomes available or when an event occurs requiring a change. Significant judgment is required in making these
estimates, and the actual cost of resolving a matter may ultimately differ materially from the amount reserved.

The Company�s management has discussed the development and selection of these critical accounting estimates with the Audit
Committee. Additionally, management has reviewed with the Audit Committee the Company�s significant estimates discussed in
this Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

In addition to historical information, this Annual Report on Form 10-K contains �forward-looking statements� within the meaning
of Section 27A of the Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking statements are
identified by words such as �believe,� �anticipate,� �expect,� �intend,� �plan,� �will,� �may,� �estimate,� �appear,� �aim,� �target,� �could,� and other
similar expressions. In addition, any statements that refer to expectations, projections, or other characterizations of future events
or circumstances are forward-looking statements.

These forward-looking statements, which reflect management�s beliefs, objectives, and expectations as of the date hereof, are
necessarily estimates based on the best judgment of the Company�s senior management. These statements relate to, among other
things:

� the Company�s ability to pursue its business strategy (see �Part I � Item 1. � Business � Business Strategy and Competitive
Environment�);
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� the impact of legal proceedings and regulatory matters (see �Part I � Item 3. � Legal Proceedings� and �Item 8 � Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data � Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements �15. Commitments and Contingencies �
Legal Contingencies�);

� the impact of current market conditions on the Company�s results of operations (see �Current Market and
Regulatory Environment� and �Item 8 � Financial Statements and Supplementary Data � Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements � 6. Securities Available for Sale and Securities Held to Maturity�);

� sources of liquidity, capital, and level of dividends (see �Liquidity and Capital Resources� and �Contractual Obligations�);

� target capital ratios (see �Liquidity and Capital Resources� and �Item 8 � Financial Statements and Supplementary Data �
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements � 24. Regulatory Requirements�);

� capital expenditures (see �Liquidity and Capital Resources � Capital Resources�);

� the impact of changes in management�s estimates on the Company�s results of operations (see �Critical Accounting
Estimates�);

� the impact of changes in the likelihood of indemnification and guarantee payment obligations on the Company�s results
of operations (see �Item 8 � Financial Statements and Supplementary Data � Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements �
15. Commitments and Contingencies�); and
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� the impact on the Company�s results of operations of recording stock option expense (see �Item 8 � Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data � Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements � 20. Employee Incentive,
Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Plans�).

Achievement of the expressed beliefs, objectives and expectations described in these statements is subject to certain risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from the expressed beliefs, objectives, and expectations. Readers
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K or, in the case of documents incorporated by reference, as of the date of those documents.

Important factors that may cause actual results to differ include, but are not limited to:

� changes in general economic and financial market conditions;

� changes in revenues and profit margin due to changes in interest rates;

� adverse developments in litigation or regulatory matters;

� the extent of any charges associated with litigation and regulatory matters;

� amounts recovered on insurance policies;

� the Company�s ability to attract and retain clients and grow client assets and relationships;

� the Company�s ability to develop and launch new products, services and capabilities in a timely and successful
manner;

� fluctuations in client asset values due to changes in equity valuations;

� the performance or valuation of securities available for sale and securities held to maturity;

� trading activity;
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� the level of interest rates, including yields available on money market mutual fund eligible instruments;

� the adverse impact of financial reform legislation and related regulations;

� the amount of loans to the Company�s brokerage and banking clients;

� the level of the Company�s stock repurchase activity;

� the level of brokerage client cash balances and deposits from banking clients;

� the availability and terms of external financing;

� capital needs;

� optionsXpress integration costs and operating expenses;

� level of expenses;

� the timing and impact of changes in the Company�s level of investments in software, equipment, and
leasehold improvements; and

� potential breaches of contractual terms for which the Company has indemnification and guarantee obligations.

Certain of these factors, as well as general risk factors affecting the Company, are discussed in greater detail in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, including �Item 1A � Risk Factors.�
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk is the potential for changes in revenue or the value of financial instruments held by the Company as a result of
fluctuations in interest rates, equity prices or market conditions.

For the Company�s market risk related to interest rates, a sensitivity analysis, referred to as a net interest revenue simulation
model, is shown below. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk primarily from changes in market interest rates on its
interest-earning assets relative to changes in the costs of its funding sources that finance these assets.

Net interest revenue is affected by various factors, such as the distribution and composition of interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities, the spread between yields earned on interest-earning assets and rates paid on interest-bearing
liabilities, which may re-price at different times or by different amounts, and the spread between short and long-term interest
rates. Interest-earning assets include residential real estate loans and mortgage-backed securities. These assets are sensitive to
changes in interest rates and to changes to prepayment levels, which tend to increase in a declining rate environment.

To mitigate the risk of loss, the Company has established policies and procedures which include setting guidelines on the amount
of net interest revenue at risk, and monitoring the net interest margin and average maturity of its interest-earning assets and
funding sources. To remain within these guidelines, the Company manages the maturity, repricing, and cash flow characteristics
of the investment portfolios. Because the Company establishes the rates paid on certain brokerage client cash balances and
deposits from banking clients, the rates charged on margin loans, and controls the composition of its investment securities, it has
some ability to manage its net interest spread, depending on competitive factors and market conditions.

The Company is also subject to market risk as a result of fluctuations in equity prices. The Company�s direct holdings of equity
securities and its associated exposure to equity prices are not material. The Company is indirectly exposed to equity market
fluctuations in connection with securities collateralizing margin loans to brokerage customers, and customer securities loaned out
as part of the Company�s securities lending activities. Equity market valuations may also affect the level of brokerage client
trading activity, margin borrowing, and overall client engagement with the Company. Additionally, the Company earns mutual
fund service fees and asset management fees based upon daily balances of certain client assets. Fluctuations in these client asset
balances caused by changes in equity valuations directly impact the amount of fee revenue earned by the Company.

Financial instruments held by the Company are also subject to liquidity risk � that is, the risk that valuations will be negatively
affected by changes in demand and the underlying market for a financial instrument. Recent conditions in the credit markets
have significantly reduced market liquidity in a wide range of financial instruments, including the types of instruments held by
the Company, and fair value can differ significantly from the value implied by the credit quality and actual performance of the
instrument�s underlying cash flows.

Financial instruments held by the Company are also subject to valuation risk as a result of changes in valuations of the
underlying collateral, such as housing prices in the case of residential real estate loans and mortgage-backed securities.
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For discussion of the impact of current market conditions on asset management and administration fees, net interest revenue, and
securities available for sale, see �Item 7 � Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
� Current Market and Regulatory Environment�.

The Company�s market risk related to financial instruments held for trading and forward sale and interest rate lock commitments
related to its loans held for sale portfolio is not material.

Net Interest Revenue Simulation

The Company uses net interest revenue simulation modeling techniques to evaluate and manage the effect of changing interest
rates. The simulation model (the model) includes all interest-sensitive assets and liabilities. Key variables in the model include
the repricing of financial instruments, prepayment, reinvestment, and product pricing assumptions. The Company uses constant
balances and market rates in the model assumptions in order to minimize the number of variables and to better isolate risks. The
simulations involve assumptions that are inherently uncertain and, as a result, cannot precisely estimate net interest
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revenue or predict the impact of changes in interest rates on net interest revenue. Actual results may differ from simulated results
due to balance growth or decline and the timing, magnitude, and frequency of interest rate changes, as well as changes in market
conditions and management strategies, including changes in asset and liability mix.

As represented by the simulations presented below, the Company�s investment strategy is structured to produce an increase in net
interest revenue when interest rates rise and, conversely, a decrease in net interest revenue when interest rates fall (i.e.,
interest-earning assets generally reprice more quickly than interest-bearing liabilities).

The simulations in the following table assume that the asset and liability structure of the consolidated balance sheet would not be
changed as a result of the simulated changes in interest rates. As the Company actively manages its consolidated balance sheet
and interest rate exposure, in all likelihood the Company would take steps to manage any additional interest rate exposure that
could result from changes in the interest rate environment. The following table shows the results of a gradual 100 basis point
increase or decrease in market interest rates relative to the Company�s current market rates forecast on simulated net interest
revenue over the next 12 months beginning December 31, 2011 and 2010.

December 31, 2011 2010
Increase of 100 basis points 19.1% 13.5% 
Decrease of 100 basis points (8.1%) (4.8%) 

The sensitivities shown in the simulation reflect the fact that short-term interest rates in 2011 remained at historically low levels,
including the federal funds target rate, which was unchanged at a range of zero to 0.25%. The current low interest rate
environment limits the extent to which the Company can reduce interest expense paid on funding sources in a declining interest
rate scenario. A decline in interest rates could therefore negatively impact the yield on the Company�s investment portfolio to a
greater degree than any offsetting reduction in interest expense, further compressing net interest margin. Any increases in
short-term interest rates result in a greater impact as yields on interest-earning assets are expected to rise faster than the cost of
funding sources.
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Consolidated Statements of Income

(In Millions, Except Per Share Amounts)

Year Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009
Net Revenues
Asset management and administration fees $     1,928 $     1,822 $     1,875

Interest revenue 1,900 1,723 1,428
Interest expense (175) (199) (183) 

Net interest revenue 1,725 1,524 1,245

Trading revenue 927 830 996
Other 160 135 175
Provision for loan losses (18) (27) (38) 
Net impairment losses on securities (1) (31) (36) (60) 

Total net revenues 4,691 4,248 4,193

Expenses Excluding Interest
Compensation and benefits 1,732 1,573 1,544
Professional services 387 341 275
Occupancy and equipment 301 272 318
Advertising and market development 228 196 191
Communications 220 207 206
Depreciation and amortization 155 146 159
Class action litigation and regulatory reserve 7 320 �
Money market mutual fund charges � 132 �
Other 269 282 224

Total expenses excluding interest 3,299 3,469 2,917

Income before taxes on income 1,392 779 1,276
Taxes on income (528) (325) (489) 

Net Income $ 864 $ 454 $ 787

Weighted-Average Common Shares Outstanding � Diluted 1,229 1,194 1,160

Earnings Per Share � Basic $ .70 $ .38 $ .68
Earnings Per Share � Diluted $ .70 $ .38 $ .68
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(1) Net impairment losses on securities include total other-than-temporary impairment losses of $18 million, $41 million, and
$278 million, net of $(13) million, $5 million, and $218 million recognized in other comprehensive income in 2011, 2010,
and 2009, respectively.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In Millions, Except Share and Per Share Amounts)

December 31, 2011 2010
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,679 $ 4,931
Cash and investments segregated and on deposit for regulatory purposes (including resale
agreements of $17,899 and $12,697 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively) 26,034 22,749
Receivables from brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations 230 415
Receivables from brokerage clients � net 11,072 11,235
Other securities owned � at fair value 593 337
Securities available for sale 33,965 23,993
Securities held to maturity (fair value � $15,539 and $17,848 at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively) 15,108 17,762
Loans to banking clients � net 9,812 8,725
Loans held for sale 70 185
Equipment, office facilities, and property � net 685 624
Goodwill 1,161 631
Intangible assets � net 326 54
Other assets 818 927

Total assets $     108,553 $     92,568

Liabilities and Stockholders� Equity
Deposits from banking clients $ 60,854 $ 50,590
Payables to brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations 1,098 1,389
Payables to brokerage clients 35,489 30,861
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,397 1,496
Long-term debt 2,001 2,006

Total liabilities 100,839 86,342

Stockholders� equity:
Preferred stock � 9,940,000 shares authorized; $.01 par value per share; none issued � �
Common stock � 3 billion shares authorized; $.01 par value per share; 1,487,543,446 shares and
1,428,604,522 shares issued at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively 15 14
Additional paid-in capital 3,826 3,034
Retained earnings 7,978 7,409
Treasury stock, at cost � 216,378,623 shares and 226,222,313 shares at December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively (4,113) (4,247) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 8 16

Total stockholders� equity 7,714 6,226

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 108,553 $ 92,568
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See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In Millions)

Year Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income $ 864 $ 454 $ 787
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used for) operating
activities:
Provision for loan losses 18 27 38
Net impairment losses on securities 31 36 60
Stock-based compensation 99 87 75
Depreciation and amortization 155 146 159
Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes 52 (51) 16
Premium (discount) amortization, net, on securities available for sale and securities
held to maturity 136 35 (18) 
Other 9 (3) (32) 
Originations of loans held for sale (1,574) (2,015) (2,746) 
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 1,703 1,943 2,695
Net change in:
Cash and investments segregated and on deposit for regulatory purposes (2,211) (4,376) (3,688) 
Receivables from brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations 220 148 202
Receivables from brokerage clients 341 (2,612) (1,503) 
Other securities owned (231) 581 (290) 
Other assets (15) 133 (253) 
Payables to brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations (357) 283 56
Payables to brokerage clients 3,407 4,886 5,990
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (183) 289 (111) 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 2,464 (9) 1,437

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of securities available for sale (18,434) (15,697) (14,342) 
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale 500 871 107
Principal payments on securities available for sale 7,978 13,261 7,063
Purchases of securities held to maturity (2,253) (14,906) (5,470) 
Principal payments on securities held to maturity 4,786 2,672 139
Net increase in loans to banking clients (1,125) (1,443) (1,411) 
Purchase of equipment, office facilities, and property (180) (129) (140) 
Cash acquired in business acquisition, net of cash paid 54 (44) �
Other investing activities 7 5 (3) 

Net cash used for investing activities (8,667) (15,410) (14,057) 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net change in deposits from banking clients 10,264 11,328 14,979
Issuance of long-term debt � 701 747
Repayment of long-term debt (116) (205) (80) 
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Net proceeds from common stock offering � 543 �
Dividends paid (295) (288) (279) 
Proceeds from stock options exercised and other 96 35 53
Other financing activities 2 (5) (1) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 9,951 12,109 15,419

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,748 (3,310) 2,799
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 4,931 8,241 5,442

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 8,679 $ 4,931 $ 8,241

Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 168 $ 178 $ 173
Income taxes $ 517 $ 327 $ 446
Non-cash investing activities:
Common stock issued and equity awards assumed for business acquisitions (See note
�3 - Business Acquisitions�) $ 714 $ 106 $ �
Securities purchased during the year but settled after year end $ 58 $ � $ 1,267
Non-cash financing activity:
Transfer of trust related balances to deposits from banking clients $ � $ 442 $ �

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders� Equity

(In Millions)

Accumulated

Common Stock

Additional

Paid-In Retained Treasury Stock,

Other

Comprehensive

Income
Shares Amount Capital Earnings at cost (Loss) Total

Balance at December 31, 2008 1,392 $     14 $     2,214 $     6,735 $     (4,349) $ (553) $     4,061

Comprehensive income:
Net income � � � 787 � � 787
Other comprehensive income, net
of tax:
Net unrealized gain on securities
available for sale � � � � � 362 362

Total comprehensive income 1,149
Dividends declared on common
stock � � � (279) � � (279) 
Stock option exercises and other � � � � 52 � 52
Stock-based compensation and
related tax effects � � 80 � � � 80
Other � � 4 � 6 � 10

Balance at December 31, 2009 1,392 14 2,298 7,243 (4,291) (191) 5,073

Comprehensive income:
Net income � � � 454 � � 454
Other comprehensive income, net
of tax:
Net unrealized gain on securities
available for sale � � � � � 208 208
Net unrealized loss on cash flow
hedging instruments � � � � � (1) (1) 

Total comprehensive income 661
Issuance of common stock 30 � 543 � � � 543
Issuance of common stock for
business acquisition 7 � 106 � � � 106
Dividends declared on common
stock � � � (288) � � (288) 
Stock option exercises and other � � (4) � 39 � 35
Stock-based compensation and
related tax effects � � 87 � � � 87
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Other � � 4 � 5 � 9

Balance at December 31, 2010 1,429 14 3,034 7,409 (4,247) 16 6,226

Comprehensive income:
Net income � � � 864 � � 864
Other comprehensive income, net
of tax:
Net unrealized loss on securities
available for sale � � � � � (7) (7) 
Foreign currency translation
adjustment � � � � � (1) (1) 

Total comprehensive income 856
Issuance of common stock for
business acquisition 59 1 713 � � � 714
Dividends declared on common
stock � � � (295) � � (295) 
Stock option exercises and other � � (24) � 122 � 98
Stock-based compensation and
related tax effects � � 99 � � � 99
Other � � 4 � 12 � 16

Balance at December 31, 2011 1,488 $ 15 $ 3,826 $ 7,978 $ (4,113) $ 8 $ 7,714

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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1.     Introduction and Basis of Presentation

The Charles Schwab Corporation (CSC) is a savings and loan holding company engaged, through its subsidiaries, in securities
brokerage, banking, and related financial services. Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. (Schwab) is a securities broker-dealer with over
300 domestic branch offices in 45 states, as well as a branch in each of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and London, U.K. In
addition, Schwab serves clients in Hong Kong through one of CSC�s subsidiaries. Other subsidiaries include Charles Schwab
Bank (Schwab Bank), a federal savings bank, and Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. (CSIM), the investment advisor
for Schwab�s proprietary mutual funds, which are referred to as the Schwab Funds®, and for Schwab�s exchange-traded funds,
which are referred to as the Schwab ETFsTM.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include CSC and its majority-owned subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the Company). Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, which require management to make
certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the accompanying financial statements. Certain estimates
relate to other-than-temporary impairment of securities available for sale and securities held to maturity, valuation of goodwill,
allowance for loan losses, and legal reserves. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Certain prior-period amounts have
been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

2.     Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Asset management and administration fees, which include mutual fund service fees and fees for other asset-based financial
services provided to individual and institutional clients, are recognized as revenue over the period that the related service is
provided, based upon average asset balances. The Company earns mutual fund service fees for shareholder services,
administration, investment management services, and transfer agent services (through July 2009) provided to its proprietary
funds, and recordkeeping and shareholder services provided to third-party funds. These fees are based upon the daily balances of
client assets invested in these funds. The Company also earns asset management fees for advice solutions, which include
advisory and managed account services that are based on the daily balances of client assets subject to the specific fee for service.
The fair values of client assets included in proprietary and third-party mutual funds are based on quoted market prices and other
observable market data. Other asset management and administration fees include various asset based fees, such as trust fees,
401k record keeping fees, and mutual fund clearing and other fees.

In 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company waived a portion of its asset management fees earned from certain Schwab-sponsored
money market mutual funds in order to provide a positive return to clients. Under agreements with these funds, the Company
may recover such fee waivers depending on the future performance of the funds and approval by the boards of the respective
funds until the third anniversary of the end of the fiscal year in which such fee waiver occurs, subject to certain limitations.
Recoveries of previously-waived asset management fees are recognized as revenue when substantially all uncertainties about
timing and amount of realization are resolved. Amounts recognized in revenue for recoveries of previously-waived asset
management fees were not material in 2011, 2010 or 2009.
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Interest revenue represents interest earned on certain assets, which include cash and cash equivalents, cash and investments
segregated, receivables from brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations, receivables from brokerage clients, other securities
owned, securities available for sale, securities held to maturity, loans to banking clients, and loans held for sale. Interest revenue
is recognized in the period earned based upon average or daily asset balances and respective interest rates.

Securities transactions: Trading revenue includes commission and principal transaction revenues. Clients� securities transactions
are recorded on the date that they settle, while the related commission revenues and expenses are recorded on the date that the
trade occurs. Principal transaction revenues are primarily comprised of revenues from client fixed income securities trading
activity, which are recorded on a trade date basis.

Cash and cash equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are not segregated and on deposit for regulatory purposes to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include
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money market funds, deposits with banks, certificates of deposit, federal funds sold, commercial paper, and treasury securities.
Cash and cash equivalents also include balances that Schwab Bank maintains at the Federal Reserve Bank.

Cash and investments segregated and on deposit for regulatory purposes include securities purchased under agreements to resell
(resale agreements), which are collateralized by United States (U.S.) Government and agency securities. Resale agreements are
accounted for as collateralized investing transactions that are recorded at their contractual amounts plus accrued interest. The
Company obtains control of collateral with a market value equal to or in excess of the principal amount loaned and accrued
interest under resale agreements. Collateral is valued daily by the Company, with additional collateral obtained to ensure full
collateralization. Cash and investments segregated also include certificates of deposit and U.S. Government securities, as well as
corporate debt securities guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) under the Temporary Liquidity
Guarantee Program. Certificates of deposit, U.S. Government securities, and corporate debt securities are recorded at fair value.

Receivables from brokerage clients include margin loans to clients and are recorded net of an allowance for doubtful accounts.
Receivables from brokerage clients that remain unsecured or partially secured for more than 30 days are fully reserved.

Other securities owned include Schwab Funds® money market funds, certificates of deposit, equity and bond mutual funds, state
and municipal debt obligations, equity securities, U.S. Government and corporate debt, and other securities recorded at fair value
based on quoted market prices. Unrealized gains and losses are included in trading revenue.

Securities available for sale and securities held to maturity: Securities available for sale include U.S. agency and non-agency
residential mortgage-backed securities, certificates of deposit, corporate debt securities, U.S. agency notes, and asset-backed and
other securities. Securities available for sale are recorded at fair value and unrealized gains and losses are reported, net of taxes,
in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) included in stockholders� equity. Securities held to maturity include U.S.
agency residential mortgage-backed securities and other securities. Securities held to maturity are recorded at amortized cost
based on the Company�s positive intent and ability to hold these securities to maturity. Realized gains and losses from sales of
securities available for sale are determined on a specific identification basis and are included in other revenue.

Management evaluates whether securities available for sale and securities held to maturity are other-than-temporarily impaired
(OTTI) on a quarterly basis. Debt securities with unrealized losses are considered OTTI if the Company intends to sell the
security or if it is more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell such security prior to any anticipated recovery. If
management determines that a security is OTTI under these circumstances, the impairment recognized in earnings is measured as
the entire difference between the amortized cost and the then-current fair value.

A security is also OTTI if management does not expect to recover the amortized cost of the security. In this circumstance,
management utilizes cash flow models to estimate the expected future cash flow from the securities and to estimate the credit
loss. The impairment recognized in earnings is measured by the difference between the present value of expected cash flows and
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the amortized cost of the security. Expected cash flows are discounted using the security�s effective interest rate.

The evaluation of whether the Company expects to recover the amortized cost of a security is inherently judgmental. The
evaluation includes the assessment of several bond performance indicators including: the portion of the underlying loans that are
delinquent (30 days, 60 days, 90+ days), in bankruptcy, in foreclosure or converted to real estate owned; the actual amount of
loss incurred on the underlying loans in which the property has been foreclosed and sold; the amount of credit support provided
by the structure of the security available to absorb credit losses on the underlying loans; the current price and magnitude of the
unrealized loss; and whether the Company has received all scheduled principal and interest payments. Management uses cash
flow models to further assess the likelihood of other-than-temporary impairment for the Company�s non-agency residential
mortgage-backed securities. To develop the cash flow models, the Company uses forecasted loss severity, prepayment speeds
(i.e. the rate at which the principal on underlying loans are paid down), and default rates over the securities� expected remaining
maturities.
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Securities borrowed and securities loaned: Securities borrowed require the Company to deliver cash to the lender in exchange
for securities and are included in receivables from brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations. For securities loaned, the
Company receives collateral in the form of cash in an amount equal to or greater than the market value of securities loaned.
Securities loaned are included in payables to brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations. The Company monitors the market
value of securities borrowed and loaned, with additional collateral obtained or refunded to ensure full collateralization. Fees
received or paid are recorded in interest revenue or interest expense.

Loans to banking clients are recorded at their contractual principal amounts and include unamortized direct origination costs.
Additionally, loans are recorded net of an allowance for loan losses. The Company�s loan portfolio includes four loan segments:
residential real estate mortgages, home equity lines of credit (HELOC), personal loans secured by securities and other loans.
Residential real estate mortgages include two loan classes: originated first mortgages and purchased first mortgages. Loan
segments are defined as the level to which the Company disaggregates its loan portfolio when developing and documenting a
methodology for determining the allowance for loan losses. A loan class is defined as a group of loans within a loan segment that
has homogeneous risk characteristics.

The Company records an allowance for loan losses through a charge to earnings based on management�s evaluation of the
existing portfolio. The adequacy of the allowance is reviewed quarterly by management, taking into consideration current
economic conditions, the existing loan portfolio composition, past loss experience, and risks inherent in the portfolio.

The process to establish an allowance for loan losses utilizes loan-level statistical models that estimate prepayments, defaults,
and probable losses for the loan segments based on predicted behavior of individual loans within the segments. The methodology
considers the effects of borrower behavior and a variety of factors including, but not limited to, interest rates, housing price
movements as measured by a housing price index, economic conditions, estimated defaults and foreclosures measured by
historical and expected delinquencies, changes in prepayment speeds, loan-to-value ratios, past loss experience, estimates of
future loss severities, borrower credit risk measured by Fair Isaac Corporation (FICO) scores, and the adequacy of collateral. The
methodology also evaluates concentrations in the loan segments including loan products, year of origination, geographical
distribution of collateral, and the portion of borrowers who have other client relationships with the Company.

The more significant variables considered include a measure of delinquency roll rates, loss severity, housing prices, and interest
rates. Delinquency roll rates (i.e., the rates at which loans transition through delinquency stages and ultimately result in a loss)
are estimated from the Company�s historical loss experience adjusted for current trends and market information. Loss severity
estimates are based on the Company�s historical loss experience and market trends. Housing price trends are derived from
historical home price indices and econometric forecasts of future home values. Factors affecting the home price index include:
housing inventory, unemployment, interest rates, and inflation expectations. Interest rate projections are based on the current
term structure of interest rates and historical volatilities to project various possible future interest rate paths. This quarterly
analysis results in a loss factor that is applied to the outstanding balances to determine the allowance for loan loss for each loan
segment.
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Nonaccrual loans: Residential real estate mortgages, HELOC, personal, and other loans are placed on nonaccrual status upon
becoming 90 days past due as to interest or principal (unless the loans are well-secured and in the process of collection), or when
the full timely collection of interest or principal becomes uncertain. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, the accrued and
unpaid interest receivable is reversed and the loan is accounted for on the cash or cost recovery method thereafter, until
qualifying for return to accrual status. Generally, a loan may be returned to accrual status when all delinquent interest and
principal is repaid and the loan is performing in accordance with the terms of the loan agreement, or when the loan is both
well-secured and in the process of collection and collectability is no longer doubtful.

Loans held for sale include fixed-rate and adjustable-rate residential first-mortgage loans intended for sale. Loans held for sale
are recorded at the lower of cost or fair value. The fair value of loans held for sale is estimated using quoted market prices for
securities backed by similar types of loans.
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Equipment, office facilities, and property are recorded at cost net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, except for land,
which is recorded at cost. Equipment and office facilities are depreciated on a straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of
three to ten years. Buildings are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 20 to 40 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the term of the lease. Software and certain costs
incurred for purchasing or developing software for internal use are amortized on a straight-line basis over an estimated useful life
of three or five years. Equipment, office facilities, and property are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable.

Goodwill represents the fair value of acquired businesses in excess of the fair value of the individually identified net assets
acquired. Goodwill is not amortized but is tested for impairment annually or whenever indications of impairment exist. In testing
for a potential impairment of goodwill, management estimates the fair value of each of the Company�s reporting units (defined as
the Company�s businesses for which financial information is available and reviewed regularly by management), and compares it
to their carrying value. If the estimated fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, management is required to
estimate the fair value of all assets and liabilities of the reporting unit, including goodwill. If the carrying value of the reporting
unit�s goodwill is greater than the estimated fair value, an impairment charge is recognized for the excess. The Company�s annual
impairment testing date is April 1st. The Company did not recognize any goodwill impairment in 2011, 2010, or 2009.

Intangible assets include customer relationships, technology, tradenames, and other intangible assets and are recorded at fair
value. The Company utilizes independent third-party valuation specialists to determine the fair value of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination, and does not have any internally generated intangible assets. Subsequently, intangible assets
are amortized over their useful lives in a manner that best reflects their economic benefit. Intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be
recoverable. The Company does not have any indefinite-lived intangible assets.

Guarantees and indemnifications: The Company recognizes, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability equal to the estimated fair
value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The fair values of the obligations relating to standby letter of credit
agreements (LOCs) are estimated based on fees charged to enter into similar agreements, considering the creditworthiness of the
counterparties. The fair values of the obligations relating to other guarantees are estimated based on transactions for similar
guarantees or expected present value measures.

Income taxes: The Company provides for income taxes on all transactions that have been recognized in the consolidated
financial statements. Accordingly, deferred tax assets are adjusted to reflect the tax rates at which future taxable amounts will
likely be settled or realized. The effects of tax rate changes on future deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, as well as
other changes in income tax laws, are recorded in earnings in the period during which such changes are enacted. The Company�s
unrecognized tax benefits, which are included in accrued expenses and other liabilities, represent the difference between
positions taken on tax return filings and estimated potential tax settlement outcomes.
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Stock-based compensation includes employee and board of director stock options, restricted stock awards, and restricted stock
units. The Company measures compensation expense for these share-based payment arrangements based on their estimated fair
values as of the awards� grant date. The fair value of the share-based award is recognized over the vesting period as stock-based
compensation.

Stock-based compensation expense is based on awards expected to vest and therefore is reduced for estimated forfeitures.
Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant based on the Company�s historical forfeiture experience and revised in subsequent
periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

Goodwill Impairment Test: In December 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued new guidance on when
to perform the second step in the two-step goodwill impairment test, which is effective for all goodwill impairment tests
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performed after January 1, 2011. Specifically, if the carrying value of a reporting unit, as computed in step one of the goodwill
impairment test, is zero or negative, step two must be performed when it is �more likely than not� that goodwill is impaired; under
these circumstances, entities can no longer assume that no impairment exists because fair value, as computed in step two, would
generally be greater than zero. The adoption of this new guidance did not have a material impact on the Company�s financial
position, results of operations, earnings per share (EPS), or cash flows.

A Creditor�s Determination of Whether a Restructuring Is a Troubled Debt Restructuring: In April 2011, the FASB issued new
guidance clarifying when a debt restructuring by a creditor constitutes a troubled debt restructuring, which is effective July 1,
2011 for all restructurings that occur on or after January 1, 2011. This guidance clarifies that a troubled debt restructuring only
exists when a creditor makes a concession in interest rates or payment terms to a debtor experiencing financial difficulties. It
provides additional guidance on determining what constitutes a concession, and on the use of probability in determining if a
debtor could be experiencing financial difficulty prior to defaulting on payments. The adoption of this new guidance did not have
a material impact on the Company�s financial position, results of operations, EPS, or cash flows.

New Accounting Standard Not Yet Adopted

Testing Goodwill for Impairment: In September 2011, the FASB issued new guidance allowing companies to consider
qualitative factors before performing a quantitative assessment when determining whether goodwill is impaired, which is
effective for goodwill impairment tests performed after January 1, 2012. Specifically, there is no longer a requirement to perform
the two-step goodwill impairment test unless the entity determines that based on qualitative factors, it is more likely than not that
the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. The adoption of this new guidance is not expected to have a
material impact on the Company�s financial position, results of operations, EPS, or cash flows.

3.     Business Acquisitions

optionsXpress Holdings, Inc.

On September 1, 2011, the Company completed its acquisition of all of the outstanding common shares of optionsXpress
Holdings, Inc. (optionsXpress) for total consideration of $714 million. optionsXpress is an online brokerage firm primarily
focused on equity option securities and futures. The optionsXpress® brokerage platform provides active investors and traders
trading tools, analytics and education to execute a variety of investment strategies. The combination of optionsXpress and
Schwab offers active investors an additional level of service and platform capabilities.
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Under the terms of the merger agreement, optionsXpress stockholders received 1.02 shares of the Company�s common stock for
each share of optionsXpress stock. As a result, the Company issued 59 million shares of the Company�s common stock valued at
$710 million, based on the closing price of the Company�s common stock on September 1, 2011. The Company also assumed
optionsXpress� stock-based compensation awards valued at $4 million.

The results of optionsXpress� operations have been included in the Company�s consolidated statement of income for the year
ended December 31, 2011, from the date of acquisition. optionsXpress� net revenues were $68 million and their net loss was not
material for the period September 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011.
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The following table summarizes the preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the net assets of optionsXpress as of
September 1, 2011:

Fair value of common stock issued $ 710
Fair value of equity awards assumed 4

Total consideration paid (1) $ 714

Fair value of net assets acquired $ 207

Preliminary goodwill $     507

(1) Represents a non-cash investing activity.

The following table summarizes the preliminary fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition
date. The allocation of the purchase price is preliminary and subject to further adjustment as information relative to closing date
fair values and related tax balances are finalized.

September 1,
2011

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 84
Cash and investments segregated and on deposit for regulatory purposes 1,074
Receivables from brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations 40
Receivables from brokerage clients 185
Other securities owned - at fair value 32
Intangible assets 285
Other assets 24

Total assets acquired (1) $ 1,724

Liabilities
Payables to brokerage clients $ 1,221
Deferred tax liability 95
Long-term debt (2) 110
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 91

Total liabilities assumed (1) $     1,517
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Net assets acquired $ 207

(1) All assets and liabilities, except for cash and cash equivalents, represent non-cash investing activities.
(2) The Company paid off long-term debt acquired from optionsXpress subsequent to the date of acquisition in

September 2011.

Preliminary goodwill of $507 million was assigned to the Investor Services segment and will not be deductible for tax purposes.

The Company recorded preliminary intangible assets of $285 million, which are subject to amortization and will be amortized
over their estimated useful lives. The following table summarizes the preliminary estimated fair value and useful lives of the
intangible assets.

September 1, 2011
Estimated
Fair Value

Estimated
Useful Life

(In
Years)

Customer relationships $     200 11
Technology 70 9
Trade name 15 9

Total intangible assets $ 285
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Pro Forma Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following table presents unaudited pro forma financial information as if optionsXpress had been acquired on January 1,
2009. Pro forma net income for the year ended December 31, 2011, was adjusted to exclude $16 million, after tax, of acquisition
related costs incurred by the Company in 2011. Pro forma net income for the year ended December 31, 2009, was adjusted to
include these costs. Additionally, pro forma net income below excludes $15 million, before tax, of acquisition related costs
because these costs were incurred by optionsXpress prior to the acquisition date. Pro forma net income also reflects the impact of
amortizing purchase accounting adjustments relating to intangible assets, net of tax, of $20 million, $22 million, and $24 million,
for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

Year Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009
Net revenues $     4,857 $     4,479 $     4,426
Net income $ 896 $ 481 $ 804
Basic EPS $ .71 $ .39 $ .66
Diluted EPS $ .71 $ .38 $ .66

The unaudited pro forma financial information above is presented for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative
of the results that actually would have occurred had the acquisition been completed at the beginning of 2009, nor is it indicative
of the results of operations for future periods.

Windward Investment Management, Inc.

On November 9, 2010, the Company completed its acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Windward Investment
Management, Inc. (Windward) for $106 million in common stock and $44 million in cash. Windward was an investment
advisory firm that managed diversified investment portfolios comprised primarily of exchange-traded fund securities. As a result
of the acquisition, Windhaven Investment Management, Inc. was formed as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Schwab Holdings, Inc.

The Company�s consolidated financial statements include the net assets and results of operations associated with this acquisition
from November 9, 2010. Pro forma financial information for the business acquired from Windward is not presented as it is not
material to the Company�s consolidated financial statements. As a result of a fair value allocation, the Company recorded
goodwill of $103 million and intangible assets of $47 million, both of which are deductible for tax purposes over a period of
15 years. The intangible assets, which primarily relate to customer relationships and technology, are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over 11 years and 9 years, respectively. The goodwill was allocated to the Investor Services and Institutional
Services segments in the amounts of $30 million and $73 million, respectively.
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In connection with the acquisition, the Company established employee retention and incentive programs that provide for cash
payments up to an aggregate $100 million. These payments are contingent upon the employees� continued employment and
achievement of certain assets under management thresholds prior to specified time periods concluding 102 months (the Service
Period) following the acquisition, with payments due at intervals throughout the period if earned. These payments will be
recorded as compensation expense if such payments are deemed probable, and will be recognized over the Service Period. The
estimated liability under this program was not material at December 31, 2011 or 2010.

4.     Receivables from Brokerage Clients

Receivables from brokerage clients are recorded net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts
was not material at December 31, 2011 or 2010. Receivables from brokerage clients consist primarily of margin loans to
brokerage clients of $10.2 billion and $10.3 billion at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Securities owned by brokerage
clients are held as collateral for margin loans. Such collateral is not reflected in the consolidated financial statements. The
average yield earned on margin loans was 4.39% and 4.87% in 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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5.     Other Securities Owned

A summary of other securities owned is as follows:

December 31, 2011 2010
Schwab Funds® money market funds $     332 $     172
Equity and bond mutual funds 183 99
State and municipal debt obligations 46 47
Equity, U.S. Government and corporate debt, and other securities 32 19

Total other securities owned (1) $ 593 $ 337

(1) Securities pledged were not material at December 31, 2011 or 2010.

The Company�s positions in Schwab Funds® money market funds arise from certain overnight funding of clients� redemption,
check-writing, and debit card activities. Equity and bond mutual funds include mutual fund investments held at CSC,
investments made by the Company relating to its deferred compensation plan, and inventory maintained to facilitate certain
Schwab Funds and third-party mutual fund clients� transactions. State and municipal debt obligations, equity, U.S. Government
and corporate debt, and other securities include securities held to meet clients� trading activities.

Securities sold, but not yet purchased were not material at December 31, 2011 or 2010, and are recorded at fair value in accrued
expenses and other liabilities.

6.     Securities Available for Sale and Securities Held to Maturity

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses, and fair value of securities available for sale and securities held to
maturity are as follows:

December 31, 2011
Amortized

Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses Fair Value
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Securities available for sale:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed securities $ 20,666 $ 269 $ 14 $ 20,921
Non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities 1,130 � 223 907
Certificates of deposit 3,623 2 3 3,622
Corporate debt securities 3,592 5 26 3,571
U.S. agency notes 1,795 5 � 1,800
Asset-backed and other securities 3,144 7 7 3,144

Total securities available for sale $     33,950 $       288 $       273 $     33,965

Securities held to maturity:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed securities $ 14,770 $ 430 $ 2 $ 15,198
Other securities 338 3 � 341

Total securities held to maturity $ 15,108 $ 433 $ 2 $ 15,539
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December 31, 2010
Amortized

Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Securities available for sale:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed securities $     12,879 $     222 $ 3 $ 13,098
Non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities 1,701 3 234 1,470
Certificates of deposit 1,874 1 � 1,875
Corporate debt securities 2,261 8 1 2,268
U.S. agency notes 2,757 23 � 2,780
Asset-backed securities 2,495 9 2 2,502

Total securities available for sale $ 23,967 $ 266 $     240 $     23,993

Securities held to maturity:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed securities $ 16,722 $ 209 $ 137 $ 16,794
Other securities 1,040 14 � 1,054

Total securities held to maturity $ 17,762 $ 223 $ 137 $ 17,848

A summary of securities with unrealized losses, aggregated by category and period of continuous unrealized loss, is as follows:

Less than 12 months
12 months or longer Total

December 31, 2011
Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

Securities available for sale:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed
securities $ 5,551 $ 14 $ � $ � $ 5,551 $ 14
Non-agency residential mortgage-backed
securities 121 8 746 215 867 223
Certificates of deposit 2,158 3 � � 2,158 3
Corporate debt securities 1,888 26 � � 1,888 26
Asset-backed and other securities 1,376 6 152 1 1,528 7

Total $ 11,094 $ 57 $ 898 $ 216 $ 11,992 $ 273

Securities held to maturity:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed
securities $ 384 $ 2 $ � $ � $ 384 $ 2

Total $ 384 $ 2 $ � $ � $ 384 $ 2

Total securities with unrealized losses (1) $     11,478 $     59 $     898 $     216 $     12,376 $     275
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(1) The number of investment positions with unrealized losses totaled 296 for securities available for sale and 3 for securities
held to maturity.
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Less than 12 months
12 months or longer Total

December 31, 2010
Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses Fair Value

Unrealized
Losses

Securities available for sale:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed
securities $ 707 $ 3 $ � $ � $ 707 $ 3
Non-agency residential mortgage-backed
securities � � 1,207 234 1,207 234
Corporate debt securities 549 1 � � 549 1
Asset-backed securities 873 2 � � 873 2

Total $ 2,129 $ 6 $ 1,207 $ 234 $ 3,336 $ 240

Securities held to maturity:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed
securities $ 6,880 $ 137 $ � $ � $ 6,880 $ 137

Total $ 6,880 $ 137 $ � $ � $ 6,880 $ 137

Total securities with unrealized losses (1) $     9,009 $     143 $     1,207 $     234 $     10,216 $     377

(1) The number of investment positions with unrealized losses totaled 178 for securities available for sale and 37 for securities
held to maturity.

Unrealized losses in securities available for sale of $273 million as of December 31, 2011, were concentrated in non-agency
residential mortgage-backed securities. Included in non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities are securities
collateralized by loans that are considered to be �Prime� (defined as loans to borrowers with a Fair Isaac & Company credit score
of 620 or higher at origination), and �Alt-A� (defined as Prime loans with reduced documentation at origination). At December 31,
2011, the amortized cost and fair value of Alt-A residential mortgage-backed securities were $390 million and $279 million,
respectively.

Management evaluates whether securities available for sale and securities held to maturity are other-than-temporarily impaired
(OTTI) on a quarterly basis as described in note �2 � Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.�

Certain Alt-A and Prime residential mortgage-backed securities experienced continued credit deterioration in 2011, including
increased payment delinquency rates and losses on foreclosures of underlying mortgages. Based on the Company�s cash flow
projections, management determined that it does not expect to recover all of the amortized cost of these securities and therefore
determined that these securities were OTTI. The Company employs a buy and hold strategy relative to its mortgage-related
securities, and does not intend to sell these securities and it will not be required to sell these securities before anticipated
recovery of the unrealized losses on these securities. Further, the Company has an adequate liquidity position at December 31,
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2011, with cash and cash equivalents totaling $8.7 billion, a loan-to-deposit ratio of 16%, adequate access to short-term
borrowing facilities and regulatory capital ratios in excess of �well capitalized� levels. Because the Company does not intend to
sell these securities and it is not �more likely than not� that the Company will be required to sell these securities, the Company
recognized an impairment charge equal to the securities� expected credit losses of $31 million in 2011. The expected credit losses
were measured as the difference between the present value of expected cash flows and the amortized cost of the securities.
Further deterioration in the performance of the underlying loans in the Company�s residential mortgage-backed securities
portfolio could result in the recognition of additional impairment charges.

Actual credit losses on the Company�s residential mortgage-backed securities were not material in 2011 or 2010. There were no
actual credit losses on the Company�s residential mortgage-backed securities in 2009.
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The following table is a rollforward of the amount of credit losses recognized in earnings for OTTI securities held by the
Company during the period for which a portion of the impairment was recognized in other comprehensive income:

Year Ended December 31, 2011 2010   2009  
Balance at beginning of year $ 96 $ 60 $ �
Credit losses recognized into current year earnings on debt securities for which an
other-than-temporary impairment was not previously recognized 6 7 60
Credit losses recognized into current year earnings on debt securities for which an
other-than-temporary impairment was previously recognized 25 29 �

Balance at the end of year $     127 $     96 $ 60

The maturities of securities available for sale and securities held to maturity at December 31, 2011, are as follows:

Within 1
year

After 1 year
through
5 years

After 5 years
through
10 years

After
10 years Total

Securities available for sale:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed securities (1) $ � $ 2 $ 2,950 $ 17,969 $ 20,921
Non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities (1) � � 13 894 907
Certificates of deposit 1,897 1,725 � � 3,622
Corporate debt securities 954 2,517 100 � 3,571
U.S. agency notes � 1,800 � � 1,800
Asset-backed and other securities 225 812 534 1,573 3,144

Total fair value $ 3,076 $ 6,856 $ 3,597 $ 20,436 $ 33,965
Total amortized cost $     3,076 $     6,871 $     3,512 $     20,491 $     33,950

Securities held to maturity:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed securities (1) $ � $ � $ 2,581 $ 12,617 $ 15,198
Other securities 117 224 � � 341

Total fair value $ 117 $ 224 $ 2,581 $ 12,617 $ 15,539
Total amortized cost $ 116 $ 222 $ 2,507 $ 12,263 $ 15,108

(1) Residential mortgage-backed securities have been allocated to maturity groupings based on final contractual
maturities. Actual maturities will differ from final contractual maturities because borrowers on a certain portion of
loans underlying these securities have the right to prepay their obligations.
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Proceeds and gross realized gains (losses) from sales of securities available for sale are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009
Proceeds $     500 $     871 $     107
Gross realized gains $ 1 $ 1 $ 1
Gross realized losses $ � $ � $ (4) 

- 62 -

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 117



Table of Contents

THE CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share Data, Option Price Amounts, Ratios, or as Noted)

7.     Loans to Banking Clients and Related Allowance for Loan Losses

The composition of loans to banking clients by loan segment is as follows:

December 31, 2011 2010
Residential real estate mortgages $     5,596 $     4,695
Home equity lines of credit 3,509 3,500
Personal loans secured by securities 742 562
Other 19 21

Total loans to banking clients (1) 9,866 8,778
Allowance for loan losses (54) (53) 

Total loans to banking clients � net $ 9,812 $ 8,725

(1) Loans are evaluated for impairment by loan segment.

The allowance for loan losses is established through charges to earnings based on management�s evaluation of the existing
portfolio. The adequacy of the allowance is reviewed quarterly by management, taking into consideration current economic
conditions, the existing loan portfolio composition, past loss experience, and risks inherent in the portfolio, as described in note �2
� Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.�

In addition to the allowance for loan losses, the Company maintains a separate reserve for the losses inherent in unused
commitments on its HELOC loans. This reserve is included in accrued expenses and other liabilities and was not material at
December 31, 2011 or 2010.

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2011

Residential
real estate
mortgages

Home
equity lines
of credit Total

December 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

Balance at beginning of year $             38 $             15 $             53 $       45 $       20
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Charge-offs (11) (8) (19) (20) (13) 
Recoveries 1 1 2 1 �
Provision for loan losses 12 6 18 27 38

Balance at end of year $ 40 $ 14 $ 54 $ 53 $ 45

Included in the loan portfolio are nonaccrual loans totaling $52 million and $51 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. There were no loans accruing interest that were contractually 90 days or more past due at December 31, 2011 or
2010. The amount of interest revenue that would have been earned on nonaccrual loans, versus actual interest revenue
recognized on these loans, was not material to the Company�s results of operations in 2011 or 2010. Nonperforming assets, which
include nonaccrual loans and other real estate owned, totaled $56 million and $54 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The Company considers loan modifications in which it makes an economic concession to a borrower experiencing
financial difficulty to be a troubled debt restructuring. Troubled debt restructurings were not material at December 31, 2011 or
2010.
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The delinquency aging analysis by loan class is as follows:

30-59 days 60-89 days Greater than Total Total
December 31, 2011 Current past due past due 90 days past due loans
Residential real estate mortgages:
Originated first mortgages $ 5,380 $ 16 $ 2 $ 39 $ 57 $ 5,437
Purchased first mortgages 152 2 � 5 7 159
Home equity lines of credit 3,494 5 2 8 15 3,509
Personal loans secured by securities 741 1 � � 1 742
Other 19 � � � � 19

Total loans to banking clients $ 9,786 $ 24 $ 4 $ 52 $ 80 $ 9,866

December 31, 2010
Residential real estate mortgages:
Originated first mortgages $ 4,527 $ 18 $ 5 $ 38 $ 61 $ 4,588
Purchased first mortgages 100 2 1 4 7 107
Home equity lines of credit 3,489 5 2 4 11 3,500
Personal loans secured by securities 557 � � 5 5 562
Other 21 � � � � 21

Total loans to banking clients $ 8,694 $ 25 $ 8 $ 51 $ 84 $ 8,778

In addition to monitoring the delinquency characteristics as presented in the aging analysis above, the Company monitors the
credit quality of residential real estate mortgages and HELOCs by stratifying the portfolios by the year of origination, borrower
FICO scores at origination, updated FICO scores, and loan-to-value ratios at origination (Origination LTV), as presented in the
following tables. Borrowers� FICO scores are provided by an independent third party credit reporting service and were last
updated in December 2011. The Company monitors the credit quality of personal loans secured by securities by reviewing the
fair value of collateral to ensure adequate collateralization of at least 100% of the principal amount of the loans. All of these
personal loans were fully collateralized by securities with fair values in excess of borrowing amounts at December 31, 2011 and
2010.
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Residential real estate mortgages
Originated 

first
mortgages

Purchased 
first

mortgages Total

Home
equity

lines of creditDecember 31, 2011
Year of origination
Pre-2007 $ 291 $ 52 $ 343 $ 1,074
2007 278 8 286 232
2008 538 8 546 1,262
2009 553 10 563 412
2010 1,757 17 1,774 311
2011 2,020 64 2,084 218

Total $ 5,437 $ 159 $             5,596 $ 3,509

Origination FICO
< 620 $ 9 $ 2 $ 11 $ �  
620 - 679 108 19 127 24
680 - 739 1,030 43 1,073 667
> 740 4,290 95 4,385 2,818

Total $ 5,437 $ 159 $ 5,596 $ 3,509

Updated FICO
< 620 $ 55 $ 7 $ 62 $ 49
620 - 679 162 11 173 112
680 - 739 831 44 875 520
> 740 4,389 97 4,486 2,828

Total $ 5,437 $ 159 $ 5,596 $ 3,509

Origination LTV (1)

< 70% $ 3,507 $ 91 $ 3,598 $ 2,378
71% - 89% 1,904 60 1,964 1,091
> 90% 26 8 34 40

Total $ 5,437 $ 159 $ 5,596 $ 3,509

(1) The computation of the Origination LTV ratio for a HELOC includes any first lien mortgage outstanding on the same
property at the time of origination. At December 31, 2011, $755 million of $3.5 billion in HELOCs were in a first lien
position.
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Residential real estate mortgages

Originated first Purchased first
Home
equity

December 31, 2010 mortgages mortgages Total lines of credit
Year of origination
Pre-2007 $ 352 $ 58 $ 410 $ 1,132
2007 384 9 393 245
2008 728 8 736 1,345
2009 884 12 896 466
2010 2,240 20 2,260 312

Total $ 4,588 $ 107 $ 4,695 $ 3,500

Origination FICO
< 620 $ 9 $ 2 $ 11 $ �
620 - 679 115 15 130 26
680 - 739 907 33 940 677
> 740 3,557 57 3,614 2,797

Total $ 4,588 $ 107 $ 4,695 $ 3,500

Updated FICO
< 620 $ 63 $ 9 $ 72 $ 49
620 - 679 147 8 155 99
680 - 739 730 29 759 499
> 740 3,648 61 3,709 2,853

Total $ 4,588 $ 107 $ 4,695 $ 3,500

Origination LTV (1)

< 70% $ 2,911 $ 55 $ 2,966 $ 2,375
71% - 89% 1,659 51 1,710 1,092
> 90% 18 1 19 33

Total $ 4,588 $ 107 $         4,695 $ 3,500

(1) The computation of the Origination LTV ratio for a HELOC includes any first lien mortgage outstanding on the same
property at the time of origination. At December 31, 2010, $742 million of $3.5 billion in HELOCs were in a first lien
position.

8.     Equipment, Office Facilities, and Property

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 122



Equipment, office facilities, and property are detailed below:

December 31, 2011 2010
Software $         993 $         902
Buildings 446 438
Information technology equipment 430 405
Leasehold improvements 307 282
Furniture and equipment 131 118
Telecommunications equipment 104 91
Land 59 57
Construction in progress 17 15

Total equipment, office facilities, and property 2,487 2,308
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,802) (1,684) 

Total equipment, office facilities, and property � net $ 685 $ 624
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9.     Intangible Assets and Goodwill

The gross carrying value of intangible assets and accumulated amortization was:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Gross

Carrying
Value

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Value

Gross
Carrying
Value

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Value

Customer relationships $         245 $ 17 $         228 $           42 $ 2 $           40
Technology 88 6 82 14 2 12
Trade name 15 1 14 � � �
Other 2 � 2 2 � 2

Total intangible assets $ 350 $ 24 $ 326 $ 58 $ 4 $ 54

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $20 million in 2011 and not material in 2010 or 2009.

Estimated future annual amortization expense for intangible assets as of December 31, 2011 is as follows:

2012 $ 47
2013 $ 42
2014 $ 39
2015 $ 36
2016 $ 34
Thereafter $         128

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill, as allocated to the Company�s reportable segments for purposes of testing
goodwill for impairment going forward, are presented in the following table:

Investor Institutional
Services Services Total

Balance at December 31, 2010 $         446 $         185 $ 631
Goodwill acquired during the period 507 23 530
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Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 953 $ 208 $       1,161

10.     Other Assets

The components of other assets are as follows:

December 31, 2011 2010
Accounts receivable (1) $         330 $         320
Prepaid expenses 153 172
Interest and dividends receivable 142 134
Other investments 57 56
Deferred tax asset � net 27 170
Other 109 75

Total other assets $ 818 $ 927

(1) Accounts receivable includes accrued service fee income and a receivable from the Company�s loan servicer.
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11.     Deposits from Banking Clients

Deposits from banking clients consist of interest-bearing and noninterest-bearing deposits as follows:

December 31, 2011 2010
Interest-bearing deposits:
Deposits swept from brokerage accounts $     40,617 $     30,980
Checking 10,765 9,890
Savings and other 8,997 9,241

Total interest-bearing deposits 60,379 50,111

Noninterest-bearing deposits 475 479

Total deposits from banking clients $ 60,854 $ 50,590

Demand deposit overdrafts included as other loans within loans to banking clients were not material at December 31, 2011 or
2010.

In 2010, the Company entered into deposit account agreements with existing trust clients and accordingly transferred balances
totaling $442 million from payables to brokerage clients and accrued expenses and other liabilities to noninterest-bearing
deposits from banking clients.

12.     Payables to Brokers, Dealers, and Clearing Organizations

Payables to brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations include securities loaned of $852 million and $1.3 billion at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The cash collateral received from counterparties under securities lending transactions
was equal to or greater than the market value of the securities loaned at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

13.     Payables to Brokerage Clients
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The principal source of funding for Schwab�s margin lending is cash balances in brokerage client accounts, which are included in
payables to brokerage clients. Cash balances in interest-bearing brokerage client accounts were $30.6 billion and $26.2 billion at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The average rate paid on cash balances in interest-bearing brokerage client accounts
was 0.01% in 2011 and 2010.

14.     Borrowings

Long-term debt including unamortized debt discounts and premiums, where applicable, consists of the following:

December 31, 2011 2010
Senior Notes $     1,450 $     1,449
Senior Medium-Term Notes, Series A 249 249
Junior Subordinated Notes 202 202
Finance lease obligation 100 106

Total long-term debt $ 2,001 $ 2,006

CSC has a universal automatic shelf registration statement (Shelf Registration Statement) on file with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC), which enables CSC to issue debt, equity and other securities. This Shelf Registration Statement
was filed in December 2011 to replace the prior Shelf Registration Statement, which expired in the same month.
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The Senior Notes outstanding at December 31, 2011 have maturities ranging from 2014 to 2020 and fixed interest rates ranging
from 4.45% to 4.950% with interest payable semi-annually. The Company issued $700 million of these Senior Notes in 2010
under the prior Shelf Registration Statement. These Senior Notes mature in 2020 and have a fixed interest rate of 4.45%.

The Senior Medium-Term Notes, Series A (Medium-Term Notes) outstanding at December 31, 2011, mature in 2017 and have a
fixed interest rate of 6.375% with interest payable semi-annually. In 2010, $200 million of Medium-Term Notes matured.

CSC and Schwab Capital Trust I, a statutory trust formed under the laws of the State of Delaware (Trust), previously closed a
public offering of $300 million of the Trust�s fixed to floating-rate trust preferred securities. The proceeds from the sale of the
trust preferred securities were invested by the Trust in fixed to floating rate Junior Subordinated Notes issued by CSC. The
Junior Subordinated Notes, which mature in 2067, have a fixed interest rate of 7.50% until 2017, and a floating rate thereafter.
The Junior Subordinated Notes may be redeemed at a redemption price of principal plus accrued but unpaid interest on
November 15, 2017, on or after November 15, 2037, or following the occurrence of certain events, and at a make-whole
redemption price at any other time. In 2010, the Company terminated the replacement capital covenant related to the trust
preferred securities, upon receiving the requisite consents, in order to have more flexibility to manage its capital structure. The
replacement capital covenant had restricted the Company from redeeming, repaying or purchasing the Junior Subordinated Notes
or the trust preferred securities unless it received proceeds of the issuance of certain replacement capital securities, among other
conditions.

Schwab has a finance lease obligation related to an office building and land under a 20-year lease. The remaining finance lease
obligation of $100 million at December 31, 2011, is being reduced by a portion of the lease payments over the remaining lease
term of 13 years.

Annual maturities on long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2011, are as follows:

2012 $ 6
2013 6
2014 756
2015 7
2016 7
Thereafter 1,220

Total maturities 2,002
Unamortized discount, net (1) 

Total long-term debt $     2,001

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 128



CSC has authorization from its Board of Directors to issue unsecured commercial paper notes (Commercial Paper Notes) not to
exceed $1.5 billion. Management has set a current limit for the commercial paper program of $800 million. The maturities of the
Commercial Paper Notes may vary, but are not to exceed 270 days from the date of issue. The commercial paper is not
redeemable prior to maturity and cannot be voluntarily prepaid. The proceeds of the commercial paper program are to be used
for general corporate purposes. There were no borrowings of Commercial Paper Notes outstanding at December 31, 2011 or
2010.

CSC maintains an $800 million committed, unsecured credit facility with a group of 11 banks, which is scheduled to expire in
June 2012. This facility replaced a similar facility that expired in June 2011. The funds under this facility are available for
general corporate purposes, including repayment of the Commercial Paper Notes discussed above. The financial covenants under
this facility require Schwab to maintain a minimum net capital ratio, as defined, Schwab Bank to be well capitalized, as defined,
and CSC to maintain a minimum level of stockholders� equity. At December 31, 2011, the minimum level of stockholders� equity
required under this facility was $5.0 billion (CSC�s stockholders� equity at December 31, 2011 was $7.7 billion). There were no
borrowings outstanding under this facility at December 31, 2011 or 2010.
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To manage short-term liquidity, Schwab maintains uncommitted, unsecured bank credit lines with a group of six banks totaling
$875 million at December 31, 2011. CSC has direct access to $750 million of these credit lines. There were no borrowings
outstanding under these lines at December 31, 2011 or 2010.

To partially satisfy the margin requirement of client option transactions with the Options Clearing Corporation (OCC), Schwab
has unsecured standby LOCs with eight banks in favor of the OCC aggregating $350 million at December 31, 2011. In
connection with its securities lending activities, Schwab is required to provide collateral to certain brokerage clients. Schwab
satisfies the collateral requirements by arranging LOCs, in favor of these brokerage clients, which are issued by multiple banks.
At December 31, 2011, the aggregate face amount of these LOCs totaled $78 million. There were no funds drawn under any of
these LOCs at December 31, 2011 or 2010.

15.     Commitments and Contingencies

Operating leases and other commitments: The Company has non-cancelable operating leases for office space and equipment.
Future annual minimum rental commitments under these leases, net of contractual subleases, at December 31, 2011, are as
follows:

Operating
Leases Subleases Net

2012 $ 116 $ 30 $ 86
2013 96 26 70
2014 83 24 59
2015 72 24 48
2016 64 24 40
Thereafter 139 18 121

Total $ 570 $ 146 $     424

Certain leases contain provisions for renewal options, purchase options, and rent escalations based on increases in certain costs
incurred by the lessor. Rent expense was $187 million, $168 million, and $213 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
Rent expense in 2009 included charges of $37 million relating to the Company�s cost reduction measures.

Purchase obligations: The Company has purchase obligations for services such as advertising and marketing,
telecommunications, professional services, and hardware- and software-related agreements. At December 31, 2011, the
Company has purchase obligations as follows:
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2012 $ 118
2013 48
2014 33
2015 27
2016 6
Thereafter 1

Total $     233

Guarantees and indemnifications: In the normal course of business, the Company provides certain indemnifications (i.e.,
protection against damage or loss) to counterparties in connection with the disposition of certain of its assets. Such
indemnifications are generally standard contractual terms with various expiration dates and typically relate to title to the assets
transferred, ownership of intellectual property rights (e.g., patents), accuracy of financial statements, compliance with laws and
regulations, failure to pay, satisfy or discharge any liability, or to defend claims, as well as errors, omissions, and
misrepresentations. The maximum potential future liability under these indemnifications cannot be estimated. The Company has
not recorded a liability for these indemnifications and believes that the occurrence of events that would trigger payments under
these agreements is remote.
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The Company has clients that sell (i.e., write) listed option contracts that are cleared by various clearing houses. The clearing
houses establish margin requirements on these transactions. The Company partially satisfies the margin requirements by
arranging unsecured standby LOCs, in favor of the clearing houses, which are issued by multiple banks. At December 31, 2011,
the aggregate face amount of these LOCs totaled $350 million. In connection with its securities lending activities, Schwab is
required to provide collateral to certain brokerage clients. Schwab satisfies the collateral requirements by arranging LOCs in
favor of these brokerage clients, which are issued by multiple banks. At December 31, 2011, the aggregate face amount of these
LOCs totaled $78 million. There were no funds drawn under any of these LOCs at December 31, 2011.

The Company also provides guarantees to securities clearing houses and exchanges under standard membership agreements,
which require members to guarantee the performance of other members. Under the agreements, if another member becomes
unable to satisfy its obligations to the clearing houses and exchanges, other members would be required to meet shortfalls. The
Company�s liability under these arrangements is not quantifiable and may exceed the cash and securities it has posted as
collateral. However, the potential requirement for the Company to make payments under these arrangements is remote.
Accordingly, no liability has been recognized for these guarantees.

Legal contingencies: The Company is subject to claims and lawsuits in the ordinary course of business, including arbitrations,
class actions and other litigation, some of which include claims for substantial or unspecified damages. The Company is also the
subject of inquiries, investigations, and proceedings by regulatory and other governmental agencies. In addition, the Company is
responding to certain litigation claims brought against former subsidiaries pursuant to indemnities it has provided to purchasers
of those entities.

The Company believes it has strong defenses in all significant matters currently pending and is contesting liability and any
damages claimed. Nevertheless, some of these matters may result in adverse judgments or awards, including penalties,
injunctions or other relief, and the Company may also determine to settle a matter because of the uncertainty and risks of
litigation. Described below are certain matters in which there is a reasonable possibility that a material loss could be incurred or
where the matter may otherwise be of significant interest to stockholders. With respect to all other pending matters, based on
current information and consultation with counsel, it does not appear that the outcome of any such matter could be material to
the financial condition, operating results or cash flows of the Company. However, predicting the outcome of a litigation or
regulatory matter is inherently difficult, requiring significant judgment and evaluation of various factors, including the
procedural status of the matter and any recent developments; prior experience and the experience of others in similar cases;
available defenses, including potential opportunities to dispose of a case on the merits or procedural grounds before trial (e.g.,
motions to dismiss or for summary judgment); the progress of fact discovery; the opinions of counsel and experts regarding
potential damages; potential opportunities for settlement and the status of any settlement discussions; and potential insurance
coverage and indemnification. Often, as in the case of the Auction Rate Securities Regulatory Inquiries and Total Bond Market
Fund Litigation matters described below, it is not possible to reasonably estimate potential liability, if any, or a range of potential
liability until the matter is closer to resolution, or pending the outcome of key motions or appeals. Numerous issues may have to
be developed, such as discovery of important factual matters and determination of threshold legal issues, which may include
novel or unsettled questions of law. Reserves are established or adjusted or further disclosure and estimates of potential loss are
provided as the matter progresses and more information becomes available.
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Auction Rate Securities Regulatory Inquiries: Schwab has been responding to industry wide inquiries from federal and state
regulators regarding sales of auction rate securities to clients who were unable to sell their holdings when the normal auction
process for those securities froze unexpectedly in February 2008. On August 17, 2009, a civil complaint was filed against
Schwab in New York state court by the Attorney General of the State of New York (NYAG) alleging material
misrepresentations and omissions by Schwab regarding the risks of auction rate securities, and seeking restitution, disgorgement,
penalties and other relief, including repurchase of securities held in client accounts. As reflected in a statement issued August 17,
2009, Schwab has responded that the allegations are without merit, and has been contesting all charges. By order dated
October 24, 2011, the court granted Schwab�s motion to dismiss the complaint. On November 30, 2011, the NYAG filed notice of
its intention to appeal the ruling.

Total Bond Market Fund Litigation: On August 28, 2008, a class action lawsuit was filed in the U.S. District Court for the
Northern District of California on behalf of investors in the Schwab Total Bond Market Fund� (Northstar lawsuit). The
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lawsuit, which alleges violations of state law and federal securities law in connection with the fund�s investment policy, names
Schwab Investments (registrant and issuer of the fund�s shares) and CSIM as defendants. Allegations include that the fund
improperly deviated from its stated investment objectives by investing in collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) and
investing more than 25% of fund assets in CMOs and mortgage-backed securities without obtaining a shareholder vote. Plaintiffs
seek unspecified compensatory and rescission damages, unspecified equitable and injunctive relief, and costs and attorneys� fees.
Plaintiffs� federal securities law claim and certain of plaintiffs� state law claims were dismissed in proceedings before the court
and following a successful petition by defendants to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. On August 8, 2011, the court dismissed
plaintiffs� remaining claims with prejudice. Plaintiffs have appealed to the Ninth Circuit, where the case is currently pending.

A second class action lawsuit filed on September 3, 2010, in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California, which
raised similar allegations on behalf of investors in the fund (Smit lawsuit), was dismissed with prejudice on April 19, 2011.

optionsXpress Merger Litigation: Between March 21, 2011 and April 6, 2011, ten purported class action lawsuits were filed by
optionsXpress stockholders challenging the terms of the Company�s merger agreement to acquire optionsXpress. Named
defendants included the Company, optionsXpress and members of its board of directors. Seven lawsuits were filed in the Circuit
Court of Cook County, Illinois and consolidated in a single amended complaint on May 9, 2011 (Consolidated Illinois Action);
and three lawsuits were filed in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware and consolidated in a single amended complaint
on April 25, 2011 (Consolidated Delaware Action). On April 28, 2011, the Delaware court stayed the Consolidated Delaware
Action in favor of the Consolidated Illinois Action.

On June 16, 2011, the Illinois court dismissed all claims against the Company with prejudice. On July 29, 2011, the parties
entered into a settlement agreement under which the remaining defendants agreed to provide certain supplemental merger
disclosures in exchange for full releases of all claims related to the merger, including all claims in the Consolidated Illinois
Action and the Consolidated Delaware Action. Defendants also agreed not to oppose any fee application by plaintiffs� counsel
that did not exceed $650,000. The settlement received final approval from the Illinois court on December 7, 2011.

optionsXpress Regulatory Matters: The Company is in discussions with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the
Chicago Board Options Exchange and FINRA to resolve several optionsXpress regulatory matters which predate the Company�s
acquisition of optionsXpress. optionsXpress entities and individual employees have received Wells notices concerning potential
violations of SEC Regulation SHO (short sale delivery rules) in connection with certain customer trading activities, and potential
violations of the broker-dealer registration requirements in connection with an unregistered optionsXpress entity. The Company
has recorded a contingent liability associated with these matters, which was not material at December 31, 2011.

YieldPlus Fund Litigation: As disclosed previously, the Company recorded total charges in 2010 of $199 million, net of
insurance proceeds of $39 million under applicable policies, for settlements to resolve consolidated class action litigation in the
U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California relating to the Schwab YieldPlus Fund®. On April 19, 2011, the court
granted final approval of the settlement agreements and entered final judgment in the litigation.
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16.     Financial Instruments Subject to Off-Balance Sheet Risk, Credit Risk, or Market Risk

Securities lending: The Company loans client securities temporarily to other brokers in connection with its securities lending
activities and receives cash as collateral for the securities loaned. Increases in security prices may cause the fair value of the
securities loaned to exceed the amount of cash received as collateral. In the event the counterparty to these transactions does not
return the loaned securities or provide additional cash collateral, the Company may be exposed to the risk of acquiring the
securities at prevailing market prices in order to satisfy its client obligations. The Company mitigates this risk by requiring credit
approvals for counterparties, by monitoring the fair value of securities loaned, and requiring additional cash as collateral when
necessary. The fair value of client securities pledged in securities lending transactions to other broker-dealers was $783 million
and $1.2 billion at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Additionally, the Company borrows
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securities from other broker-dealers to fulfill short sales by clients. The fair value of these borrowed securities was $44 million
and $113 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Client trade settlement: The Company is obligated to settle transactions with brokers and other financial institutions even if the
Company�s clients fail to meet their obligations to the Company. Clients are required to complete their transactions on settlement
date, generally three business days after the trade date. If clients do not fulfill their contractual obligations, the Company may
incur losses. The Company has established procedures to reduce this risk by requiring deposits from clients in excess of amounts
prescribed by regulatory requirements for certain types of trades, and therefore the potential for Schwab to make payments under
these client transactions is remote. Accordingly, no liability has been recognized for these transactions.

Margin lending: The Company provides margin loans to its clients which are collateralized by securities in their brokerage
accounts and may be liable for the margin requirement of its client margin securities transactions. As clients write options or sell
securities short, the Company may incur losses if the clients do not fulfill their obligations and the collateral in client accounts is
not sufficient to fully cover losses which clients may incur from these strategies. To mitigate this risk, the Company monitors
required margin levels and clients are required to deposit additional collateral, or reduce positions to meet minimum collateral
requirements. Clients with margin loans have agreed to allow the Company to pledge collateralized securities in their brokerage
accounts in accordance with federal regulations and was allowed, under such regulations, to pledge securities with a fair value of
$14.7 billion and $15.0 billion at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The fair value of client securities pledged to fulfill
the short sales of its clients was $1.2 billion and $1.4 billion at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The fair value of
client securities pledged to fulfill the Company�s proprietary short sales, which resulted from facilitating clients� dividend
reinvestment elections, was $101 million and $99 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Company has also
pledged a portion of its securities owned in order to fulfill the short sales of clients and in connection with securities lending
transactions to other broker-dealers. The fair value of these pledged securities was not material at December 31, 2011 or 2010.
The Company may also pledge client securities to fulfill client margin requirements for open option contracts established with
the OCC. The fair value of these pledged securities to the OCC was $1.3 billion and $1.2 billion at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Financial instruments held for trading purposes: The Company maintains inventories in securities on a long and short basis
relating to its fixed income operations. The Company could incur losses or gains as a result of changes in the fair value of these
securities. To mitigate the risk of losses, long and short positions are marked to fair value and are monitored by management to
assure compliance with limits established by the Company.

Resale and repurchase agreements: Schwab enters into collateralized resale agreements principally with other broker-dealers,
which could result in losses in the event the counterparty fails to purchase the securities held as collateral for the cash advanced
and the fair value of the securities declines. To mitigate this risk, Schwab requires that the counterparty deliver securities to a
custodian, to be held as collateral, with a fair value in excess of the resale price. Schwab also sets standards for the credit quality
of the counterparty, monitors the fair value of the underlying securities as compared to the related receivable, including accrued
interest, and requires additional collateral where deemed appropriate. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the fair value of
collateral received in connection with resale agreements that are available to be repledged or sold was $18.3 billion and
$13.0 billion, respectively. Schwab utilizes the collateral provided under repurchase agreements to meet obligations under
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broker-dealer client protection rules, which place limitations on its ability to access such segregated securities. For Schwab to
repledge or sell this collateral, it would be required to deposit cash and/or securities of an equal amount into its segregated
reserve bank accounts in order to meet its segregated cash and investment requirement.

Concentration risk: The Company has exposure to concentration risk when holding large positions of financial instruments
collateralized by assets with similar economic characteristics or in securities of a single issuer or industry. For discussion on the
Company�s exposure to concentration risk relating to residential mortgage-backed securities, see note �6 � Securities Available for
Sale and Securities Held to Maturity.�

The Company�s investments in corporate debt securities and commercial paper totaled $5.6 billion and $4.6 billion at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, with the majority issued by institutions in the financial services industry. These
securities are included in securities available for sale, securities held to maturity, cash and investments segregated and on
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deposit for regulatory purposes, cash and cash equivalents, and other securities owned. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the
Company held $867 million and $1.9 billion, respectively, of corporate debt securities issued by financial institutions and
guaranteed under the FDIC Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program.

The Company�s loans to banking clients include $5.6 billion and $4.7 billion of adjustable rate first lien residential real estate
mortgage loans at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Company�s adjustable rate mortgages have initial fixed interest
rates for three to ten years and interest rates that adjust annually thereafter. At December 31, 2011, approximately 60% of these
mortgages consisted of loans with interest-only payment terms. At December 31, 2011, the interest rates on approximately 65%
of these interest-only loans are not scheduled to reset for three or more years. The Company�s mortgage loans do not include
interest terms described as temporary introductory rates below current market rates. At December 31, 2011, 44% of the
residential real estate mortgages and 50% of the HELOC balances were secured by properties which are located in California. At
December 31, 2010, 42% of the residential real estate mortgages and 49% of the HELOC balances were secured by properties
which are located in California.

The Company also has exposure to concentration risk from its margin and securities lending activities collateralized by securities
of a single issuer or industry.

The Company has indirect exposure to U.S. Government and agency securities held as collateral to secure its resale agreements.
The Company�s primary credit exposure on these resale transactions is with its counterparty. The Company would have exposure
to the U.S. Government and agency securities only in the event of the counterparty�s default on the resale agreements. The fair
value of U.S. Government and agency securities held as collateral for resale agreements totaled $18.3 billion and $13.0 billion at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Commitments to extend credit: Schwab Bank enters into commitments to extend credit to banking clients primarily relating to
mortgage lending. The credit risk associated with these commitments varies depending on the creditworthiness of the client and
the value of any collateral expected to be held. Collateral requirements vary by type of loan. These commitments are legally
binding agreements to lend to a client that generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses, may require
payment of a fee and are not secured by collateral until funds are advanced. Schwab Bank also has commitments to extend credit
related to its clients� unused HELOC. Total amounts outstanding for these commitments to extend credit were $5.8 billion and
$6.1 billion at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Forward sale and interest rate lock commitments: Schwab Bank�s loans held for sale portfolio consists of fixed-rate and
adjustable-rate residential mortgage loans, which are subject to a loss in value when market interest rates rise. Schwab Bank uses
forward sale commitments to manage this risk. These forward sale commitments have been designated as cash flow hedging
instruments, and are recorded on the Company�s consolidated balance sheet at fair value with gains or losses recorded in other
comprehensive income (loss). Amounts included in other comprehensive income (loss) are reclassified into earnings when the
related loan is sold. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the derivative asset and liability for these forward sale commitments were
not material.
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Additionally, Schwab Bank uses forward sale commitments to hedge interest rate lock commitments issued on mortgage loans
that will be held for sale. Schwab Bank considers the fair value of these commitments to be zero at the commitment date, with
subsequent changes in fair value determined solely based on changes in market interest rates. Any changes in fair value of the
interest rate lock commitments are completely offset by changes in fair value of the related forward sale commitments. Schwab
Bank had interest rate lock commitments on mortgage loans to be held for sale with principal balances totaling approximately
$347 million and $628 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the derivative
asset and liability for these interest rate lock commitments and the related forward sale commitments were not material.
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17.     Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or the price paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurement accounting guidance describes the fair
value hierarchy for disclosing assets and liabilities measured at fair value based on the inputs used to value them. The fair value
hierarchy maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs. Observable inputs are based on
market pricing data obtained from sources independent of the Company. A quoted price in an active market provides the most
reliable evidence of fair value and is generally used to measure fair value whenever available. Unobservable inputs reflect
management�s judgment about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Where inputs used
to measure fair value of an asset or liability are from different levels of the hierarchy, the asset or liability is categorized based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. Assessing the significance of a particular
input requires judgment. The fair value hierarchy includes three levels based on the objectivity of the inputs as follows:

� Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets as of the measurement date for identical assets or liabilities that the
Company has the ability to access. This category includes active exchange-traded money market funds, mutual funds,
options, and equity securities. The Company did not transfer any assets or liabilities between Level 1 and Level 2
during 2011 or 2010.

� Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs
other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, such as interest rates, benchmark yields, issuer
spreads, new issue data, and collateral performance. This category includes residential mortgage-backed securities,
corporate debt securities, certificates of deposit, commercial paper, U.S. agency and municipal debt securities, U.S.
Treasury securities, and asset-backed and other securities.

� Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, and include situations where there is little, if any,
market activity for the asset or liability. The Company did not have any financial assets or liabilities utilizing Level 3
inputs as of December 31, 2011 or 2010.
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Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value

The Company�s assets recorded at fair value include certain cash equivalents, investments segregated and on deposit for
regulatory purposes, other securities owned, and securities available for sale. When available, the Company uses quoted prices in
active markets to measure the fair value of assets. When quoted prices do not exist, the Company uses prices obtained from
independent third-party pricing services to measure the fair value of investment assets. The Company validates prices received
from the pricing services using various methods, including comparison to prices received from additional pricing services,
comparison to quoted market prices, where available, comparison to internal valuation models, and review of other relevant
market data. The Company does not adjust the prices received from independent third-party pricing services unless such prices
are inconsistent with the definition of fair value and result in a material difference in the recorded amounts. At December 31,
2011 and 2010, the Company did not adjust prices received from independent third-party pricing services. Liabilities recorded at
fair value were not material, and therefore are not included in the following tables.

The following tables present the fair value hierarchy for assets measured at fair value:

December 31, 2011

Quoted Prices
in Active Markets

for Identical

Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other Observable

Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant

Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

Balance at
Fair  Value

Cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ 8 $ � $ � $ 8
Commercial paper � 814                   � 814

Total cash equivalents 8 814 � 822
Investments segregated and on deposit for
regulatory purposes:
Certificates of deposit � 2,374 � 2,374
Corporate debt securities � 767 � 767
U.S. Government securities � 650 � 650

Total investments segregated and on deposit
for regulatory purposes � 3,791 � 3,791
Other securities owned:
Schwab Funds® money market funds 332 � � 332
Equity and bond mutual funds 183 � � 183
State and municipal debt obligations � 46 � 46
Equity, U.S. Government and corporate debt,
and other securities 12 20 � 32

Total other securities owned 527 66 � 593
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Securities available for sale:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed
securities � 20,921 � 20,921
Non-agency residential mortgage-backed
securities � 907 � 907
Certificates of deposit � 3,622 � 3,622
Corporate debt securities � 3,571 � 3,571
U.S. agency notes � 1,800 � 1,800
Asset-backed and other securities � 3,144 � 3,144

Total securities available for sale � 33,965 � 33,965

Total $           535 $     38,636 $ � $           39,171

- 76 -

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 142



Table of Contents

THE CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share Data, Option Price Amounts, Ratios, or as Noted)

Quoted Prices
in Active Markets Significant Significant
for Identical Other Observable Unobservable

Assets Inputs Inputs Balance at
December 31, 2010 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ 988 $ � $ � $ 988
Commercial paper � 242                   � 242

Total cash equivalents 988 242 � 1,230
Investments segregated and on deposit for
regulatory purposes:
Certificates of deposit � 2,201 � 2,201
Corporate debt securities � 1,704 � 1,704
U.S. Government securities � 3,190 � 3,190

Total investments segregated and on deposit
for regulatory purposes � 7,095 � 7,095
Other securities owned:
Schwab Funds® money market funds 172 � � 172
Equity and bond mutual funds 99 � � 99
State and municipal debt obligations � 47 � 47
Equity, U.S. Government and corporate debt,
and other securities 1 18 � 19

Total other securities owned 272 65 � 337
Securities available for sale:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed
securities � 13,098 � 13,098
Non-agency residential mortgage-backed
securities � 1,470 � 1,470
Certificates of deposit � 1,875 � 1,875
Corporate debt securities � 2,268 � 2,268
U.S. agency notes � 2,780 � 2,780
Asset-backed securities � 2,502 � 2,502

Total securities available for sale � 23,993 � 23,993

Total $           1,260 $     31,395 $ � $           32,655

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities Not Recorded at Fair Value

Descriptions of the valuation methodologies and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of assets and liabilities not recorded
at fair value are described below. There were no significant changes in these methodologies or assumptions during 2011.
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Other cash equivalents, receivables, payables, and accrued expenses and other liabilities include cash and highly liquid
investments, receivables and payables from/ to brokers, dealers and clearing organizations, receivables and payables from/ to
brokerage clients, and drafts, accounts, taxes, interest, and compensation payable. Assets and liabilities in these categories are
short-term in nature and accordingly are recorded at amounts that approximate fair value.

Cash and investments segregated and on deposit for regulatory purposes include securities purchased under resale agreements.
Securities purchased under resale agreements are recorded at par value plus accrued interest. Securities purchased under resale
agreements are short-term in nature and are backed by collateral that both exceeds the carrying value of the resale agreement and
is highly liquid in nature. Accordingly, the carrying value approximates fair value.

Securities held to maturity include U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed and other securities. Securities held to maturity are
recorded at amortized cost. The fair value of these securities is obtained using an independent third-party pricing service, as
discussed above.
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Loans to banking clients primarily include adjustable rate residential first-mortgage and HELOC loans. Loans to banking clients
are recorded at carrying value net of an allowance for loan losses. The fair value of the Company�s loans to banking clients is
estimated based on market prices for mortgage-backed securities collateralized by similar types of loans.

Loans held for sale include fixed-rate and adjustable-rate residential first-mortgage loans intended for sale. Loans held for sale
are recorded at the lower of cost or fair value. The fair value of the Company�s loans held for sale is estimated using quoted
market prices for securities backed by similar types of loans.

Other assets include cost method investments whose carrying values approximate their fair values. Other assets also include
Federal Home Loan Bank stock recorded at par, which approximates fair value.

Deposits from banking clients: The Company considers the fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as deposits from
banking clients, to be equal to the amount payable on demand as of the balance sheet date.

Long-term debt includes Senior Notes, Senior Medium-Term Notes, Series A, Junior Subordinated Notes, and a finance lease
obligation. The fair value of the Senior Notes, Senior Medium-Term Notes, Series A, and Junior Subordinated Notes are
estimated using indicative, non-binding quotes from independent brokers. The finance lease obligation is recorded at carrying
value, which approximates fair value.

Firm commitments to extend credit: The Company extends credit to banking clients through HELOC and personal loans secured
by securities. The Company considers the fair value of these unused commitments to be not material because the interest rate
earned on these balances are based on the market interest rate indices and reset monthly. Future utilization of HELOC and
personal loan commitments will earn a then-current market interest rate. The Company does not charge a fee to maintain a
HELOC or personal loan.

The table below presents the Company�s fair value estimates for financial instruments, excluding short-term financial assets and
liabilities, for which carrying amounts approximate fair value, and excluding financial instruments recorded at fair value.

December 31, 2011 2010
Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Financial Assets:
Securities held to maturity $     15,108 $     15,539 $     17,762 $     17,848
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Loans to banking clients � net $ 9,812 $ 9,671 $ 8,725 $ 8,469
Loans held for sale $ 70 $ 73 $ 185 $ 194
Financial Liabilities:
Long-term debt $ 2,001 $ 2,159 $ 2,006 $ 2,116

18.     Equity Offering

On January 26, 2010, the Company sold 29,670,300 shares of its common stock, $.01 par value, at a public offering price of
$19.00 per share. Net proceeds received from the offering were $543 million and were used to support the Company�s balance
sheet growth, including expansion of its deposit base and migration of certain client balances from money market funds into
deposit accounts at Schwab Bank.
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19.     Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) represents cumulative gains and losses that are not reflected in earnings. The
components of other comprehensive income (loss) are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009
Before Tax Net of Before Tax Net of Before Tax Net of
tax effect tax tax effect tax tax effect tax

Securities available for
sale:
Net unrealized (loss) gain
arising during the year $       (43) $         16 $       (27) $       300 $     (115) $       185 $       536 $     (212) $       324
Reclassification of
impairment charges
included in earnings 31 (12) 19 36 (14) 22 60 (24) 36
Other reclassifications of
net losses in earnings 1 � 1 1 � 1 3 (1) 2

Net unrealized (loss) gain
on securities available for
sale (11) 4 (7) 337 (129) 208 599 (237) 362

Foreign currency
translation adjustment (1) � (1) � � � � � �

Net unrealized loss on
cash flow hedging
instruments � � � (1) � (1) � � �

Other comprehensive
(loss) income $ (12) $ 4 $ (8) $ 336 $ (129) $ 207 $ 599 $ (237) $ 362

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) balances were as follows:

Net unrealized gain (loss)
on securities available for

sale
Portion
of

Portion of

unrealized loss

Foreign

currency

Net unrealized

loss on cash

Total 
accumulated
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unrealized gain

(loss) on Non-OTTI
securities

on OTTI
securities

translation
adjustment

flow hedging
instruments

other

comprehensive
income (loss)

Balance at December 31, 2008 $ (553) $                   � $                     � $                     � $     (553) 
Transfer to OTTI securities 149 (149) � � �
Other net changes 327 35 � � 362

Balance at December 31, 2009 (77) (114) � � (191) 
Transfer to OTTI securities 21 (21) � � �
Other net changes 144 64 � (1) 207

Balance at December 31, 2010 88 (71) � (1) 16
Transfer to OTTI securities 8 (8) � � �
Other net changes � (7) (1) � (8) 

Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 96 $     (86) $     (1) $     (1) $               8
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20.     Employee Incentive, Deferred Compensation, and Retirement Plans

A summary of the Company�s stock-based compensation and related income tax benefit is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,      2011          2010          2009     
Stock option expense $ 61 $ 53 $ 44
Restricted stock award expense 12 21 27
Restricted stock unit expense 23 10 1
Employee stock purchase plan expense 3 3 3

Total stock-based compensation expense $ 99 $ 87 $ 75

Income tax benefit on stock-based compensation $ (37) $ (33) $ (29) 

The Company issues shares for stock options and restricted stock awards from treasury stock. At December 31, 2011, the
Company was authorized to grant up to 52 million common shares under its existing stock incentive plans.

As of December 31, 2011, there was $192 million of total unrecognized compensation cost, net of forfeitures, related to
outstanding stock options, restricted stock awards, and restricted stock units, which is expected to be recognized through 2016
with a remaining weighted-average service period of 2.8 years.

Stock Option Plans

The Company�s stock incentive plans provide for granting options to employees, officers, and directors. Options are granted for
the purchase of shares of common stock at an exercise price not less than market value on the date of grant, and expire within
seven or ten years from the date of grant. Options generally vest annually over a three- to five-year period from the date of grant.
Certain options were granted at an exercise price above the market value of common stock on the date of grant (i.e.,
premium-priced options).

The Company�s stock option activity is summarized below:
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Number
of Options

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price
per Share

Weighted-

Average

Remaining

Contractual
Life

(in years)

Aggregate

Intrinsic
Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2010 60 $     16.41
Granted 13 $ 13.07
Exercised (8) $ 12.03
Forfeited               (2) $ 16.32
Expired (5) $ 17.21

Outstanding at December 31, 2011 58 $ 16.20             6.30 $             4

Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2011 54 $ 16.31 6.15 $ 4

Vested and exercisable at December 31, 2011 31 $ 17.53 4.24 $ 3

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the difference between CSC�s closing stock price and the exercise
price of each in-the-money option on the last trading day of the period presented.
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Information on stock options granted and exercised is presented below:

Year Ended December 31,      2011          2010          2009     
Weighted-average fair value of options granted per share $ 4.16 $ 5.36 $ 6.42
Cash received from options exercised $ 96 $ 35 $ 53
Tax benefit realized on options exercised $ 7 $ 5 $ 8
Aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised $ 38 $ 17 $ 25

Management uses a binomial option pricing model to estimate the fair value of options granted. The binomial model takes into
account the contractual term of the stock option, expected volatility, dividend yield, and risk-free interest rate. Expected
volatility is based on the implied volatility of publicly-traded options on CSC�s stock. Dividend yield is based on the average
historical CSC dividend yield. The risk-free interest rate is based on the yield of a U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issue with a
remaining term equal to the contractual term of the option. Management uses historical option exercise data, which includes
employee termination data to estimate the probability of future option exercises. Management uses the Black-Scholes model to
solve for the expected life of options valued with the binomial model presented below. The assumptions used to value the
Company�s options granted during the years presented and their expected lives were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,      2011          2010          2009     
Weighted-average expected dividend yield .85% .71% .58% 
Weighted-average expected volatility 36% 35% 52% 
Weighted-average risk-free interest rate 2.1% 2.8% 3.0% 
Expected life (in years) 0.0 � 6.3 3.0 � 5.9 1.4 � 5.3

Restricted Stock Plans

The Company�s stock incentive plans provide for granting restricted stock awards and restricted stock units to employees,
officers, and directors. Restricted stock units are awards that entitle the holder to receive shares of CSC�s common stock
following a vesting period.

Restricted stock awards and units are restricted from transfer or sale and generally vest annually over a three- to five-year period,
but some vest based upon the Company achieving certain financial or other measures. The fair value of restricted stock awards
and units is based on the market price of the Company�s stock on the date of grant. The grant date fair value is amortized to
compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period. The total fair value of the restricted stock awards
and units that vested during each of the years 2011, 2010, and 2009 was $24 million, $27 million, and $28 million, respectively.
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The Company�s restricted stock awards and units activity is summarized below:

Restricted Stock Awards Restricted Stock Units

Number
of Shares

Weighted-
Average 
Grant

Date Fair Value
per Share

Number
of Units

Weighted-
Average 
Grant

Date Fair Value
per Unit

Outstanding at December 31, 2010 1 $ 20.49 4 $ 16.04
Granted � $ � 5 $ 11.94
Vested                   (1) $ 20.69                   (1) $ 16.28
Forfeited � $ � � $ �

Outstanding at December 31, 2011 � $ � 8 $ 13.23

- 81 -

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 152



Table of Contents

THE CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share Data, Option Price Amounts, Ratios, or as Noted)

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under the Company�s Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP), eligible employees can purchase shares of CSC�s common stock
using amounts withheld through payroll deductions, subject to limitations. Payroll deductions are accumulated during six-month
offering periods that start each year on February 1st and August 1st. Share purchases are made on the last trading day of each
three-month purchase period within the offering period. The three-month purchase periods end on January 31st, April 30th,
July 31st, and October 31st of each year. The purchase price for each share of common stock is 85% of the fair market value of
the shares on the last trading day of the purchase period. At December 31, 2011, the Company had 45 million shares reserved for
future issuance under the ESPP.

Other Deferred Compensation Plans

The Company sponsors deferred compensation plans for eligible officers and non-employee directors. The Company�s deferred
compensation plan for officers permits participants to defer the receipt of certain cash compensation. The deferred compensation
liability was $128 million and $139 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Company�s deferred compensation
plan for non-employee directors permits participants to defer receipt of all or a portion of their director fees and to receive either
a grant of stock options, or upon ceasing to serve as a director, the number of shares of CSC�s common stock that would have
resulted from investing the deferred fee amount into CSC�s common stock.

Retirement Plan

Upon completing three months of consecutive service, employees of the Company can participate in the Company�s qualified
retirement plan, the SchwabPlan® Retirement Savings and Investment Plan. The Company may match certain employee
contributions or make additional contributions to this plan at its discretion. The Company�s total contribution expense was
$53 million, $50 million, and $49 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

21.    Money Market Mutual Fund Charges

In 2010, the Company decided to cover the net remaining losses recognized by Schwab money market mutual funds as a result
of their investments in a single structured investment vehicle that defaulted in 2008 and recorded a charge of $132 million.
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22.    Taxes on Income

The components of income tax expense are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009
Current:
Federal $     424 $     326 $     400
State 52 50 73

Total current 476 376 473

Deferred:
Federal 44 (43) 12
State 8 (8) 4

Total deferred 52 (51) 16

Taxes on income $ 528 $ 325 $ 489
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The temporary differences that created deferred tax assets and liabilities are detailed below:

December 31, 2011 2010
Deferred tax assets:
Employee compensation, severance, and benefits $     173 $     124
Facilities lease commitments 37 44
State and local taxes 8 8
Reserves and allowances 40 104
Other 9 10

Total deferred tax assets 267 290

Deferred tax liabilities:
Capitalized internal-use software development costs (42) (34) 
Depreciation and amortization (162) (45) 
Deferred cancellation of debt income (11) (11) 
Deferred loan costs (20) (20) 
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale � net (5) (10) 

Total deferred tax liabilities (240) (120) 

Deferred tax asset � net $     27 $     170

The Company determined that no material valuation allowance against deferred tax assets at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was
necessary.

A reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax rate to the effective income tax rate is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,    2011      2010      2009   
Federal statutory income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 2.5 3.3 3.7
Non-deductible penalties (1) � 2.7 �
Other 0.4 0.7 (0.4) 

Effective income tax rate 37.9% 41.7% 38.3% 
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(1) Amount reflects the impact of regulatory settlements relating to the Schwab YieldPlus Fund in 2010.

The Company�s unrecognized tax benefits, which are included in accrued expenses and other liabilities, represent the difference
between positions taken on tax return filings and estimated potential tax settlement outcomes. Resolving these uncertain tax
matters as of December 31, 2011, in the Company�s favor would reduce taxes on income by $9 million, net of the federal tax
benefit.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

December 31, 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year $     11 $     10
Additions for tax positions related to the current year 1 4
Additions for tax positions related to prior years 2 3
Reductions for tax positions related to prior years � (2) 
Reductions due to lapse of statute of limitations (1) (3) 
Reductions for settlements with tax authorities � (1) 

Balance at end of year $     13 $ 11

The Company classifies interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense, which
were not material in 2011, 2010, or 2009. The Company�s liability for estimated interest on unrecognized tax benefits was not
material at December 31, 2011 or 2010.
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Federal tax examinations for all years ending through December 31, 2007, have been completed. The years open to examination
by state and local governments vary by jurisdiction.

23.    Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. The computation of diluted EPS is similar to the computation of basic EPS except that the
denominator is increased to include the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive
potential common shares had been issued. Dilutive potential common shares include the effect of outstanding stock options and
unvested restricted stock awards and units. EPS under the basic and diluted computations is as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009
Net income available to common stockholders (1) $       864 $       454 $       787

Weighted-average common shares outstanding � basic 1,227 1,191 1,156
Common stock equivalent shares related to stock incentive plans 2 3 4

Weighted-average common shares outstanding � diluted(2) 1,229 1,194 1,160

Basic EPS $ .70 $ .38 $ .68
Diluted EPS $ .70 $ .38 $ .68

(1) Net income available to participating securities (unvested restricted shares) was not material in 2011, 2010, or 2009.

(2) Antidilutive stock options and restricted stock awards excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS were 63 million,
52 million, and 53 million shares in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

24.    Regulatory Requirements

CSC is a savings and loan holding company and Schwab Bank, CSC�s depository institution subsidiary, is a federal savings bank.
Prior to July 21, 2011, CSC and Schwab Bank were both subject to supervision and regulation by the Office of Thrift
Supervision (OTS). The �Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act� legislation (Dodd-Frank Act) eliminated
the OTS effective July 21, 2011. As a result, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (Federal Reserve) became
CSC�s primary regulator and the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency became the primary regulator of Schwab Bank.
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Effective July 21, 2011, CSC is required by the Dodd-Frank Act to serve as a source of strength for Schwab Bank. While under
the OTS, CSC was required to have a �prudential level of capital� to support CSC�s risk profile. The OTS did not historically
subject savings and loan holding companies, such as CSC, to consolidated regulatory capital requirements. However, under the
Dodd-Frank Act, CSC will be subject to new minimum leverage and minimum risk-based capital ratio requirements that will be
set by the Federal Reserve that are at least as stringent as the requirements generally applicable to insured depository institutions
as of July 21, 2011.

Schwab Bank is subject to regulation and supervision and to various requirements and restrictions under federal and state laws,
including regulatory capital guidelines. Among other things, these requirements also govern transactions with CSC and its
non-depository institution subsidiaries, including loans and other extensions of credit, investments and asset purchases,
dividends and investments. The federal banking agencies have broad powers to enforce these regulations, including the power to
terminate deposit insurance, impose substantial fines and other civil and criminal penalties, and appoint a conservator or
receiver. Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, Schwab Bank could be subject to restrictive actions if it were to fall within
one of the lowest three of five capital categories. Schwab Bank is required to maintain minimum capital levels as specified in
federal banking laws and regulations. Failure to meet the minimum levels could result in certain mandatory, and possibly
additional discretionary actions by the regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on Schwab Bank. At
December 31, 2011, CSC and Schwab Bank met the capital level requirements.
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The regulatory capital and ratios for Schwab Bank are as follows:

Actual
Minimum Capital
Requirement

Minimum to be
Well Capitalized

December 31, 2011 Amount      Ratio     Amount      Ratio     Amount      Ratio     
Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital $     4,984 23.4% $ 850 4.0% $ 1,276 6.0% 
Total Risk-Based Capital $ 5,036 23.7% $     1,701 8.0% $     2,126 10.0% 
Tier 1 Core Capital $ 4,984 7.5% $ 2,642 4.0% $     3,302 5.0% 
Tangible Equity $ 4,984 7.5% $ 1,321 2.0% N/A

December 31, 2010
Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital $ 4,157 23.7% $ 702 4.0% $ 1,053 6.0% 
Total Risk-Based Capital $ 4,209 24.0% $ 1,404 8.0% $ 1,755 10.0% 
Tier 1 Core Capital $ 4,157 7.6% $ 2,195 4.0% $ 2,744 5.0% 
Tangible Equity $ 4,157 7.6% $ 1,098 2.0% N/A

N/A Not applicable.

Based on its regulatory capital ratios at December 31, 2011 and 2010, Schwab Bank is considered well capitalized (the highest
category) pursuant to banking regulatory guidelines. There are no conditions or events since December 31, 2011, that
management believes have changed Schwab Bank�s capital category.

The Federal Reserve requires Schwab Bank to maintain reserve balances at the Federal Reserve Bank based on certain deposit
levels. Schwab Bank�s average reserve requirement was $1.1 billion and $918 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

CSC�s principal U.S. broker-dealers are Schwab and optionsXpress, Inc. optionsXpress, Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
optionsXpress. Schwab and optionsXpress, Inc. are both subject to Rule 15c3-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
Uniform Net Capital Rule). Schwab and optionsXpress, Inc. compute net capital under the alternative method permitted by the
Uniform Net Capital Rule. This method requires the maintenance of minimum net capital, as defined, of the greater of 2% of
aggregate debit balances arising from client transactions or a minimum dollar requirement ($250,000 for Schwab), which is
based on the type of business conducted by the broker-dealer. Under the alternative method, a broker-dealer may not repay
subordinated borrowings, pay cash dividends, or make any unsecured advances or loans to its parent company or employees if
such payment would result in a net capital amount of less than 5% of aggregate debit balances or less than 120% of its minimum
dollar requirement.

optionsXpress, Inc. is also subject to Commodity Futures Trading Commission Regulation 1.17 (Reg. 1.17) under the
Commodity Exchange Act, which also requires the maintenance of minimum net capital. optionsXpress, Inc., as a futures
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commission merchant, is required to maintain minimum net capital equal to the greater of its net capital requirement under Reg.
1.17 ($1 million), or the sum of 8% of the total risk margin requirements for all positions carried in client accounts and 8% of the
total risk margin requirements for all positions carried in non-client accounts (as defined in Reg. 1.17).

Net capital and net capital requirements for Schwab and optionsXpress, Inc. at December 31, 2011, are as follows:

Net Capital

% of
Aggregate

Debit Balances

Minimum
Net Capital
Required

2% of
Aggregate

Debit Balances

Net Capital
in Excess of
Required

Net
Capital

Net Capital
in Excess of

5% of
Aggregate

Debit Balances
Schwab $     1,188 10% $     0.250 $     240 $     948 $     588
optionsXpress, Inc. $ 78 29% $ 1 $ 5 $ 73 $ 65

Schwab and optionsXpress, Inc. are also subject to Rule 15c3-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and/or other
applicable regulations, which require them to maintain cash or qualified securities in a segregated reserve account for the
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exclusive benefit of clients. In accordance with Rule 15c3-3, Schwab and optionsXpress, Inc. had portions of their cash and
investments segregated for the exclusive benefit of clients at December 31, 2011. Amounts included in cash and investments
segregated and on deposit for regulatory purposes represent actual balances on deposit, whereas cash and investments required to
be segregated and on deposit for regulatory purposes at December 31, 2011 for Schwab and optionsXpress, Inc. totaled
$26.3 billion. On January 4, 2012, Schwab and optionsXpress, Inc. deposited a net amount of $1.1 billion of excess segregated
cash into their segregated reserve bank accounts. Cash and investments required to be segregated and on deposit for regulatory
purposes at December 31, 2010 for Schwab was $22.0 billion. On January 4, 2011, Schwab withdrew a net amount of
$194 million of excess segregated cash from its segregated reserve bank accounts.

25.    Segment Information

Operating segments are defined as components of a company in which separate financial information is evaluated regularly by
the chief operating decision maker, or decision-making group, in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing
performance. The Company structures its operating segments according to its various types of clients and the services provided
to those clients. The Company�s two reportable segments are Investor Services and Institutional Services.

The Investor Services segment provides retail brokerage and banking services to individual investors. The Institutional Services
segment provides custodial, trading, and support services to independent investment advisors. The Institutional Services segment
also provides retirement plan services, specialty brokerage services, and mutual fund clearing services, and supports the
availability of Schwab proprietary mutual funds and collective trust funds on third-party platforms. Banking revenues and
expenses are allocated to the Company�s two segments based on which segment services the client.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in note �2 � Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.�
Financial information for the Company�s reportable segments is presented in the following table. For the computation of its
segment information, the Company utilizes an activity-based costing model to allocate traditional income statement line item
expenses (e.g., compensation and benefits, depreciation and amortization, and professional services) to the business activities
driving segment expenses (e.g., client service, opening new accounts, or business development) and a funds transfer pricing
methodology to allocate certain revenues.

The Company evaluates the performance of its segments on a pre-tax basis, excluding items such as impairment charges on
non-financial assets, discontinued operations, extraordinary items, and significant restructuring and other charges. Segment
assets and liabilities are not disclosed because the balances are not used for evaluating segment performance and deciding how to
allocate resources to segments. However, capital expenditures are used in resource allocation and are therefore disclosed. There
are no revenues from transactions with other segments within the Company. Capital expenditures are reported gross, and are not
net of proceeds from the sale of fixed assets.
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Financial information for the Company�s reportable segments is presented in the following table:

Investor Services Institutional Services Unallocated Total
Year Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
Net Revenues
Asset management and
administration fees $     1,053 $     976 $     968 $     875 $     846 $     907 $        � $        � $        � $ 1,928 $ 1,822 $ 1,875
Net interest revenue 1,468 1,297 1,058 257 227 187 � � � 1,725 1,524 1,245
Trading revenue 625 557 679 302 273 317 � � � 927 830 996
Other 85 70 93 75 65 82 � � � 160 135 175
Provision for loan losses (15) (23) (34) (3) (4) (4) � � � (18) (27) (38) 
Net impairment losses on
securities (27) (32) (54) (4) (4) (6) � � � (31) (36) (60) 

Total net revenues 3,189 2,845 2,710 1,502 1,403 1,483 � � � 4,691 4,248 4,193

Expenses Excluding
Interest (1) 2,261 2,065 1,906 1,039 960 929 (1) 444 82 3,299 3,469 2,917

Income before taxes on
income $ 928 $ 780 $ 804 $ 463 $ 443 $ 554 $ 1 $ (444) $ (82) $ 1,392 $ 779 $ 1,276

Taxes on income (528) (325) (489) 

Net Income $ 864 $ 454 $ 787

Capital expenditures $ 120 $ 91 $ 95 $ 70 $ 36 $ 44 $ � $ � $ � $ 190 $ 127 $ 139
Depreciation and
amortization $ 108 $ 93 $ 100 $ 47 $ 52 $ 59 $ � $ 1 $ � $ 155 $ 146 $ 159

(1) Unallocated amount primarily includes class action litigation and regulatory reserves of $320 million and money market mutual fund
charges of $132 million in 2010, and facilities and severance charges relating to the Company�s cost reduction measures in 2009.

Fees received from Schwab�s proprietary mutual funds represented approximately 10%, 14%, and 23% of the Company�s net
revenues in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. Except for Schwab�s proprietary mutual funds, which are considered a single
client for purposes of this computation, no single client accounted for more than 10% of the Company�s net revenues in 2011,
2010, or 2009. Substantially all of the Company�s revenues and assets are generated or located in the U.S. The percentage of
Schwab�s total client accounts located in California was approximately 23% at December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009.

26.    Subsequent Event
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On January 26, 2012, the Company issued and sold 400,000 shares of fixed-to-floating rate non-cumulative perpetual preferred
stock, Series A, $0.01 par value, with a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share (Series A Preferred Stock). The Series A
Preferred Stock has a fixed dividend rate of 7% until 2022 and a floating rate thereafter. Net proceeds received from the sale
were $394 million and are being used for general corporate purposes, including, without limitation, to support the Company�s
balance sheet growth and the potential migration of certain client cash balances to deposit accounts at Schwab Bank.

Under the terms of the Series A Preferred Stock issued in January 2012, the Company�s ability to pay dividends on, make
distributions with respect to, or to repurchase, redeem or acquire its common stock is subject to restrictions in the event that the
Company does not declare and either pay or set aside a sum sufficient for payment of dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock
for the immediately preceding dividend period.
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27.    The Charles Schwab Corporation � Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Condensed Statements of Income

Year Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009
Interest revenue $ 4 $ 3 $ 8
Interest expense (103) (86) (66) 

Net interest revenue (99) (83) (58) 
Other revenues 8 6 33
Expenses excluding interest (30) (18) (15) 

Loss before income tax benefit and equity in net income of subsidiaries (121) (95) (40) 
Income tax benefit 43 36 16

Loss before equity in net income of subsidiaries (78) (59) (24) 
Equity in net income of subsidiaries:
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries 600 478 228
Dividends from bank subsidiary 150 � �
Dividends from non-bank subsidiaries 192 35 583

Net Income $        864 $        454 $        787

Condensed Balance Sheets

December 31, 2011 2010
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 852 $ 1,149
Receivables from subsidiaries 57 92
Other securities owned � at fair value 77 91
Loans to non-bank subsidiaries 363 265
Investment in non-bank subsidiaries 3,363 2,509
Investment in bank subsidiary 5,009 4,189
Equipment, office facilities, and property � net 4 5
Other assets 64 91

Total assets $     9,789 $     8,391
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Liabilities and Stockholders� Equity
Accrued expenses and other liabilities $ 158 $ 232
Payables to subsidiaries 16 33
Long-term debt 1,901 1,900

Total liabilities 2,075 2,165

Stockholders� equity 7,714 6,226

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $     9,789 $     8,391
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income $ 864 $ 454 $ 787
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (591) (478) (253) 
Provision for deferred income taxes 3 3 20
Other 1 (3) (35) 
Net change in:
Receivables from brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations � 11 23
Other securities owned 6 422 (404) 
Other assets 26 40 (16) 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (76) (2) (1) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 233 447 121

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Due from subsidiaries � net 24 63 279
Increase in investments in subsidiaries (366) (1,025) (725) 
Cash payments for business combinations and investments, net of cash acquired 8 4 �

Net cash used for investing activities (334) (958) (446) 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Issuance of long-term debt � 701 747
Repayment of long-term debt � (200) (76) 
Net proceeds from common stock offering � 543 �
Dividends paid (295) (288) (279) 
Proceeds from stock options exercised and other 96 35 53
Other financing activities 3 (6) �

Net cash (used for) provided by financing activities (196) 785 445

(Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (297) 274 120
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 1,149 875 755

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $       852 $     1,149 $       875
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28.    Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

Fourth
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Second
Quarter

First
Quarter

Year Ended December 31, 2011:
Net Revenues $     1,113 $     1,181 $     1,190 $     1,207
Expenses Excluding Interest $ 861 $ 821 $ 804 $ 813
Net Income $ 163 $ 220 $ 238 $ 243
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding � Diluted 1,271 1,229 1,210 1,207
Basic Earnings Per Share $ .13 $ .18 $ .20 $ .20
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ .13 $ .18 $ .20 $ .20
Dividends Declared Per Common Share $ .06 $ .06 $ .06 $ .06
Range of Common Stock Price Per Share:
High $ 13.41 $ 16.72 $ 18.72 $ 19.45
Low $ 10.75 $ 11.03 $ 15.78 $ 17.16
Range of Price/Earnings Ratio (1):
High 19 25 31 34
Low 15 16 26 30

Year Ended December 31, 2010:
Net Revenues $ 1,127 $ 1,063 $ 1,080 $ 978
Expenses Excluding Interest $ 898 $ 864 $ 742 $ 965
Net Income $ 119 $ 124 $ 205 $ 6
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding � Diluted 1,200 1,194 1,195 1,188
Basic Earnings Per Share $ .10 $ .10 $ .17 $ �
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ .10 $ .10 $ .17 $ �
Dividends Declared Per Common Share $ .06 $ .06 $ .06 $ .06
Range of Common Stock Price Per Share:
High $ 17.42 $ 15.43 $ 19.88 $ 19.78
Low $ 13.98 $ 12.76 $ 14.18 $ 17.50
Range of Price/Earnings Ratio (1):
High 47 38 41 40
Low 38 31 30 36

(1) Price/earnings ratio is computed by dividing the high and low market prices by diluted earnings per share for the preceding
12-month period ending on the last day of the quarter presented.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of The Charles Schwab Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Charles Schwab Corporation and subsidiaries (the
Company) as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders� equity, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011. Our audits also included the financial statement
schedule of the Company on page F-2. We also have audited the Company�s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company�s management is responsible for these financial
statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management�s Report on Internal Control
over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement
schedule and an opinion on the Company�s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also
included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide
a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company�s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company�s
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company�s board
of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company�s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company�s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein. Also,
in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011, based on the criteria established in Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP                                    

San Francisco, California

February 23, 2012
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Management�s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of The Charles Schwab Corporation, together with its subsidiaries (the Company), is responsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. The Company�s internal control over financial reporting is a
process designed under the supervision of and effected by the Company�s chief executive officer and chief financial officer to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of published financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As of December 31, 2011, management conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over
financial reporting based on the framework established in Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management has determined that the
Company�s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2011.

The Company�s internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactions and dispositions of assets; provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and that receipts and expenditures are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and the directors of the Company; and provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company�s assets that could have a material
effect on the Company�s financial statements.

The Company�s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, has been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP,
an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing on the previous page.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures: The management of the Company, with the participation of the Company�s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company�s disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of December 31, 2011. Based on this
evaluation, the Company�s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company�s disclosure
controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2011.

Changes in internal control over financial reporting: No change in the Company�s internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) was identified during the quarter ended December 31,
2011, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company�s internal control over financial
reporting.

Management�s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and the Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm are included in �Item 8 � Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.�

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance

The information relating to directors of CSC required to be furnished pursuant to this item is incorporated by reference from
portions of the Company�s definitive proxy statement for its annual meeting of stockholders to be filed with the SEC pursuant to
Regulation 14A by April 30, 2012 (the Proxy Statement) under �Members of the Board of Directors,� �Corporate Governance
Information,� �Director Nominations,� and �Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.� The Company�s Code of
Conduct and Business Ethics, applicable to directors and all employees, including senior financial officers, is available on the
Company�s website at http://www.aboutschwab.com/governance. If the Company makes any amendments to or grants any
waivers from its Code of Conduct and Business Ethics, which are required to be disclosed pursuant to the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, the Company will make such disclosures on this website.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table provides certain information about each of the Company�s executive officers as of December 31, 2011.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Name Age Title

Charles R. Schwab 74 Chairman of the Board

Walter W. Bettinger II 51 President and Chief Executive Officer

Jay L. Allen 55 Executive Vice President � Human Resources and Employee Services

Benjamin L. Brigeman 49 Executive Vice President � Investor Services

John S. Clendening 49 Executive Vice President � Shared Strategic Services

Carrie E. Dwyer 61 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

Joseph R. Martinetto 49 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

James D. McCool 53 Executive Vice President � Institutional Services

Mr. Schwab has been Chairman of the Board and a director of CSC since its incorporation in 1986. He also served as Chief
Executive Officer of CSC from 1986 to 1997, and as Co-Chief Executive Officer from 1998 until 2003. He was re-appointed
Chief Executive Officer in 2004 and served in that role until 2008. Mr. Schwab is also Chairman of Charles Schwab & Co., Inc.
and Charles Schwab Bank, and a trustee of The Charles Schwab Family of Funds, Schwab Investments, Schwab Capital Trust,
Schwab Annuity Portfolios, Laudus Trust, and Laudus Institutional Trust, all registered investment companies.

Mr. Bettinger has been President and Chief Executive Officer of CSC since 2008. In 2010, he took on responsibility as Chief
Executive Officer of Charles Schwab Bank. He also serves on the Board of Directors of CSC, Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. and
Charles Schwab Bank, and as a trustee of The Charles Schwab Family of Funds, Schwab Investments, Schwab Capital Trust,
Schwab Annuity Portfolios, Laudus Trust, Laudus Institutional Trust, and Schwab Strategic Trust, all registered investment
companies. Prior to assuming his current role, Mr. Bettinger served as President and Chief Operating Officer of CSC from 2007
until 2008 and as Executive Vice President and President � Schwab Investor Services of CSC and Schwab from 2005 to 2007. He
served as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer � Individual Investor Enterprise of CSC and Schwab from 2004
until 2005, and Executive Vice President � Corporate Services of Schwab from 2002 until 2004. Mr. Bettinger joined Schwab in
1995.

Mr. Allen has been Executive Vice President � Human Resources and Employee Services of CSC and Schwab since 2007. He
served as Senior Vice President � Human Resources of Schwab Investor Services from 2004 to 2007. Mr. Allen joined Schwab in
2003 as Vice President � Human Resources of Schwab Investor Services.
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Mr. Brigeman served as Executive Vice President � Investor Services of CSC and Schwab from 2007 to February 2012.
Mr. Brigeman was Senior Vice President � Schwab Investor Services of Schwab from 2005 to 2007 and Senior Vice President �
Schwab Retirement Plan Services of Schwab from 2000 to 2005. Mr. Brigeman joined Schwab in 1996. Mr. Brigeman stepped
down as Executive Vice President � Investor Services of CSC and Schwab, effective February 15, 2012.

- 94 -

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 175



Table of Contents

THE CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION

Mr. Clendening has been Executive Vice President � Shared Strategic Services of CSC and Schwab since 2009. He served as
Executive Vice President � Solution Services of CSC and Schwab from 2008 to 2009 and as Executive Vice President � Client
Experience, Schwab Investor Services of CSC in 2007 and of Schwab from 2006 to 2008. Mr. Clendening served as Executive
Vice President and President � Individual Investor Enterprise Marketing of Schwab from 2005 to 2007. He joined Schwab in 2004
as Senior Vice President � Individual Investor Enterprise Marketing.

Ms. Dwyer has been Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary of CSC and Executive Vice President �
Corporate Oversight of Schwab since 1996. Ms. Dwyer joined Schwab in 1996.

Mr. Martinetto has been Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of CSC and Schwab since 2007. Mr. Martinetto
served as Senior Vice President and Treasurer of CSC and Schwab from 2003 to 2007 and Senior Vice President � Individual
Investor Finance of Schwab from 2002 to 2003. Mr. Martinetto joined Schwab in 1997.

Mr. McCool has been Executive Vice President � Institutional Services of CSC and Schwab since 2008. Mr. McCool served as
Executive Vice President � Schwab Corporate and Retirement Services of CSC from 2007 until 2008 and of Schwab from 2006
until 2008. Mr. McCool served as Senior Vice President � Corporate Services of Schwab from 2004 until 2006. Mr. McCool also
served as President and Chief Executive Officer of The Charles Schwab Trust Company (CSTC) from 2005 until 2007.
Mr. McCool served as Senior Vice President � Plan Administrative Services of CSTC from 2004 until 2005, Chief Operating
Officer of CSTC from 2003 until 2004, and Vice President � Development and Business Technology of CSTC from 2002 until
2003. Mr. McCool joined Schwab in 1995.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required to be furnished pursuant to this item is incorporated by reference from portions of the Proxy Statement
under �Compensation Discussion and Analysis,� �Executive Compensation Tables � 2011 Summary Compensation Table,� �Executive
Compensation Tables � 2011 Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table,� �Executive Compensation Tables � Narrative to Summary
Compensation and Grants of Plan-Based Awards Tables,� �Executive Compensation Tables � 2011 Termination and Change in
Control Benefits Table,� �Executive Compensation Tables � Outstanding Equity Awards as of December 31, 2011,� �Executive
Compensation Tables � 2011 Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table,� �Executive Compensation Tables � 2011 Nonqualified
Deferred Compensation Table,� �Director Compensation,� and �Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation.� In
addition, the information from a portion of the Proxy Statement under �Compensation Committee Report,� is incorporated by
reference from the Proxy Statement and furnished on this Form 10-K, and shall not be deemed �filed� for purposes of Section 18 of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, nor shall it be deemed incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities Act of
1933.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required to be furnished pursuant to this item is incorporated by reference from portions of the Proxy Statement
under �Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management,� and �Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity
Compensation Plans.�
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required to be furnished pursuant to this item is incorporated by reference from portions of the Proxy Statement
under �Transactions with Related Persons� and �Director Independence.�
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Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required to be furnished pursuant to this item is incorporated by reference from a portion of the Proxy Statement
under �Auditor Fees.�

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

(a) Documents filed as part of this Report

1. Financial Statements

The financial statements and independent auditors� report are included in �Item 8 � Financial Statements and Supplementary Data�
and are listed below:

Consolidated Statements of Income

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders� Equity

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 178



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

2. Financial Statement Schedule

The financial statement schedule required to be furnished pursuant to this item is listed in the accompanying index appearing on
page F-1.

(b) Exhibits

The exhibits listed below are filed as part of this annual report on Form 10-K.

Exhibit

Number Exhibit

2.1  Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated March 18, 2011, by and among The Charles Schwab Corporation, Neon
Acquisition Corp. and optionsXpress Holdings, Inc., filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant�s Form 8-K dated
March 18, 2011 and incorporated herein by reference.

  3.11 Fifth Restated Certificate of Incorporation, effective May 7, 2001, of the Registrant, filed as Exhibit 3.11 to the
Registrant�s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2011 and incorporated herein by reference.

  3.14 Fourth Restated Bylaws, as amended on January 27, 2010, of the Registrant, filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the
Registrant�s Form 8-K dated January 27, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference.

  3.15 Certificate of Designations of Fixed to Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A of
The Charles Schwab Corporation filed as Exhibit 3.15 to the Registrant�s Form 8-K dated January 24, 2012 and
incorporated herein by reference.
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Exhibit

Number Exhibit

  4.2    Neither the Registrant nor its subsidiaries are parties to any instrument with respect to long-term debt for
which securities authorized thereunder exceed 10% of the total assets of the Registrant and its subsidiaries on a
consolidated basis. Copies of instruments with respect to long-term debt of lesser amounts will be provided to
the SEC upon request.

10.1    Voting Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2011, by and among The Charles Schwab Corporation, G-Bar
Limited Partnership, JG 2002 delta Trust and optionsXpress Holdings, Inc., filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant�s Form 8-K dated March 18, 2011 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.4    Form of Release Agreement dated as of March 31, 1987 among BAC, Registrant, Schwab Holdings, Inc.,
Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. and former shareholders of Schwab Holdings, Inc., filed as the
identically-numbered exhibit to Registrant�s Registration Statement No. 33-16192 on Form S-1 and
incorporated herein by reference.

10.57  Registration Rights and Stock Restriction Agreement, dated as of March 31, 1987, between the Registrant and
the holders of the Common Stock, filed as Exhibit 4.23 to Registrant�s Registration Statement No. 33-16192 on
Form S-1 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.72  Restatement of Assignment and License, as amended January 25, 1988, among Charles Schwab & Co., Inc.,
Charles R. Schwab and the Registrant, filed as Exhibit 10.72 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.271 The Charles Schwab Corporation Directors� Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended through December 8,
2004, filed as Exhibit 10.271 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 and
incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.272 The Charles Schwab Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended through December 8, 2004, filed
as Exhibit 10.272 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 and incorporated herein
by reference. (2)

10.288 Stock Purchase Agreement by and between the Registrant and Bank of America Corporation, dated as of
November 19, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.289 Form of Notice and Restricted Stock Agreement for Walter W. Bettinger under The Charles Schwab
Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan dated February 20, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10.289 to the Registrant�s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.290 Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation, filed as Exhibit 10.290 to the Registrant�s Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended March 31, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.294 Form of Notice and Restricted Stock Agreement for Joseph R. Martinetto under The Charles Schwab
Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan dated May 18, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10.294 to the Registrant�s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.295 Form of Notice and Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for Joseph R. Martinetto under The Charles
Schwab Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan dated May 18, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10.295 to the Registrant�s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.296 Stock Purchase Agreement dated July 2, 2007, by and among Charles R. Schwab, Helen O. Schwab, The
Charles & Helen Schwab Living Trust, HOS Family Partners, LLC, 188 Partners, LP, and the Charles & Helen
Schwab Foundation, and The Charles Schwab Corporation, filed as Exhibit 10.296 to the Registrant�s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

- 97 -

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 180



Table of Contents

THE CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION

Exhibit

Number Exhibit

10.298 Directed Employee Benefit Trust Agreement under the SchwabPlan Retirement Savings and Investment Plan
dated August 17, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10.298 to the Registrant�s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.300 The Charles Schwab Corporation Employee Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated as of December 12,
2007, filed as Exhibit 10.300 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 and
incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.301 The Charles Schwab Corporation 1992 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated as of December 12,
2007, filed as Exhibit 10.301 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 and
incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.302 The Charles Schwab Corporation 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated as of December 12,
2007, filed as Exhibit 10.302 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 and
incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.306 Form of Notice and Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under The Charles Schwab Corporation 2004 Stock
Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.306 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007
and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.307 Form of Notice and Restricted Stock Agreement under The Charles Schwab Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive
Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.307 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 and
incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.309 Form of Notice and Premium-Priced Stock Option Agreement under The Charles Schwab Corporation 2004
Stock Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.309 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2007 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.311 Form of Notice and Restricted Stock Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under The Charles Schwab
Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.311 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.312 Form of Notice and Option Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under The Charles Schwab Corporation
2004 Stock Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.312 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.314 Employment Agreement dated as of March 13, 2008, between the Registrant and Charles R. Schwab, filed as
Exhibit 10.314 to the Registrant�s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference. (2)

10.316 Form of Notice and Restricted Stock Agreement for Walter W. Bettinger under the Charles Schwab
Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan dated October 1, 2008, filed as Exhibit 10.316 to the Registrant�s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.317 Form of Notice and Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for Walter W. Bettinger under The Charles Schwab
Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan dated October 1, 2008, filed as Exhibit 10.317 to the Registrant�s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.318 Form of Notice and Performance-Based Restricted Stock Agreement under the Charles Schwab Corporation
2004 Stock Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.318 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)
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Exhibit

Number Exhibit

10.319 Form of Notice and Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under the Charles Schwab
Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.319 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.321 The Charles Schwab Corporation Long Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated as of October 23, 2008,
filed as Exhibit 10.321 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 and incorporated
herein by reference. (2)

10.322 The Charles Schwab Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan II, as amended and restated as of October 23,
2008, filed as Exhibit 10.322 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 and
incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.323 The Charles Schwab Corporation Directors� Deferred Compensation Plan II, as amended and restated as of
October 23, 2008, filed as Exhibit 10.323 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008
and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.327 The Charles Schwab Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated as of December 10,
2009, filed as Exhibit 10.327 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 and
incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.331 The Charles Schwab Corporation Corporate Executive Bonus Plan, restated to include amendments approved
at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders on May 13, 2010, filed as Exhibit 10.331 to the Registrant�s Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.332 Credit Agreement (364-Day Commitment) dated as of June 11, 2010, between the Registrant and the financial
institutions listed therein, filed as Exhibit 10.332 to the Registrant�s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2010 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.333 Form of Notice and Retainer Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under The Charles
Schwab Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.333 to the Registrant�s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.335 Form of Notice and Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under The Charles Schwab Corporation 2004 Stock
Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.335 to the Registrant�s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2010
and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.336 Form of Notice and Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under The Charles Schwab
Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.336 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.337 The Charles Schwab Severance Pay Plan, as amended and restated effective July 1, 2011, filed as Exhibit
10.337 to the Registrant�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 and incorporated herein by
reference. (2)

10.338 The Charles Schwab Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, as approved at the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders on May 17, 2011 (supersedes Exhibit 10.327), filed as Exhibit 10.338 to the Registrant�s Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2011 and incorporated herein by reference. (2)

10.339 Credit Agreement (364 � Day Commitment) dated as of June 10, 2011, between the Registrant and financial
institutions listed therein (supersedes Exhibit 10.332), filed as Exhibit 10.339 to the Registrant�s Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2011 and incorporated herein by reference.
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Exhibit

Number Exhibit

  10.340 The Charles Schwab Severance Pay Plan, as Amended and Restated Effective January 1, 2012 (supersedes
Exhibit 10.337). (2)

  10.341 Form of Notice and Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under The Charles
Schwab Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (supersedes Exhibit 10.319). (2)

  10.342 Form of Notice and Retainer Stock Option Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under The Charles
Schwab Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (supersedes exhibit 10.312). (2)

  10.343 Form of Notice and Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under The Charles Schwab
Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (supersedes Exhibit 10.336). (2)

  10.344 Form of Notice and Retainer Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under The
Charles Schwab Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (supersedes Exhibit 10.333). (2)

  10.345 Form of Notice and Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under The Charles Schwab Corporation 2004
Stock Incentive Plan (supersedes Exhibit 10.306). (2)

  10.346 Form of Notice and Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under The Charles Schwab Corporation 2004 Stock
Incentive Plan (supersedes Exhibit 10.335). (2)

  10.347 Form of Notice and Stock Option Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under The Charles Schwab
Corporation Directors� Deferred Compensation Plan II. (2)

  12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

  21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

  23.1 Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm�s Consent.

  31.1 Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), As Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of The
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

  31.2 Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), As Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of The
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

  32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of The
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. (1)

  32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of The
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. (1)

  101.INS XBRL Instance Document (3)

  101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema (3)

  101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation (3)

  101.DEF XBRL Extension Definition (3)

  101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label (3)
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Exhibit

Number Exhibit

  101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation (3)

(1) Furnished as an exhibit to this annual report on Form 10-K.

(2) Management contract or compensatory plan.

(3) Attached as Exhibit 101 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 2011, are the
following materials formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) (i) the Consolidated Statements of
Income, (ii) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (iv) the Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders� Equity, and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on February 23, 2012.

THE CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION

(Registrant)

BY: /s/ Walter W. Bettinger II
Walter W. Bettinger II
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated, on February 23, 2012.

Signature / Title Signature / Title

/s/ Walter W. Bettinger II /s/ Joseph R. Martinetto
Walter W. Bettinger II, Joseph R. Martinetto,
President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President

    and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial and accounting officer)

/s/ Charles R. Schwab /s/ Nancy H. Bechtle
Charles R. Schwab, Chairman of the Board Nancy H. Bechtle, Director

/s/ C. Preston Butcher /s/ Frank C. Herringer
C. Preston Butcher, Director Frank C. Herringer, Director

/s/ Stephen T. McLin /s/ Arun Sarin
Stephen T. McLin, Director Arun Sarin, Director

/s/ Paula A. Sneed /s/ Roger O. Walther
Paula A. Sneed, Director Roger O. Walther, Director

/s/ Robert N. Wilson
Robert N. Wilson, Director
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Index to Financial Statement Schedule

Page
Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts F-2

Supplemental Financial Data for Charles Schwab Bank (Unaudited) F-3 � F-8

Schedules not listed are omitted because of the absence of the conditions under which they are required or because the
information is included in the Company�s consolidated financial statements and notes in �Item 8 � Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.�
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SCHEDULE II

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(In millions)

   Balance at  Additions    Balance at   

Description

Beginning
of

Year

     Charged    
to

Expense
    Other
 (1)   Written off  

End
of Year

For the year ended December 31, 2011:
Allowance for doubtful accounts of brokerage
clients (2) $ 1 $ 6 $ 3 $ (8) $ 2

For the year ended December 31, 2010:
Allowance for doubtful accounts of brokerage
clients (2) $ 2 $ 3 $ � $ (4) $ 1

For the year ended December 31, 2009:
Allowance for doubtful accounts of brokerage
clients (2) $     4 $     3 $ 2 $     (7) $     2

(1) Includes collections of previously written-off accounts.

(2) Excludes banking-related valuation and qualifying accounts. See �Item 8 - Financial Statements and Supplementary Data -
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - 7. Loans to Banking Clients and Related Allowance for Loan Losses.�
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Supplemental Financial Data for Charles Schwab Bank (Unaudited)

(Dollars in Millions)

The following supplemental financial data is consistent with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Industry Guide 3 � Statistical
Disclosure by Bank Holding Companies. The accompanying unaudited financial information represents Charles Schwab Bank
(Schwab Bank), which is a subsidiary of The Charles Schwab Corporation (CSC). CSC is a savings and loan holding company
and Schwab Bank is a federal savings bank. The following information excludes intercompany balances and transactions with
CSC and its affiliates.

1. Three-year Net Interest Revenue and Average Balances

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009
Average
Balance    Interest   

   Average   
Rate

   Average   
Balance    Interest   

   Average   
Rate

   Average   
Balance    Interest   

   Average   
Rate

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (1) $ 4,142 $ 11 0.27% $ 5,890 $ 16 0.27% $ 6,352 $ 26 0.40% 
Securities available for sale (2) 27,477 456 1.66% 24,209 486 2.01% 18,558 521 2.81% 
Securities held to maturity 16,050 492 3.07% 10,440 361 3.46% 1,915 74 3.86% 
Loans to banking clients (3) 9,468 310 3.27% 7,983 275 3.44% 6,668 241 3.61% 
Loans held for sale 65 3 4.62% 80 4 5.00% 110 5 4.55% 
Other interest-earning assets 50 1 2.00% 51 1 1.96% 30 � 0.49% 

Total interest-earning assets 57,252 1,273 2.22% 48,653 1,143 2.35% 33,633 867 2.58% 

Net unrealized gain (loss) on securities
available for sale 64 (109) (614) 
Noninterest-earning assets 212 297 331

Total Assets $     57,528 $     48,841 $     33,350

Liabilities and Stockholder�s Equity:
Interest-bearing banking deposits $ 52,701 62 0.12% $ 44,858 105 0.23% $ 31,249 107 0.34% 

Total sources on which interest is paid 52,701 62 0.12% 44,858 105 0.23% 31,249 107 0.34% 

Noninterest-bearing liabilities 345 299 513
Stockholder�s equity 4,482 3,684 1,588

Total Liabilities and Stockholder�s
Equity $ 57,528 $ 48,841 $ 33,350

Net interest revenue $ 1,211 $ 1,038 $ 760

Net yield on interest-earning assets 2.12% 2.13% 2.26% 

(1) Includes deposits with banks, short-term investments, and federal funds sold.
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(2) Amounts have been calculated based on amortized cost.

(3) Includes average principal balances of nonaccrual loans.
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(Dollars in Millions)

2. Analysis of Change in Net Interest Revenue

An analysis of the year-to-year changes in the categories of interest revenue and interest expense resulting from changes in
volume and rate is as follows:

2011 Compared to 2010

Increase (Decrease) Due to
Change in:

2010 Compared to 2009

Increase (Decrease) Due to
Change in:

 Average 
Volume

Average
Rate Total

 Average 
Volume

  Average  
Rate     Total    

Interest-earning assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (1) $ (4) $ (1) $ (5) $ (2) $ (8) $ (10) 
Securities available for sale (2) 65 (95) (30) 159 (194) (35) 
Securities held to maturity 194 (63) 131 329 (42) 287
Loans to banking clients (3) 51 (16) 35 47 (13) 34
Loans held for sale (1) � (1) (1) � (1) 
Other interest-earning assets � � � � 1 1

Total interest-earning assets $ 305 $ (175) $ 130 $ 532 $ (256) $ 276

Interest-bearing sources of funds:
Interest-bearing banking deposits $ 18 $ (61) $ (43) $ 46 $ (48) $ (2) 

Total sources on which interest is paid $ 18 $ (61) $ (43) $ 46 $ (48) $ (2) 

Change in net interest revenue $     287 $ (114) $     173 $     486 $ (208) $     278

Changes that are not due solely to volume or rate have been allocated to rate.

(1) Includes deposits with banks and short-term investments.

(2) Amounts have been calculated based on amortized cost.

(3) Includes average principal balances of nonaccrual loans.
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Supplemental Financial Data for Charles Schwab Bank (Unaudited)

(Dollars in Millions)

3. Securities Available for Sale and Securities Held to Maturity

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses, and fair value of securities available for sale and securities held to
maturity are as follows:

December 31, 2011
Amortized

Cost

Gross
   Unrealized   

Gains

Gross
   Unrealized   

Losses
   Fair   
Value

Securities available for sale:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed securities $ 20,666 $ 269 $ 14 $ 20,921
Non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities 1,130 � 223 907
Certificates of deposit 3,623 2 3 3,622
Corporate debt securities 3,592 5 26 3,571
U.S. agency notes 1,795 5 � 1,800
Asset-backed and other securities 3,136 7 7 3,136

Total securities available for sale $ 33,942 $ 288 $ 273 $ 33,957

Securities held to maturity:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed securities $ 14,770 $ 430 $ 2 $ 15,198
Other securities 338 3 � 341
Total securities held to maturity $     15,108 $     433 $     2 $     15,539

December 31, 2010
Amortized

Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Securities available for sale:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed securities $ 12,879 $ 222 $ 3 $ 13,098
Non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities 1,701 3 234 1,470
Certificates of deposit 1,874 1 � 1,875
Corporate debt securities 2,261 8 1 2,268
U.S. agency notes 2,757 23 � 2,780
Asset-backed securities 2,495 9 2 2,502

Total securities available for sale $ 23,967 $ 266 $ 240 $ 23,993

Securities held to maturity:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed securities $ 16,722 $ 209 $ 137 $ 16,794
Other securities 1,040 14 � 1,054

Total securities held to maturity $ 17,762 $ 223 $ 137 $ 17,848
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(Dollars in Millions)

December 31, 2009
Amortized

Cost

Gross
   Unrealized   

Gains

Gross
   Unrealized   

Losses
   Fair   
Value

Securities available for sale:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed securities $ 11,601 $ 199 $ 21 $ 11,779
Non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities 2,460 � 519 1,941
Certificates of deposit 1,950 3 � 1,953
Corporate debt securities 2,368 13 1 2,380
U.S. agency notes 2,975 4 1 2,978
Asset-backed securities 1,077 12 � 1,089

Total securities available for sale $ 22,431 $ 231 $ 542 $ 22,120

Securities held to maturity:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed securities $ 5,105 $ 36 $ 27 $ 5,114
Other securities 1,734 32 � 1,766

Total securities held to maturity $     6,839 $     68 $     27 $     6,880

The maturities and related weighted-average yields of securities available for sale and securities held to maturity at
December 31, 2011, are as follows:

After 1 year After 5 years
Within 1
year

through
5 years

through
10 years

After
10 years Total

Securities available for sale:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed
securities (1) $ � $ 2 $ 2,950 $ 17,969 $ 20,921
Non-agency residential mortgage-backed
securities (1) � � 13 894 907
Certificates of deposit 1,897 1,725 � � 3,622
Corporate debt securities 954 2,517 100 � 3,571
U.S. agency notes � 1,800 � � 1,800
Asset-backed and other securities 225 812 534 1,565 3,136

Total fair value $     3,076 $     6,856 $     3,597 $     20,428 $     33,957
Total amortized cost $ 3,076 $ 6,871 $ 3,512 $ 20,483 $ 33,942

Weighted-average yield (2) 1.29% 1.11% 1.83% 1.70% 1.56% 

Securities held to maturity:
U.S. agency residential mortgage-backed
securities (1) $ � $ � $ 2,581 $ 12,617 $ 15,198
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Other securities 117 224 � � 341

Total fair value $ 117 $ 224 $ 2,581 $ 12,617 $ 15,539
Total amortized cost $ 116 $ 222 $ 2,507 $ 12,263 $ 15,108

Weighted-average yield (2) 2.67% 3.00% 2.57% 2.59% 2.60% 

(1) Residential mortgage-backed securities have been allocated over maturity groupings based on final contractual
maturities. Actual maturities will differ from final contractual maturities because borrowers on a certain portion of
loans underlying these have the right to prepay their obligations.

(2) The weighted-average yield is computed using the amortized cost at December 31, 2011.
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4. Cross-border Holdings

The table below sets forth the amount of Schwab Bank�s cross-border holdings, based on carrying value, as of December 31,
2011. Such holdings, by country, that exceed 1% of total assets are disclosed separately, and such holdings, by country, that are
between 0.75% and 1% of total assets are listed in the aggregate. Cross-border holdings are comprised of cash equivalents,
securities available for sale, and securities held to maturity.

Banks and other Exposure as a %
Country financial institutions of total assets
United Kingdom $ 1,450 2.2% 
Canada 1,098 1.7% 
Sweden 712 1.1% 
Switzerland, France and Australia 1,849 2.8% 

Total $ 5,109

As of December 31, 2010, cross-border holdings in the United Kingdom were $1.5 billion (2.7% of total assets). As of
December 31, 2009, cross-border holdings in the Netherlands and the United Kingdom were $351 million (0.8% of total assets)
and $983 million (2.3% of total assets), respectively.

5. Loans to Banking Clients and Related Allowance for Loan Losses

The composition of the loan portfolio is as follows:

December 31, 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Residential real estate mortgages $     5,596 $     4,695 $     3,710 $     3,195 $     2,101
Home equity lines of credit 3,509 3,500 3,304 2,662 1,234
Personal loans secured by securities 742 562 366 187 102
Other 16 16 11 18 13

Total loans to banking clients $ 9,863 $ 8,773 $ 7,391 $ 6,062 $ 3,450

An analysis of nonaccrual loans is as follows:

December 31,     2011        2010        2009        2008        2007    
Nonaccrual loans $     52 $     51 $     34 $     8 $     4

Edgar Filing: MANNATECH INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents 195



Average nonaccrual loans $ 51 $ 40 $ 17 $ 6 $ 1

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows:

December 31,     2011        2010        2009        2008        2007    
Balance at beginning of year $     53 $     45 $     20 $     7 $     4
Charge-offs (19) (20) (13) (4) �
Recoveries 2 1 � � �
Provision for loan losses 18 27 38 17 3

Balance at end of year $ 54 $ 53 $ 45 $ 20 $ 7
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The maturities of the loan portfolio at December 31, 2011, are as follows:

After 1 year
    Within    
1 year

    through    
5 years

    After    
5 years     Total    

Residential real estate mortgages (1) $ � $ � $  5,596 $  5,596
Home equity lines of credit (2) � 1,074 2,435 3,509
Personal loans secured by securities 52 690 � 742
Other 5 � 11 16

Total $     57 $     1,764 $     8,042 $     9,863

(1) Maturities are based upon the contractual terms of the loans.
(2) Maturities are based on an initial draw period of 10 years.

The interest sensitivity of loans with contractual maturities in excess of one year at December 31, 2011, is as follows:

After 1
year

Loans with predetermined interest rates $ 473
Loans with floating or adjustable interest rates 9,333

Total $     9,806

6. Summary of Credit Loss on Banking Loans Experience

December 31, 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Average loans $     9,468 $     7,983 $     6,668 $     4,831 $     2,786
Allowance to year end loans .55% .60% .61% .33% .20% 
Allowance to nonperforming loans 104% 104% 132% 235% 173% 
Nonperforming assets to average loans and real estate
owned .59% .68% .51% .18% .14% 

7. Deposits from Banking Clients
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2011 2010 2009
Amount       Rate      Amount       Rate      Amount       Rate      

Analysis of average daily deposits:
Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or
more $ � � $ � � $ � �
Money market and other savings
deposits 42,342         0.09% 35,794         0.18% 24,879         0.14% 
Interest-bearing demand deposits 10,359 0.22% 9,064 0.45% 6,370 0.60% 

Total deposits $     52,701 $     44,858 $     31,249

At December 31, 2011, the Company had one certificate of deposit of $100,000 or more, in the amount of $501,784, with a
contractual maturity of over twelve months.

8. Ratios

December 31, 2011 2010 2009
Return on average stockholder�s equity 13.99% 14.22% 21.95% 
Return on average total assets 1.10% 1.07% 1.05% 
Average stockholder�s equity as a percentage of average total assets 7.83% 7.54% 4.76% 
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